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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the
members of the Company will be held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at Third
Floor, Old No.248/New No.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai -
600 014 at 3.00 p.m. at shorter notice to transact the following businesses;

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements
(including consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For GMR Enterprises Private Limited

""'5'"'1 Yogirrdu Khajuria

—

f,f‘/ Company Secretary

Ptace: New Delhi
Date: November 29, 2021

NOTES

1. Pursuant to the Order passed by the Registrar of Companies, Chennai, Tamil
Nadu, time for holding AGM has been extended for two months from the due
date by which AGM ought to have been held in accordance with the
provisions of Section 96(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, due date for
holding AGM of the Company is November 30, 2021,

2. The Meeting can be convened at a shorter notice, after obtaining the
consent, In writing or by electronic mode, accorded thereto by members of
the Company majority in number entitled to vote and who represent not less
than ninety-five percent of such part of the paid-up share capital of the
company as gives a right to vote at the meeting, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 101 of the Act, format of Shorter notice consent is enclosed.

3. Corporate/Trust members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives
to attend the AGM on their hehalf and cast their votes at the AGM.
Corporate/ Trust Members intending to authcorize their representatives to
participate and vote at the Meeting are reguested to send a certified copy of
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the Board resolution/authorization letter to the Company at
vogindu.khaijuria@gmrgroup.in or contact@holdinggepl.com

. Copies of all documents referred to in the notice are available for inspection
electronically. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an
email to yogindu.khajuria@gmrgroup.in or contact@holdinggepl.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their
shareholding is maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by
the members during the AGM,

. Member seeking any information with regard to any queries regarding the
Annual Report, may write to the Company at yogindu.khajuria@gmrgroup.in
or contact@holdinggepl.com




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd, Off.:

Fhird Floor, Od No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Read, Royapettah,
Chennai - GO Ot4

CIN: U74900TN2007PTCL0238T

Fourteenth Annual General Meeting

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please present this slip at the Entrance of the Meeting Hall)

I certify that I am a member/ proxy/authorized representative for the member of the
Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 14™ Annual General Meeting of the Company being
held on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at Third Floor, Old No0.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014 at 3.00 p.m. at shorter notice.

To be signed at the time of handing over the siip at the Meeting Hall.

(Signature of Member/Proxy)

Name:
Regd. Folio No.:



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Off.:

Third Floor, Old Mo 248/Hew No. 114,
Rovapettah MHigh Road, Royapeltah,
Chennai - 600 (014

CIM: UF4D00THNAQOFPTCIGRRED

FORM OF PROXY
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 15(3} of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

{ Name of the member {8): T B el 1d:

; Registered address: Folio No/Chent Id*:

i DP 1D*:
I/ We being the members of shares of GMR Enterprises Private Limited, hereby
appoint: :

i of . .. .having
c-mai id .. 0t failing him
2). . of . : having
e-mail 1d______________ or failing him
3 of B . n—__having

e-mail id or failing him

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Fourteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited will be held on Tuesday, November 30,
2021 at Third Flaor, OQld No.248/New MNo.114, Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014 at 3. OO
p.mt. ar at any adjournment thereof at 5horter notice.

#* [/ We direct my / our proxy to vote on the resolution{s) in the manner as indicated below:

Resolutions For Against_
To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements
{including consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the financial
vear ended March 31, 2021 together with the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon

Signed this....... day of....... 2021 Affix a 15 paisa i
s Revenue Stamp
Signature of
shareholder

_Ezic_umatur_'éuaf”f'irst ?rox? holder S|gnature of second Proxy hotder Sigﬁgtﬁ"r'éuﬁif't'hird f"'r'o;; holder
NOTES
1. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registercd with the Company.

2. The proxy form should be deposited before the commencement of the meeling at the registered office
of the Company.

3. A proxy need not be @ member of the Company.

4. A persen can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and haolding in the aggregate
nat rmore than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appaint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
rember.



5. Inthe case of joint holders, the vote of the scnior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy,
shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined
by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

6.  The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in
person and veoting at the Meeting.

7. 1In case a member wishes his / her votes to be used differently, he / she should indicate the number of
shares under the column "For” or “Against” as appropriate.

# Applicable for the members holding shares in electronic form.
*#* This is optional. Please put a tick mark (V) in the appropriate column against the Resofutions indicated in
the Box. If a member leaves the "For” or "Against™ column biank against any or all the Resolutions, the proxy
will bz entitled to vote in the manner he/she thinks appropriate



Consent by Shareholder for Shorter Notice

[Pursuant to Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013}

To

The Board of Directors

GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Consent to hold the Annual General Meeting at shorter notice

I/ WE, , having Registered office at ...
holding ....coccoeviiene equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, in the Company in my/our
own name hereby give consent, pursuant to Section 101(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to hold the Annual General Meeting on November 30, 2021 at shorter
notice.
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Corporate Office;
New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terrinal 3
Indira Gandhi Internationat Airport

New Dethi - 110 037, India
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T +9111 4253 2600

£ contacti@holdinggeplin o
W www. holdinggepl.lom

Board’'s Report

Dear Members,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Board’s Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021.

Your Company is the ultimate holding company of GMR Group and holds its
investments in listed and unlisted companies within the Group.

Financial Results

Pursuant to MCA Notification dated March 30, 2016 on "the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016" read with MCA Notification dated
February 16, 2015 (IndAS) on "the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015", being a Core Investment Company (CIC), the Company started implementing
IndAS effective from April 1, 2019. The Company has prepared its Financial
Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) as per Ind AS for the financial year 2020-
21.

Presented below the highlights of performance; Standalone and Consolidated for the
vear ended March 31, 2021:

Standalone:

Your Company’s Standalone Financial Statements are presented below:

Amount in INR (in Crores)

__________ ) Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
| Revenue from operations 302.05 257.01
Other Income 54.82; . ... 21361
Total Income 356.87 - 470.62
Finance Cost _ 570.56 - 617.02
Employee benefit expenses 4.49 ] 2.32
Depreciation 0.08 0.08 .
Other expenses 73.70 - 163.97 ¢
Total Expenses |  648.84 783.39
_Profit/(Loss) before taxation (291.98) (312.77)
Provision for Taxation
o.Current Tax 24.3Q | o
- Deferred Tax o -
. Profit/(Loss) after Tax (292.21) (312.77)

The Company shown reduction of losses to Rs. 292.22 Crores for FY 2020-21 as
compared to loss of Rs. 312.77 Crores for the previous year. The Company had shown
good improvement in its financial results as the loss of Rs. 312.77 Crore during the
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previous year (FY 19-20) was after accounting a one-time income of Rs. 147 Crore
due to reversal of certain provisions. During FY 2020-21, Company earned a profit of
Rs. 160.74 Crores from part divestment of its stake in GMR Infrastructure Limited
(GIL), which helped in reduction of losses. During FY 20-21, Finance Costs shown
reduction to Rs. 571 Crores as compared to Rs. 617 Crores for FY 19-20, The primarily
reason of losses in the Company is the Finance Cost on borrowings availed by the
Company for funding the various subsidiaries.

Consolidated:

The consolidated revenue, expenditure and results of -operations of your Company
inciuding its subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are.given as per details below:

Amount in INR (in Crores)

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020
Revenue from operations ' 1 6327.64 8659.62
Other income _ - 701.31 951.73
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire 484.87 2037.1¢
grantors
Operating and administrative expenditure 2,773.66 2380.56
Other expenses 1,948.59 1624.55
Finance Costs 3,936.57 4266.71
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,005.65 1065.29
Loss before share of loss of associate and (3,120.39) (1762.86)
joint ventures, exceptional items and tax
from continuing operations
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures {346.37) (275.51)
(net)
Exceptional Ttems:
Loss on impairment of investments in {880.57) (680.91)
associates/joint ventures (net) o
Loss before tax from continuing operatlons (4,347.33) (2719.28)
‘Current tax (incl. Adjustments eartier periods) 4939 | 152.78
Deferred tax | (301.45) | (236.44)
Loss after tax from continuing operations (4,095.27) | (2635.62)
Loss from discontinued operations (C.02) (3.70)
Loss for the year (4,095.29) | (2,639.32)
Attributable to: -
| a) Equity holders of the parent (2,410.63) | (2,009.10)
b) Non-controlling interests (1,684.66) | (630.22)
Earnings per equity share (Rs.) Basic and (282.76) - (275.15)
diluted, computed on the basis of profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent
(per equity share of Re, 10 each)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the mixed approach of division II and III as per MCA Notification



dated October 11, 2018, along with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time. Further, consolidation is based on historical
cost, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2021. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Dividend & Appropriation to Reserve:

In view of the losses during the year under review, your Board of Directors have not
recommended any dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

State of Company’'s Affairs (Operational Highlights) and highlights on
performance of subsidiaries, associates and _joint ventures during the

financial year 2020-21

Your Company is the ultimate holding company of GMR Group and being CIC, it holds
investments in listed and unlisted companies within the Group. The complete list of
Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate Companies is furnished as ‘Part A of
Annexure- 27 to this Report.

The brief overview of the developments of the businesses carrled on by the
subsidiaries of the Company is presented below:

GMR Infrastructure Limited

GMR Infrastructure Limited ("GIL"), is the listed subsidiary of the Company and the
various verticals of infrastructure business of the Group are carried through the
subsidiaries of GIL.

GIL is a leading infrastructure congiomerate with interest in Airports, Energy,
Transportation and Urban Infrastructure business sectors in India and few countries
overseas.

GMR Group’s Airport portfolio has around 172 mn passenger capacity in operation and
under development, comprising of India's busiest Indira Gandhi International Airport
in New Delhi, Rajiv Gandhi International Airport at Hyderabad and Mactan Cebu
International Airport in partnership with Megawide at Philippines. While greenfield
projects under development includes Airport at Mopa, Goa and Airport at Heraklion,
Crete, Greece in partnership with GEK Terna. The GMR-Megawide consortium has won
the Clark Internationat Airport’s EPC project, the second project in Philippines. The
Group has recently signed the Concession Agreement for the development and
operation of a greenfield airport at Bhogapuram at Andhra Pradesh. The group recently



signed concession agreement to commission, operationalize and maintain the Civilian
Enclave at the Bidar Airport at North Karnataka. GMR Group is developing very unique
airport cities on the commercial fand available around its airports at Delhi, Hyderabad
and Goa.

The Group’s Energy business has a diversified portfolio of around 4,995 MW, of which
~3,040 MWs of Coal, Gas and Renewable power plants are operational and around
~1,955 MWs of power projects are under various stages of construction and
development. The group also has coal mines at Indonesia, where it has partnered with
a large local player.

Transportation and Urban Infrastructure division of the Group has four operating
highway projects spanning over 1460 lane km. The Group has a large EPC order book
of railway track construction including Government of India’s marquee Dedicated
Freight Corridor project.

The Group is also developing muiti-product Special Investment Regions spread across
~1900 acres at Krishnagiri in Tamil Nadu, industrial cluster catering to electronics,
automobile, logistics, engineering and aerospace sectors.

Further, listed subsidiary of the Company, GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL) has filed
Composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement for amalgamation of GMR
Power Infra Limited with GMR Infrastructure Limited and demerger of GIL EPC
Business into GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited and their respective shareholders
with the National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) on March 5, 2021. '

I. Airport Sector

The airports are housed under the Company’s step-down subsidiary GMR Airports
Limited (GAL).

GAL emerged as the highest bidder to develop, operate and manage greenfield
Bhogapuram International Airport at Andhra Pradesh with concession period of 40
years that can be extended by another 20 years. Subsequently, it received the letter
of award and signed the concession agreement in June 2020 for Bhogapuram
International Airport at Andhra Pradesh. Developmental activities are currently in
progress at Bhogapuram Airport.

In India, GMR is actively pursuing opportunities for new airports as and when they
arise. The Group is actively tracking the next round of regional airports being
privatized by the Government of India. On the international front, in the near future,
the Group is strategically focusing on opportunities in South, South East Asia and the
Middle East and continues to explore opportunities at Africa, Latin America and Eastern
Europe. GAL is looking to drive growth not only through Airport Concessions, but also
through provision of airport related services including EPC, Project Management,
Engineering & Maintenance, Duty Free, Cargo, etc.



Fy 2020-21 was a very difficult year for the global economy and the Aviation sector in
particular with the COVID pandemic spreading across the world. With most
Governments across the world, including India, bringing measures to stop mobility in
an attempt to control the spread of the virus, traffic at airports was impacted
significantly across the world. Further, Airports had to take significant steps to keep
airports operational, take care of employees and other stakeholders, introduce
sanitary measures to prepare for travel and work with authorities and other
stakehoiders for resumption of traffic.

An overview of the operations at Airports assets during the year is briefly given below:

1. Delhi Internationat Airport Limited (DIALY

DIAL is an indirect subsidiary of the Company and its shareholding comprises of GAL
(64%), Airports Authority of India (AAI) (26%) and Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport
Services Worldwide (Fraport) (10%). DIAL has entered into a long-term agreement to
operate, manage and develop the Indira Gandhi International Airport (IGIA), Delhi.

Fiscal Year 2021 brought number of major challenges for the Indian Aviation Sector.
The year started with the suspension of scheduled commercial operation of airlines.
While the domaestic scheduled operation started after almost two months of suspension
with phase wise capacity deployment; scheduled International operations remained
suspended throughout the year.

International operation was limited to repatriation flights, Vande Bharat flights,
charter operations and bubble flights with different countries. Despite the ban on
scheduted operation, IGIA remained operational throughout the year supporting
various government initiatives in combatting COVID. IGIA became the hub airport for
transportation of essential goods during the lockdown period and it handled a total of
2,414 flights starting March 25, 2020 till May 31, 2020. Even during the COVID-19 2™
wave, IGIA played a major role in the Nation’s efferts to fight the pandemic and
became the main hub for handling and distribution of medical suppiies, which poured
in from around the world. After moderation of 2™ wave, DIAL continues to play a
majer role in distribution of vaccines.

Throughout the year, DIAL proactively engaged with all stakeholders in safe travel
policy formation and pushing passenger growth through Bubble Airport arrangements,
RT-PCR Testing etc. DIAL worked with MoCA and launched “Air Suvidha” portal which
is a portal for Self-reporting and getting exemption from Institutional Quarantine, for
all International arrival passengers coming to India.

While DIAL responded to the adversities brought by COVID-19 promptly, it was
adversely impacted by the drastic decline of traffic at IGI airport. Passenger traffic at
IGIA was 22.6 mn in FY 2020-21, witnessing a de-growth of 66.4% over previous year
with 82.0% de-growth in international traffic and 60.8% de-growth in domestic traffic.
During the year, DIAL handled 213,986 Air Traffic Movements (ATMs) and clocked
0.74 MMT cargo volume with an overall de-growth of 22.9% over previous year, driven
by 22.7% de-growth in the domestic cargo and 22.9% in international cargo. Despite
the pandemic, Cargo has done relatively well on an overall basis.



DIAL took various steps to reduce operational expenses, including consolidation of
operations at T3 (DIAL) and temporary closure of T1 and T2, whenever traffic fell
below a threshold, to ensure optimal utilization of resources and lowering of utility,
R&M and administrative costs.

DIAL is under Base Airport Charges (BAC) since December 2018. AERA has released
CP3 Tariff Order for DIAL cn 30%™ Dec 2020 and has allowed DIAL to continue with
Base Airport Charges (BAC) + 10% tariff. It has also allowed DIAL to levy User
Development Fee from February 2021 towards compensation for discontinuation of
Fuel Throughput charges.

DIAL’s focus on operational excellence and customer experience backed by a strong
organizational culture has helped sustain its leadership position in Airport Service
Quality. DIAL was once again recognized as the Best Airport for service quality in the
region by ACI and Best Airport in Central Asia by Skytrax.

Capacity augmentation_initiatives FY 2020-21

Although the recent coronavirus outbreak and subsequent lockdown has posed some
major chalienges, DIAL has continued its focus on its expansion plan of airside
infrastructure and terminal capacity as per the approved Master Development Plan in
order to cater to the future growth in passenger and air traffic. The Phase 3A
expansion includes, among others, expansion of Terminal 1 and Terminal 3,
construction of a fourth runway along with enhancement of airfields and construction
of taxiways, which will expand capacity of IGI Airport to 1060 Mn passengers annually.

Key highlights on the developments:

=  Contractor - L&T and PMC - Turner, fully mobilized and commenced work on Phase
3A expansion plan. Cumulative physical progress as on March 31, 2021 is ~42%.

=  Substantiat progress made on Airside, Landside and Terminal detail design
development despite the lockdown imposed from March 2020 and migration of
labor,

» [ndia‘s first General Aviation Terminal that can cater to 150 private movements
daily and handle over 50 passengers every hour was commissioned in FY 2020-
21.

Fundraising for Expansigon Project:

To meet the anticipated funding needs of the expansion project and to repay the Uss
289 million bond maturing in FY 2021-22, DIAL raised an amount of US$ 450 miliion
in the form of overseas certified Green bonds at an attractive interest rate of 6.25%,
having maturity in the year 2026. As a measure of prudence, the entire foreign
currency exposure was hedged, to complete the fundraising at an effective cost of
11.60%. DIAL's intrinsic focus of sustainability in its’ entire airport plan including
construction of Terminals and Cross Taxi-way ensured that the deployment of the



funds raised by the Green Bonds met the requisite sustainability criteria for Green
Bonds.

Passenger convenience initiatives FY 2020-21

» DIAL in collaboration with MoCA developed Air Suvidha portal which is a
contactless solution for all international passengers coming to India.

= Launched India‘'s first airport COVID testing facility for arriving international
passengers.

= Implemented contactless check-in through Scan & Fly, i-CUSS (intelligent CUSS),

-e-BCR (boarding card readers) at terminal.

» Ensured provision of contactless commerce for retail and F&B ordering and
payments.

» Launched Fly Safe Campaign focusing on airport initiatives towards creating a safe
travel environment and educating passengers about their role in battling COVID
by maintaining hand hygiene, mask on & social distance while traveling.

= 24 X 7 real time updates through social media on changing guidelines and helping
passenger through their queries.

= As part of social media responsiveness, IGI Airport achieved First Response Time
of 6 minutes which is best among world airports.

Key Awards and Accolades received in FY 2020-21:

= DIAL has once again emerged as Best Airport in the over 40 million passengers
per annum (MPPA) category in Asia Pacific region by ACI in the Airport Service
Quality Programme {ASQ) 2020 rankings.

= IGI Airport became top airport across the globe in social media outreach - Received
badge from Facebook for real time updates. It also crossed 150k followers on
Twitter.

=  DIAL has won Gold in the Digital & CRM category and a silver in Crisis Management
category for its work in COVID-19 at the Mobexx Awards 2020 by Adgully.

= DIAL has been adjudged 'Runner Up’ for the prestigious 15" BML Munjal Awards
2020 - Business Excellence through learning and development in the Private
Sector Services category.

= IGI Airport has been accredited with ACI’s Airport Health Accreditation (AHA) for
its efforts in providing a safe travel experience to all travelers without any risk to
their health.

« IGI Airport emerged as the world’s 2" *safest’ airport with three other international
airports as per Safe Travel Barometer.

Sustainability Focus

DIAL has always had a strong focus on Sustainability, and has received various awards
and accolades in this regard for many years now,

In FY 2020-21:
= DIAL has become Asia Pacific's first Level 4+ {Transition) accredited airport and

Second Airport Globally under ACI's Airport Carbon Accreditation program,



= DIAL has won the prestigious National Water Award given by the Ministry of Jal
Shakti, Government of India for its pioneering efforts in the field of water
conservation, rain water harvesting and recycling.

» DIAL has won the prestigious ‘Excellent Energy Efficient Unit’ award at National
award of excellence in energy management by CII - Green Business Centre (GBC).

»  DIAL has received ‘National Energy Leader Award’ for the year 2020 which was
the outcome of its consistent performance for the past three years.

2. GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited {GHIAL)

GHIAL is an indirect subsidiary of the Company and its shareholding comprises of GAL
(63%), AAL (13%), Government of Telangana (13%) and MAHB (Mauritius} Private
Limited (11%). It has entered into a long-term agreement to operate, manage and
develop the Rajiv Gandhi International Airport (RGIA) at Hyderabad.

FY 2020-21 marked a year of the pandemic, adversely impacting people’s health and
country’s economic situation as @ whole. This led to an overall dampening of consumer
sentiment, which impacted both air passenger and carge traffic across the country.
However, building on the strength of its strategic geographic location, proactive steps
to recover from the pandemic, GHIAL passenger traffic in FY 2020-21 recovered to a
level of 37% of traffic in FY 2019-20.

During the first quarter of FY 2020-21, the cutbreak of COVID-19 pandemic eventually
led to a complete nationwide lockdown in April 2020 including cessation of all
commercial aviation activities. This was a major disruption that affected the business
and operations throughout FY 2020-21, but the management took and continue to
take all necessary steps to safeguard staff heaith and business interests through the
pandemic situation and to capitalize on the eventual recovery in the coming months
and years.

It is worth mentioning that during these COVID challenging times, GHIAL played a
major role in the nation's fight against pandemic and became an important hub for
handling and distribution of medical supplies including vaccines throughout India.

Despite a steep slowdown in the general economic environment and in India’s aviation
market during FY 2020-21, the shutdown of air traffic during April-May 2021 on
account of COVID-19 pandemic, RGIA took a number of steps required to recover
quickly and was one of the leading airports driving the passenger traffic recovery.

Passenger traffic at RGIA was 8.0 Mn in FY 2020-21, witnessing a de-growth of 63%
over previous year with 85% de-growth in international traffic and 58% de-growth in
domestic traffic. During the year, GHIAL handled 86,295 Air Traffic Movements (ATMs)
and clocked 1,12,744 MT cargo volume with an overall de-growth of 23% over
previous year, driven by 24% de-growth in the domestic cargo and 22% in
internationat cargo. Despite the pandemic, Cargo has done relatively well on an overall
basis.



Due to the COVID pandemic the connectivity to varicus domestic and international™”
destinations was impacted. However, by end of the year, RGIA was connected to 58
domestic destinations as compared to pre-COVID level of 55 domestic destinations.
Although the international scheduled operations remain suspended during the year,
by the end of the year 10 international destinations were connected under Air Bubble
arrangements as compared to 16 pre-COVID destinations.

Despite the COVID pandemic, by end of FY 2020-21, RGIA has connected to 5 new
domestic destinations including Jagdalpur, Calicut, Imphal, Rajkot and Darbhanga. In
the financial year under review, RGIA has facilitated the operation of its first ever
ultra-long haul non-stop flight from Myderabad to Chicago ("HYD” to "ORD") through
Air India and established a direct route connectivity to Male” ("MLE"), Maldives through
Go Air.

On the cargo front, Ethiopian Cargo started operating to Hyderabad connecting Addis
Ababa, an important gateway to the African Market. Apart from the scheduled
services, many airlines like Emirates, Qatar, British Airways, Saudi Arabian, Indigo,
Spicejet commehced Passenger to Cargo services (P2C). Qatar airways and Lufthansa/
Aerologic increased their capacity ex-Hyderabad.

Given the strong business fundamentals, strategic and competitive advantages and
initiatives to sustain and grow the business, GHIAL is well-positioned to return to the
growth path as soon as the situation resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic returns
to normalcy.

Capacity augmentation initiatives FY 2020-21

As part of the capital expansion works, RGIA made further progress on airside
resources and commissioned additional 31 stands. These stands are in addition to 24
remote stands commissioned during FY 2019-20. Apart from aircraft parking stands,
significant progress was made in taxiway construction, upgradation and
commissioning. Further, RETs (Rapid Exit Taxiways) have been commissioned in Q1
FY 2021-22. In addition, construction is under progress for a dedicated tunnel for
movement of Ground Support Equipment (GSE) under Kilo/Kilo-1 taxiways. Expansion
works for the main Passenger Terminal Building (PTB} made swift progress with about
60% completion during the year in spite of lockdown conditions and labor issues.
Overall, as on March 31, 2021, cumulative physical progress stood at ~58%.

Followed by environmental clearance from the Ministry of Environment, Forests and
Climate Change for future capacity expansion to 50 MPPA, GHIAL also secured CFE
(Consent for Establishment) for 40 MPPA.

Fund raising for Expansion Project

To meet the funding reguirements of the expansion project, 5 year Notes of USD 300
Mn were issued at a coupon of 4.75% in FY 2020-21 (2026 Notes). As a measure of



prudence, the entire foreign currency exposure is hedged and arrived at an all-in
landed cost of 9.65% for 2026 Notes. With the aforesaid fund raising, the expansion
project has achieved financial closure.

Passenger convenience initiatives FY 2028-21

RGIA focuses on creating and delivering a weli-rounded shopping, retail and
commercial services experience to the passengers and visitors at the airport, which in
turn provides a strong and fast-growing source of revenue for the airport.

Highlights from FY 2020-21 include:

» Mapmygenome - COVID test center was opened at interim international
departure terminal (IIDT) to help passengers with RT-PCR tests;
»  Construction of an entertainment center (Aerc Plaza) is in progress.

Despite the challenges faced due to the pandemic, RGIA added 15 new
stores/concepts and outlets including renowned brands such as Shoppers Stop, Krispy
Kreme, Foody’s, Dadu’s etc. further improving the range of choices available to the
passengers and driving further growth in non-aero income for GHIAL.

During FY 2020-21, RGIA launched many promotions, campaigns and a Raffle draw
for growth of sales and improvement in customer service.

Continuing with relentless focus to offer the best possible service quality and
passenger experience and achieve world-class levels of operational efficiency, several
new milestones were attained during the year.

Some of the highlights from FY 2020-21 are as below:

» The secondary runway was made operational.

« Rehabilitation works of Main Runway have been completed.

=  Renewal of Consent for Operation order for 12 MPPA by the Telangana State
Pollution Control Board {TSPCB) of the Airport Operations was successful.

= Telangana State Ground Water Department (TSGWD) accorded permission to
GHIAL for the Rainwater Recharge Plan and Ground Water Abstraction from the
existing wells at RGIA till 2026.

»  TSPCB granted Consent for Establishment (CFE) for 40 MPPA airport expansion
project and Multisector SEZ operation.

= FEight E-boarding scanners at entry gates were commissioned. This helps in
seamless boarding experience to the passengers.

» For Safe travel during the COVID pandemic, all 10 ATRS (Automatic tray
retrieval system) & 2 standalone XBIS (X-ray baggage inspection system) have
heen converted from chemical to UV sanitizing technology. Also, non-contact
elevator access based on infrared sensor techneology was installed.



Key Awards and Accolades:

Featured in the Best Regional Airports and the Best Airport Staff in India and
Central Asia 2020 categories in the Skytrax World Airports Awards. The Airport
was also ranked Fourth and Eighth in the Best Airport in Central Asia and India
and Best Regional Airports in Asia categories respectively, in the Skytrax World
Airports 2020 Awards and Best Regional Airports in Asia respectively with the
overall 71* ranking in the world;

Achieved the ACI Airport Health Accreditation ("AHA") in recognition of its
efforts towards safety of airport passengers and all the personnel working at
the airport;

ACI World’s “Voice of Customer” recognition for its continuous efforts in
gathering passenger feedback, understanding customer needs and ensuring
customer voice was heard during the pandemic in 2020;

Won the ACI Airport Service Quality ("ASQ") survey award. RGIA has been
adjudged as the ‘Best Airport by Size and Region’ in Asia-Pacific region for 2020,
in its category of 15-25 MPPA.

Sustainability Focus

GHIAL has always had a strong focus on Sustainability, and has received various
awards and accolades in this regard for many years now. In FY 2020-21, GHIAL:

Received Airport Council International’s ("ACI") Asia-Pacific Green Airports
Platinum Recognition 2020, for efficiency in water management practices;
Won the "National Energy Leader" and "Excellent Energy Efficient Unit"” Awards
instituted by the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) in recognition of
energy-efficiency initiatives and best practices;

Awarded the Green Airports Recognition 2021-Gold award by the ACI in the
Category: 15 to 35 MPPA, Asia - Pacific region in February 2021, in recognition
of its efficient air quality management standards,

Won the prestigious CII - Green Power Performance Excellence Awards 2020 in
the "Ground Mounted Solar” Category;

Won the Gold Award in “Telangana State Energy Conservation Awards — 20207
(“"TSECA”"} in recognition of energy conservation measures.

3. GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation (GMCAC)

GMCAC, a ]V between GMR group (40%) and Megawide Corporation (60%), entered
into a concession agreement with Mactan Cebu International Airport Authority for
development and operation of Mactan Cebu Internationat Airport (Cebu airport) for a
period of 25 years. GMCAC took operational responsibility of the airport in November
2014 and has now been successfully operating the airport, since then.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on Mactan-Cebu International
Airport with annual traffic dropping significantly in 2020. The passenger footfall for
2020 was recorded at ~2.7 Mn, constituting of ~1.9 Mn Domestic passengers and



~0.8 Mn International passengers, thereby witnessing a 78% de-growth in overall
traffic from 2019, COVID-19 has acted as a major deterrent towards travel especially
since ~2.4 Mn passenger footfall (~90% of the total 2020 footfall) was recorded in
the first quarter in 2020.

With the loss of traffic, GMCAC undertook a debt restructuring exercise to avoid stress
on its cash flows. USD 120 Mn of debt was deferred (principal) to 2024 to avoid stress
on the cash flows during COVID-induced low traffic period. Along with this, GMCAC
successfully rightsized the organization by affecting a significant rationatization in both
outsourced and organic staff. The combined demand for international (departure) and
domestic (both departure and arrival) travel at MCIA is being fulfilled from Terminal 1
starting in November 2020 leading to savings. Further, specific initiatives were
undertaken to reduce power, and water consumption ieading to additional savings.

Owing to capacity mitation in Manila (NAIA) due to limited covid testing facilities,
MCIA commissioned the first airport-dedicated Covid-19 testing lab on June 21, 2020
which was completed in 26 days from the start of construction as a measure of support
to the government in providing additional capacity support for the safe return of
overseas Filipinos. Until March 31, 2021, the lab successfully handled 41,300 returning
Filipinos, with an average testing time of 15.6 hours, which is the fastest in the
country.

Scheduled domestic services resumed in June 2020, with traffic ramping up as travel
restrictions across the Philippines continue to be eased. MCIA has witnessed a
sequential increase in traffic, with the traffic recovery being led by domestic travel.
While in June 2020, MCIA was capturing ~3% of the monthly pre-covid traffic levels,
in March 2021, it captured ~8% of the monthly pre-covid traffic. With domestic traffic
on a sequential rise, coupled with on-going vaccinations and an upcoming national
election and with Cebu’s international markets well on their way to recovery, the
Management is confident that traffic shall rebound sooner than in other tourist-centric
destinations.

GAL and its Greek partner, TERNA, signed a concession agreement with the Greek
State for design, construction, financing, operation, maintenance of the new
international airport of Heraklion at Crete in Greece. The concession period is 35 years
including the design and construction phase of five years. Concession has commenced
on February 06, 2020. With the award of this contract, GMR became the first Indian
airport operator to win a bid to develop and operate an Eurcpean airport. This is also
GMR Group's first foray in the European Union region.

Highlights of FY 2020-21.

There has been significant progress on the various construction related activities.
Major tranche of land has been handed over to the project company and earthworks
for the airport side and connecting road network have progressed well. Development
studies like archaeological investigations, geotechnical studies and Topographic



surveys have been substantially completed. Construction of project site office and
warehouse has been completed. EPC contractor has mobilized the requisite manpower
and machinery. All the works are being carried out with strict adherence to COVID-19
protocols and other safety measures. The Airport Company has received 1SO 2001
certification during this year.

Greek State has been extending necessary support for project implementation. Atrport
has received the entire State grant of Euro 180 million as envisaged under the
concession agreement. Overall, the construction activity is progressing well despite
chatlenges due to COVID-19.

At GGIAL, Construction and Development works resumed at site in February 2020
post the reaffirmation of Environmental Clearance to the Project by Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India.

Conseqguently, an extension of time was sought to perform various obligations under
the Concession Agreement by 634 days on account of various delays and restraints,
which has been granted by the Government of Goa. Accordingly, the following revised
timelines were approved:

Koy Timelines . Original D: ised Dat
Revised Commercial Operation Date 03M Sep 2020 30t May 2022
Revised Annual Premium Payment Date 04* Sep 2022 31 May 2024
Revised Concession Period date (3™ Sep 2057 301 May 2059

As a result of delays due to COVID, the project Commercial Operation Date ("COD")
has been further extended to August 2022.

The Ceonstruction & Development works at site were halted from March 22, 2020 due
to COVID-19 implications / lockdown as per the directives of Government of India
{Gol) & Government of Goa (GoG).

» The work is now in progress at site with physical activities being carried out
simultaneously at multiple sites of the project including Runway, Earthwork, ATC
& ATCTB, PTB Work, Admin Building, Utility Building, Storage Tank, MSSR Building
and Boundary wall.

» The project has achieved Milestone III in terms of both financial and physical
progress within the agreed timelines as defined in Concession Agreement and have
achieved physical progress of 28.26% as of March 31, 2021.

» Time over run of ~ 2 years has led to Cost Overrun and the project cost has been
revised from INR 1,900 Crores to INR 2,615 Crores. The same has been approved
by Lead Bank / Lending Consortium and also cleared by GoG.

»  Gazette notification declaring the upcoming expressway connecting NH66 to Mopa
Airport as National Highway (NH1665) is published by Ministry of Road Transport
and Highways {MoRTH) and is included under “Bharatmala Pariyojna”. The

expressway is expected to be operational along with the COD of GGIAL.



Airport Adjacencies:

While GMR Airports has emerged as a strong platform for both India and International
concessions, as part of Group's platform strategy, it is proposed to strengthen the
same with the addition of various adjacency businesses.

GAL launched operations at Kannur Duty Free in February, 2021. It was a significant
achievement do so in the face of the raging Pandemic. The launch was well-timed as
the airport was witnessing rising number of repatriation flights from the Middle Fastern
countries and was very well received by the passengers,

Group also participated and qualified for Bali duty free tender, in line with its strategy
of strengthening the platforms with adjacency businesses. It was our first ever
gualification in an international duty free tender and is a testimony of cur technical
capabilities. However, during the bid stage, the Group assessed that COVID has
significantly created uncertainty in the traffic recovery and sales. Given the
assessment of the investment risk of the Ball duty free on account of the uncertainty
of traffic recovery, a considered call was taken to withdraw from the process.

The Group is currently evaluating multiple opportunities in the cargo, duty free and
services business across the geographies and believe that in the short to medium term

it will have more adjacency businesses to add to the overall portfolio.

6. Clark International Airport, Philippines

GMR Airports successfully compieted construction of new terminal building of Clark
International Airport, Philippines in January 2021. This marked a significant
achievement for GMR Group as it delivers the second project in Philippines after
developing Mactan Cebu International Airport. Despite the challenge posed by COVID
pandemic, the joint venture of GMR Group and Megawide Construction Corporation
delivered a new passenger terminal building of 112,000 square meters in a record
time of 24 months. The airport will now handle 8 Million passengers per anaum as
compared to earlier 4 Million passengers per annum.

The EPC construction contract was awarded following an International Competitive
Bidding in December 2017. GMR-Megawide had outbid six others in the fray with the
lowest bid and signed the agreement with BCDA, which is a government-owned and
controtled corporation under the Office of the President of the Philippines in January
2018.



7. Airport Land Development (ALD)

Aerocity Delhi

During the FY 2020-21, ALD's business revenues were marginally impacted despite
constrained market conditions and operational & construction challenges. In light of
the Covid pandemic affecting the Hospitality sector severely, ALD offered restructured
payment measures to its Hospitality District Clients in Aerocity Delhi, basis which
entire receivables were recovered in a timely manner. The year also witnessed key
progress on various approvals for the developments constituting the next phase of
growth at Aerocity 2.0 including DUAC approval of the Ptan and Concept Master Plan
approvals for two new districts in Aerocity.

The pandemic enforced lockdowns and restrictions, which resulted in shortage of
labour and materials thus posing new challenges for the operations and infrastructure
upgradation works at Hospitality District. Contingency plans were effectuated to
ensure continuity of operations and project works with minimal disruptions to business
and due care for our execution teams and stakeholders on ground. ALD continued to
focus on identifying, planning and preparing for new development and monetization
opportunities at Aerocity Delhi through a spectrum of new asset classes including
social infrastructure led developments and other ancillary revenue opportunities.

Aerocity Hyderabad

ALD Hyderabad started the year with completion of a landmark 65 Acre deal with ESR
for formation of a 70:30 1V for development of a Warehousing and Industrial Park at
Hyderabad Airport. During the pandemic year, ALD achieved a breakthrough in leasing
~ 50,000 sft in Aero Tower-2 comprising of 2.2 lakhs sft leasable area. The year also
witnessed addition of the Social Infrastructure segment in the Hyderabad Airport City
ecosystem with successful closure of transaction with Saint Mary’s Educational Society
for 15 acres land parcel for K-12 school. New asset classes including Co-Living and
Senior Living were identified to be added to the Hyderabad ALD ecosystem and market
reach out commenced during year under review.

In order to accelerate the development and monetization at ALD Hyderabad, Master
Plan refresh was initiated for approx. 350 acres of landside development. In view of
the fean operations at Novotel Hyderabad on account of Covid year, a conscious call
was taken by the Senior Management to initiate the renovation works at Novotel.
Further, in light of the growing number of clients in the Hyderabad Airport City, ALD
set up a City Management Division under GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited (GHAL)
to provide estate and facility management services for ALD Assets and Clients.



Aerocity Gea

The Mopa, Goa Airport land development is envisaged as a hospitality-retail-wellness-
entertainment destination spread across 230 acres of commercial land at the airport.
Master planning and Design works were undertaken during the FY 2020-21 for the
first phase of development.

I1. Energy Sector

Energy Sector companies had operating capacity of around 3,050 MWs of Coal, Gas,
Liquid fuel and Renewable power plants in India, 180 MWs under construction and
around 1,775 MWs of power projects are under various stages development, besides
a pipeline of other projects. The Energy Sector has a diversified portfolio of thermal
and hydro projects with a mix of merchant and long term Power Purchase Agreements
(PPA).

Following are the major highlights of the Energy Sector:
A. Operational Assets:
Generation:

1. GMR Warora Eneray Limited {GWEL) — 600 MW

=  GWEL, subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited, operates a 600 MW (2x300) coal fired
power plant at Warora, Maharashtra.

*  Plant has a Fuel Supply Agreement (FSA) of 1.65 Million Tonnes per annum, 1.3
Million tonnes with South Eastern Coalfields Limited (SECL) and 0.35 Miilion
tonnes with Western Coalfields Limited (WCL).

» During the year, the Plant has achieved deemed availability of 98% and Gross
Plant Load Factor (PLF) of 75%.

» GWEL was able to meet the normative availability of 85% for all three PPAs.

» GWEL also sold 41.75 MUs in Indian Energy Exchange (IEX) against 10 MW NOC
obtained for sales on Exchange.

=  81% linkage materialization was achieved for FY 2020-21.

»  138% Ash Utilization was achieved by tying with nearby Cement Industries,
NHAI for Fly Ash & various Brick Manufacturers for Bottom Ash.

= Plant was awarded with many prestigious awards during the year, some of them
are as below:

o “Naticnal Energy Conservation award-2020” from Ministry of power,
goverpment of India. This was the second time GWEL has won this award.
GWEL bagged the “National award for Excellence in Energy Management”
from CII for 3" consecutive year and emerged as “National Energy leader”.
o In a First in India, GWEL Water management system is certified for ISO

46001:2019 by M/s BVCI.

o GWEL successfully carried out ‘Workplace Assessment for Safety and

Hygiene’ {(WASH) assessment in line with the standard developed by M/s
Quality Council of India in view of COVID-19. Audit was conducted by M/s
BvV(I.

e}



2. GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL) - 1,050 MW.:

*  GKEL, subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited, has developed 1,050 MW (3x350)
coal fired power plant at Kamalanga Village, Odisha.

« The plant is supplying power to Haryana through PTC India Limited, to
Odisha through GRIDCO Limited and to Bihar through Bihar State Power
Holding Company Limited.

»  85% of the capacity is tied-up in long term PPAs.

*  GKEL has Fuel Supply Agreement (FSA) for 2.14 MTPA firm linkage from
Mahanadi Cealfields Limited (MCL). GKEL secured another 1.5 MTPA long-
term FSA under SHAKTI linkage.

*»  GKEL was successful in bidding for SHAKTI B III linkage - secured 0.4 MTPA,

= Materialization of linkage was 100%.

* GKEL met 100 % compliance for all three PPAs.

« During the year, the Plant has achieved deemed availability of 24% and
Gross Plant Load Factor {(PLF) of 77%.

*  116% Ash Utilization was achieved by tying with NHAI for Fly Ash & various
Brick Manufacturers.

* Plant was awarded with many prestiglous awards during the year, some of
them are as below:

o National Award for "Excellence in Energy Management” by CIL
“CII Encon Award-2020" by ClI-Eastern Region.

o “Environment Excellence Award - 2020” in Large Industry Category by
ICC.

o GKEL retained 55 certificate in “Utkrisht” category by NPC.

» GEL owns the 220 MW combined cycle barge mounted power plant at
Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh,

» GEL has found a buyer for the barge and transaction closure activities
including hand over of barge to buyer is currently under progress.

4. GMR Vemaairi Power Generation Limited (GVPGL) - 388 MW.:

GVPGL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, operates a 388 MW natural gas-fired
combined cycle power plant at Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh.

GVPGL did not operate in the last financial year due to scarcity of gas.

Efforts and discussions with government is on for arriving at possible options

for operating the plant -

o Bundled bids wherein Renewable projects participate along with
conventional sources to provide Round the Clock (RTC) power. This will help
in addressing issue of intermittent Renewable generatlon and maintaining
Grid stability also.

o Through relaunching of e-RLNG scheme.



5.

In addition to above, legal case is being pursued for allowing Deep Water Gas~
under the existing PPA.

GMR Raijahmundry Eneray Limited (GREL) - 768 MW;

GREL is a 768 MW (2 x 384 MW) combined cycle gas based power project at
Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh.

7.

GREL already executed a resolution plan with the lenders for the outstanding
debt of Rs.2,353 Crore.
Efforts are being made to secure gas supply to operationalize the plant.

GMR Guiarat Solar Power Private Limited {(GGSPPL), Charanka Village, Gujarat:

GGSPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, operates 25 MW Solar power plant
at Charanka village, Patan district, Gujarat,

GGSPL has entered into 25 year PPA with Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited for
the supply of entire power generation.

GGSPL attained commercial operation on March 4, 2012,

M/s. Solarig Gensol has been awarded O&M contract of the Plant for a period of
5 years from April 2017 to March 2022.

Plant achieved a gross PLF of 16.8% for FY 2020~21 and recorded operating net
revenue {post straight lining) of Rs. 46 Crore for FY 2020-21.
Plant has maintained 1S5S0 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001 certifications since

June 2015.

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited (GRSPPL), Rajam:

GRSPPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, commissioned a 1 MW Solar power plant
in Rajam, Andhra Pradesh since January 2016.

The Company has signed a 25 year PPA with both GMR Institute of Technology
(700KW) and GMR Varalakshmi Care Hospital (300KW) for the sale of power
generated.

Plant achieved gross PLF of 14.8% for FY 2020-21 and reccrded net revenue of
Rs.0.89 Crore for the FY 2020-21.

Projects:

GBHHPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is implementing 180 MW hydro power plant on
the river Ravi at Chamba District, Himachal Pradesh.

GBHHPL has started supplying power under its PPA with DIAL by procuring
power from alternate sources through GMR Energy Trading Limited.



GBHHPL also entered into a long term power purchase agreement of 25 years
for a capacity of remaining 60 MW with UPPCL. Thus, 100% capacity is now tied
up as per the above mentioned PPAs.

GBHHPL had also executed the Connectivity Agreement with HP Power
Transmission Corporation Limited and Long Term Access Agreement with Power
Grid Corporation of India Limited (PGCIL) for evacuating power outside
Himachal Pradesh.

Project is in advance stage of construction with 98% of work having been
completed. After successful completion of excavation of 16 km long Hydraulic
Retention Time (HRT), all geological uncertainties stand mitigated. On
Electromechanical (E&M) works front also, substantial progress has been
achieved with overall compietion of 93%. Hydro mechanical works are being
carried out as per availability of Civil works fronts and overall 90% works have
been completed so far.

Transmission line works for power evacuation have also progressed significantly
in line with the scheduted COD.

. GMR Upper Karnali Hydro Power Public Limited (GUKPL) - 900 MW:

GUKPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is developing 900 MW Upper Karpali Hydroelectric
Project {(HEP) located on river Karnali in Dailekh, Surkhet and Achham Districts

of Nepal.

Post execution of Project Development Agreement (PDA), several key activities
have been completed.

Technical design of the Project has been finalized post detalled technical
appraisal by a seven-member Panel of Experts {empaneled with IFC} and
Hydraulic model studies. TCE has been appointed as Owner’s Engineer.
Bangladesh Power Development Board has issued LoA for a 500 MW power
supply agreement with GUKPL in January 2020.

EPC Bids have been received and first round technical discussions have been
completed. Commercials discussions are continuing.

Total land identified for the Project comprises of forest land and private land.
As for private land, negotiation has been completed and MoU has been executed
with Rehabilitation Action Plan (RAP) committees for acquisition and approx.
10 Ha of private land has been acquired till March 2020, Whereas for forest
land, Long Term Deed of Agreement {post GoN Cabinet approval) was executed
with Department of Forest (DoF). Already acquired 12.45 Ha of forest land for
infra works and tree cutting work were completed.

Power Evacuation is proposed through 400KV D/C transmission line from Bus
bar of project to Bareilly Pooling point of PGCIL in Uttar Pradesh, India. Nepal
portion of the transmission line {from project’s Bus bar up to Indo-Nepal border)
to be developed by Karnali Transmission Company Private Limited. (KTCPL), a



C.

GMR Group Company and Indian portion up to Bareilly will be developed by
Gol.

. GMR _(Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private Limited {GBHPL) - Badrinath

GBHPL, a subsidiary of GEL, is in the process of developing a 300 MW
hydroelectric power plant on Alakhnanda river in the Chamoli District of
Uttarakhand. The project received all major statutory clearances like
Environmental and Techno Economic concurrence from Central Electricity
Authority (CEA).

Implementation Agreement was executed with the Government of Uttarakhand.
However, the project construction is still on hold as per the Order dated May 7,
2014 of the Hon’ble Supreme Court on 24 hydro electric projects in Uttarakhand
which include this project. ’

Expert body of MoEF has recommended Alakhnanda Hydro Electric Project
(AKHEP) for implementation along with 4 more projects. MoP/ GoU accepted to
adopt the MoEF Expert Body recommendations, Separate petition has been filed
by GBHPL. before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to expedite decision,

GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited (GEHPPLY - 225 MW

GMR Londa Hydropower, a subsidiary of GGAL, is developing a 225 MW
hydropower project in East Kameng district in Arunachal Pradesh. The project
has completed the Detailed Project Report ("DPR")} and received techno-
economic concurrence from the Central Electricity Authority. Further, EIA
studies have also been completed.

Mining Assets:

PT Goiden Energy Mines Thbk (PT GEMS):

GMR Group through its overseas subsidiary, GMR Coal Resources Pte. Limited,
holds 30% stake in PT GEMS, a group company of Sinarmas Group, Indonesia. PT
GEMS, a limited liability company, is listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange. PT
GEMS is carrying out mining operations in Indonesia through its subsidiaries which
own coal mining concessions in South Kalimantan, Central Kalimantan and
Sumatra. PT GEMS is also involved in coal trading through its subsidiaries.

Coal mines owned by PT GEMS and its subsidiaries have total resources of more
than 3.0 billion tons and Joint Ore Reserves Committee {JORC) certified reserves
of approximately 1 billion MT of thermal coal. GMR Group has a Coal off take
Agreement with PT GEMS which entitles GMR to off take coal until November 2041,



PT GEMS have been consistently increasing its coal volumes and its operations
have been robust and consistently profitable. During 2020, amid the weakening
domestic and global demand and prices due to lockdowns and social restrictions
imposed by the various countries, the company has successfully managed its
costs. During 2020, PT GEMS produced 33.46 miilion tonnes of coal which
translates to approximately 8.54% growth as compared to previous year. The
sales volumes during 2020 were ~ 34 Mn tonnes (9.5% increase) as against the
total sales of 31 Mn tonnes during the previous year. PT GEMS earned a profit
after tax of USD 96 Million, during 2020 as compared to USD &7 Million during
2019, For the year 2020, PT GEMS declared total dividends of USD 125 Million. In
addition, in August 2020 PT GEMS also declared a final dividend of USD 53 Million
for the year 2019. For the year 2021, PT GEMS has already declared an interim
dividend of USD 75 Million.

III. Transportation and EPC Sector

Group’s Transportation business under its subsidiary GMR Highways Limited currently
comprises of four operating highways, after successfully handing over of two projects
back to NHAI on completion of their Concession period in FY 2018-20.

The EPC segment comprises of Dedicated Freight Corridor Projects in the States of
Uttar Pradesh, Haryana and Punjab. This is in addition to the Rail Vikas Nigam Limited
projects in Jhansi, Uttar Pradesh and Hyderabad, Telangana.

Highways

The Highways portfolio is a healthy mix of two BOT (Annuity) and two BOT (Toil)
projects with a total operating length of 1,460 lane kilometers.

During FY 2020-21, both the toll projects were affected due to the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic and in case of Ambala Chandigarh Highway additionally due to farmer’s
agitation in Punjab. Though there was a significant dip in traffic during lockdown in
March and April 2020, the traffic resumed normalcy by September 2020. NHAI has
also released a policy circular for compensation to BOT (Toll) concessionaires who
have been affected due to COVID-19 pandemic, to which Group’s Highway Secter
Companies have also applied for. Due to ongoing farmer's agitation in Punjab and
Haryana, the tolling in Ambala - Chandigarh Highway is stopped since October 2020.
On the positive side, implementation of fastag has improved collection efficiency at
the toll projects.

During the vyear, major maintenance was carried for 54 Kms in Hyderabad -
Vijayawada project and 30 Kms in Pochanpalili project. This will improve the riding
guality of the surface and will provide the users a safe and high quality ride. During
the year, all street lights in Ambala — Chandigarh project were converted to LED. It is



worthy to note that Hyderabad - Vijayawada project secured Green Highway award
from MoRTH during FY 2020-21.

Stronger Balance Sheet and Liquidity generation as well as expenditure control are
the key areas which are being focused to withstand these tough times and to tap
appropriate growth opportunities. During FY 2020-21, significant progress has also
been made in ongoing arbitrations against various Government agencies.

EPC

Pursuant to the strategic decision taken to pursue EPC opportunities beyond Group
Companies and consequent to the Group's entry into Railway Projects during FY 2013-
14, significant progress has been achieved in the construction of two Dedicated Freight
Corridor Corporation (DFCC) projects from New Bhavpur to Deen Dhayal Upadhyay
Junction (Package 201 and 202) in the State of Uttar Pradesh and from Ludhiana -
Khurja - Dadri (Package 301 and 302) in the States of Haryana, Uttar Pradesh and
Punjab. More than 70% of DFCC projects {Package 201 and 202); 51% of DFCC
package 301 and 79% of package 302 have been completed.

Both projects of Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL} have been completed during the FY
2020-21 and Multi-modal Transport System (MMTS) project has been handed over to
RVNL post sanction by the Commissioner of Railway Safety.

IV. Urban Infrastructure Sector

The Group is developing a 2,100 acre multi product Special Investment Region {SIR)
at Krishnagiri, near Hosur in Tamil Nadu. The objective is to form an integrated
industrial cluster with large, medium and small-scale units with the concept of ‘live
work learn play’ and ‘walk to work’. GMR Group has also developed Kakinada SEZ as
a Port-based Industrial park spread over 10,000 acres which is situated in the East
Godavari district, Andhra Pradesh. However, during the FY 2020-21 the Group had
signed definitive agreement for sale of its entire 51% stake in Kakinada SEZ Limited
to Aurobindo Realty & Infrastructure Private Limited and received entire upfront
consideration subsequent to the Financial year end.

GMR Krishnagiri Special Investment Region (GKSIR)

GMR Group is setting up a Special Investment Region at Hosur, Tamil Nadu. GKSIR is
situated strategically at Hosur on the tri-junction of Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and
Karnataka borders and also on the Auto corridor of Chennai - Bangalore - Pune
Highway.

The location provides unique advantage of muiti-modal connectivity with National and
State Highways and a railway line running alongside. The SIR at Hosur plans to house
industrial clusters of Automotive & Ancillary, Defence & Aerospace, Precision



Engineering, Electronics & Electrical, Textile and Food Processing along with necessary
social infrastructure. The SIR is being developed in a phased manner.

Project Progress:

In 2019 GKSIR signed the JV agreement with Tamil Nadu Industrial Development
Corporation (TIDCQ) giving the much needed boost to the project. As per the
agreements, TIDCO would provide assistance to GKSIR in obtaining necessary
statutory/regulatory approvals, support in procurement & rectassification of lands for
the project, support in various infrastructure development work and assistance in
marketing the project efc.

During the year, GKSIR was on course for development of 275 Acres in Phase 1A and
had obtained necessary approvals from Director of Town & Country Planning (DTCP),
Environment Clearance {EC) from the Ministry of Environment & Forests (MoEF) and
Consent to Establish {CtE) from Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board (TNPCB).

Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation (TANGEDCQO)} has commissioned
2 substations, 33 KV substation {within Phase 1A) in May 2020 and 230 KV within
Phase 2. Further, the approval of Public Works Department has been obtained for
abstracting 0.46 MLD ground water,

These developments have been instrumental in attracting many Indian and
International companies for setting up their manufacturing facilities.

GKSIR has sold approximately 211 Acres in Phase 1 to an Indian MNC to set up a large
greenfield manufacturing plant. Further, it has entered into a binding term sheet with
the same client for approximately ancther 300 Acres, which shall be concluded shortly.
In addition, itis in continuous discussion with various Indian and Multinational clients
for monetizing developed industrial land. GKSIR is targeting clients from Japan, Korea
and other countries with China+1 strategy. At the same time, it continues to focus on
attracting domestic investments. Currently, GKSIR is taking up development of
balance lands in phased manner and has started drawing plans for pre-project
activities.

Kakinada SEZ Limited

GMR Group has entered into Securities Sale & Purchase Agreement (SSPA) with
Aurobindo Realty & Infrastructure Private Ltd (ARIPL) on September 24, 2020 to divest
its entire 51% stake in Kakinada SEZ Limited {KSEZ} to ARIPL.

Ministry of Commerce has already given approval for this divestment. The entire
commercial construct with respect to the closing, including the extent of payment was
agreed before March 31, 2021 & majority of payments were received by GMR Group
on or before March 31, 2021. Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Group



has divested its entiré stake in KSEZ to ARIPL and received entire upfront
consideration.

Kakinada Gateway Port Limited

As part of the proposed transfer of stake of KSEZ to ARIPL, 74% of equity stake of
Kakinada Gateway Port Limited (KGPL, Subsidiary of KSEZ) would be transferred to
ARIPL and balance 26% equity stake of KGPL would be held by GMR SEZ & Port
Holdings Ltd (GSPHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of GIL, in compliance with Port
Concession Agreement.

Government of Andhra Pradesh has approved this change in constitution/ ownership
of KGPL vide GO MS No. 3 dated March 10, 2021. Subsequently, Andhra Pradesh
Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIIC) vide its letter dated May 20, 2021 has
also approved the change in constitution / ownership of KGPL., The transaction is
expected to be closed by August 2021.

Raxa Security Services Limited (Raxa)

Raxa Security Services Limited, an 1SO 9001: 2015 and 18788:2015 certified
company which was established in July 2005, provides Integrated Security solutions
and technical security to industrial and business establishments.

To enable the delivery of quality services, a State-of-the-Art Security Training
Academy was established with best in class training and administrative infrastructure
on the outskirts of Bangalore.

Raxa employs over 5,500 personnel and has operations across 18 States. All
necessary safety precautions were taken at all client locations te maintain operational
continuity in the wake of COVID-19 pandemic and overcoming the chalienges of the
pandemic. Raxa bagged contracts from some premier clients such as Greenko, Mobis,
Safran, Caparo and some others, thus adding to its repertoire of several prestigious
clients such as TCS, Mylan, Astrazeneca, Strides, JLL, SKH Metals, Welspun, Pathways
School beside the GMR Group Companies.

Further, in view of the pandemic, Raxa Academy has successfully implemented the
hybrid model of online and Academy based training for basic security guard course.
During the year, it also conducted several short duration thematic security courses,
including its flagship Advanced Management Course for senior security professionals
as well as Occupational Health and Safety Course.

Raxa prides itself on being the frontrunner in designing and offering innovative training
programs. In line with this strategy, it is planning to start an industry focused Security
Executive course for graduates te lay the foundation of their professional career in
security vertical with Corporates and private security agencies.
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During the year, Raxa has entered into partnership with several specialized technical
Security solution providers such as Octopus, Westminster, Logically and Exavision to
further enhance its technical security capabilities. It has also established a dedicated
fire division to offer end-to-end fire-fighting sclutions.

In addition, Raxa has ventured into the cyber security sphere and signed MoU with
Information Sharing and Analysis Centre (ISAC) for jointly taking up cyber security
business opportunities.

GMR Aviation Private Limited {GAPL)

GAPL owns and operates one of the best fleet in the country and addresses the growing
needs of charter services. In order to boost revenues and rationalize overhead costs,
GAPL entered into a management contract with Jet Set Go - a general aviation fleet
aggregator, commonly referred to as the "Uber of the Skies”. As per the agreement,
Jet Set Go has taken responsibility for operations and sourcing of external clients for
the use of aircrafts and the business has shown marked improvement over the past
years with 2 aircrafts recording the highest number of hours flown on an annual basis.
All maintenance contracts have also been renegotiated leading to a reduction in costs,
The Group is confident that GAPL will continue on the turnaround path.

Highlights of Direct subsidiaries of the Company:
GMR League Games Private Limited (GLGPL):

The GLGPL subsidiary of the Company entered into Franchisee agreement effective
from May 15, 2017 with Mashal Sports Private Limited- recognized by Amateur
Kabaddi Federation of India (AKFI), for organizing the Kabaddi League con an annual
basis till 2034. As per the terms of the agreement, it has been granted the rights to
own and operate a Kabaddi franchise team, "UP Yoddha” Lucknow {U.P.} in the pro-
kabaddi league.

The performance of UP Yoddha team in the Pro Kabaddi feague has been outstanding,
as it qualified to the knock cut stage (play-offs) of the league in all the three years, it
participated. The PKL season VIII in the year 2020-21 was cancelled due to the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic. The renewal of media/broadcasting rights is due during the
financial year 2021-22.



Highlights of Joint Venture of the Company:

JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited (JGCPL) (formerly GMR Sports Private
Limited):

IGCPL continues to be 50:50 1V of JSW Sports Private Limited and GMR group. The
Company is directly holding 17% stake in JGCPL and the balance 33% is held by the
individual promoter shareholders of the Company.

JGCPL has successfully rebranded the franchise from Delhi Daredevils to Dethi
Capitals, and the season was an unprecedented success on multiple fronts. The team
got a new identity in terms of a new name, logo, anthem and jersey and all these
elements resonated very well with the fans. Due to the pandemic, the IPL 2020 was
not conducted as per the regular schedule and the tournament was relocated to UAE
and was conducted in 3 venues in UAE at Dubai, Abu dhabi and Sharjah. The Season
13 (IPL 2020) was conducted without spectators in the stadium due to the covid
protocols. This has impacted the gate revenues for the season during financial year
2020-21. Delhi Capitals performed extremely well in the IPL 13 (2020). It reached
final of the event and finished runner up for the first time in IPL.

Annual Return:

The Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-7 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended is placed at the website of the Company at
the following link: http://www.holdinggepl.com/gepl-Finangial-Information.aspx.

Corporate Governance;

Your Company endeavors to follow the philosophy of conducting the business with due
compliance of law, rules, regulations and sound internal control systems and
procedures.

Detalls with respect to Board, Key Managerial Personnel and its Committees are as
given below:

1. Directors and Key Managerial Persgnnel:

During the period under review, the following changes took place in the
composition of the Beard of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company:

(a) Changes in Directors:

During the year under review:
« Mrs. Ramadevi Bommidala (DIN:00575031) got appointed as an
Additional Director {Woman Director} effective from August 01, 2020.
e Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi (DIN: 00061699) resigned as Director
(Woman Director) effective from closure of working hours of July 31,
2020; and



e Mrs. Vinita Tarachandani (DIN: 07158537) resigned as Additional
Director under Independent Category effective from May 05, 2020.

During the year under review, no new appointment of Independent Director
took place, hence, statement containing opinion of the Board with regard to
integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency} pursuant to
Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

Further, the existing Independent Director is exempted from undertaking
online proficiency self-assessment test as per Section 150(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 based on his expertise and experience,

(b) Changes in KMPs:

During the year under review:

» Mr. Sreemannarayana K. retired as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company due to superannuation effective from closure of working
hours of July 31, 2020; and

« Mr. Vishal Kumar Sinha was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company effective from August 01, 2020,

. Declaration by Independent Director

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director, Mr. R
Balasubramaniam, confirming that he meets the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify
himseif to continue as Independent Director under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules and RBI Regulations, as applicable.

. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

During the period under review, your Board of Directors met eleven times on April
24, 2020, June 12, 2020, July 31, 2020, August 05, 2020, September 11, 2020,
October 03, 2020, Cctober 26, 2020, December 10, 2020, December 24, 2020,
February 05, 2021 and March 10, 2021.

The interval between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Number of the Board meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year
2020-21 is as follows:

'Number of the Board [Number of the Board
Name of the Director meetings entitled to | meetings actually
| attend attended
Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna i1 7
Rao . e e e
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 11 5
Mr, Grandhi Buchi 11 2
Sanyasi Raju e
M. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 11 10




Mr. Venkata Nageswara 11 6
Rac Boda

Mrs. Grandhi Varalakshmi 3 1
(Resigned w.e.f. July 31,
2020)
Mr, Ramchandran 11 8
Balasubramaniam

Ms. Vinita Tarachandani 1 ;
{Resigned w.e.f. May 05,
2020)

Ms. Ramadevi Bommidala 8 3
{w.e.f. August 01, 2020}

4, Committees:

The Company has following Committees during the financial year 2020-21:
Audit Committee:

The composition of Audit Committee at the beginning of FY 2020-21 was as
follows:

1. Mrs. Vinita Tarachandani- Chairperson
2. Mr. R, Balasubramaniam
3. Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda

The Committee was reconstituted w.e.f. May 05, 2020 due to resignation of Mrs.
Vinita Tarachandani effective from May 05, 2020 as follows:

i. Mr. R, Balasubramaniam- Chalrman
2. Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda
3. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the beginning of
Fy 2020-21 was as follows:

1. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar- Chairman
2. Mr. R. Balasubramaniam

3. Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rac Boda
4. Mrs. Vinita Tarachandani*
*Reasignhed effective from May 5, 2020

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The composition of CSR Committee during the FY 2020-21 was as follows:

. Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao

. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar

Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda
Mr. R. Balasubramaniam

FLN Y I W




The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior  Management is  placed on the  website:
https://www.holdinggepl.com/pdf/GEPL-Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf.

Annual Board Evaluation

The evaluation of the performance of Board for the Financial Year 2020-21 was duly
conducted in accordance with structured process electronically.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their meetings held
on April 29, 2021 has carried out an annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees
and individual directors for the period from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 pursuant
to the provisions of the Act. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board
after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board
composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and
functioning etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after
seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the
composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings etc. The
performance of the individua! directors was evaluated on the basis of the specified
criteria such as, their valuable contribution at the Board and committee meetings on
various aspects like strategy, comptiances and governance requirements.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according fo the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms
of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts/ annual financial statements for the
vear ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure that the laid internal financial
controls were followed and were adequate and operating effectively.



fY the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002808S), had
been re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five
consecutive years pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, to hold office
from the conclusion of the 10™ AGM until the conclusion of 15" AGM of the Company
to be held for the financial year 2021-22, subject to ratification by members at every
AGM of the Company. Subseguent to the amendment of Section 139(1) of Companies
Act, 2013, vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from May 07, 2018,
it is not required to place the item related to ratification of appointment of Statutory
Auditors by members at every Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is
being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Further, pursuant to RBI Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.118/2016-17 for
NBFCs dated September 1, 2016 (as amended), the Board of Directors of the Company
at their meeting held on September 26, 2019 approved rotation of partners of the
Statutory Auditors Audit Firm every three years and the Partner was duly rotated post
three years accordingly.

M/s B. Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants have confirmed by way of a
certificate as their re-appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with the conditions
prescribed in Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that
their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section
141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of fraud reported by Auditors under Section 143{(12):

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have
not reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or
Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report.

Auditors’ Report:

There are no qualifications in the Auditors’ Report on the standalone financial
statements which require any clarification / explanation.

However, the following qualifications appear in the Audit Report on the Consolidated
financial statements and Management's response to the Statutory Auditors’
Qualification / Comment on the Company's consolidated financial statement are as
follows:

a) As stated in note 8b{13)(i) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
the Group has an investment amounting to INR 1,272.32 crore in GMR Energy



Limited ('GEL"), a joint venture company and outstanding ioan amounting to INR
745.12 crore (including accrued interest), recoverable (net of impairment) from
GEL and its subsidiaries and joint ventures as at 31 March 2021. Further, the
Holding Company has an investment in GMR Generation Assets Limited ('GGAL'),
a subsidiary of the Holding Company. GEL has further invested in GMR Vemagiri
Power Generation Limited {('GVPGL’), and GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power
Generation Private Limited {'GBHPL'), both subsidiaries of GEL and in GMR
Kamalanga Energy Limited ("GKEL'), joint venture of GEL. GGAL has further
invested in GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited ('\GREL’), an associate company of
GGAL.

As mentioned in note 8b(13)(iii), GVPGL and GREL have ceased operations due to
continued unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and other factors
mentioned in the said note, and have been incurring significant losses, including
cash losses with consequential erosion of their respective net worth. Further, GREL
had entered into a resolution plan with its lenders to restructure its debt obligations
during the year ended 31 March 2019. The Group has given certain corporate
guarantees for the loans including Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(CRPS’) outstanding in GREL amounting to INR 2,056.59 crores.

The carrying value of the investment of the Group in GEL, to the extent of amount
invested in GVPGL, and the Group’s obligations towards the corporate guarantees
given for GREL are significantly dependent on the achievement of key assumptions
considered in the valuation performed by the exiernal expert particularly with
respect to availability of natural gas, future tariff of power generated and
reatization of claims for losses incurred in earlier periods from the customer as
detailed in the aforementioned note. The Group has provided for its investment in
full in GREL and the management is confident that no further obligation would arise
for the guarantees provided to the lenders against the servicing of sustainable and
unsustainable debts.

As mentioned in note 8b(13}(vi), the management has accounted the investment
in GKEL based on the valuation performed by an external expert using the
discounted future cash flows method which is significantly dependent on the
achievement of certain assumptions considered in aforementioned valuation such
as settlement of disputes with customers and timely realization of receivables,
expansion and optimal utilization of existing capacity, rescheduling/refinancing of
existing loans at lower rates amongst other key assumptions and the uncertainty
and the final outcome of the litigations with the capital creditors as regards claims
against GKEL.

Further, as mentioned in note 8b(13)(iv), GBHPL has stopped the construction of
the 300 MW hydro-based power plant on Alaknanda river, Uttarakhand, since 7
May 2014 on the directions of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ('the Supreme
Court"). The carrying value of the investments in GBHPL is significantly dependent
on obtaining requisite approvals from the Supreme court, environmental



clearances, availability of funding support for development and construction of the
aforesaid power plant and achievement of the other key assumptions made in the
valuation assessment done by an external expert.

Accordingly, owing to the aforementioned uncertainties, we are unable to comment
upon adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the loans, '
non-current investment, and further provisions, if any, required to be made for the
said obligations, and the conseqguential impact on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The above matter pertaining to investment in GVGPL and GKEL has been reported
as a qualification in the audit reports dated 18 June 2021 and 29 May 2021 issued
by other firms of chartered accountants on the standalone financial statements of
GVGPL and GEL respectively. The matters described above for GREL and GBHPL
have been covered as an emphasis of matter in the audit report dated 19 April
2021 and 26 May 2021 issued by ancther firm of chartered accountants on the
standalone financial statements of GREL and GBHPL respectively. Further,
considering the erosion of net worth and net liability position of GKEL, GVPGL and
GREL, the respective auditors of GKEL, GVPGL and GREL have also given a separate
section on material uncertainty related to going concern in the audit reports on the
respective standalone financial statements of aforesaid companies for the year
ended 31 March 2021,

Management’s response to the Statutory Auditors’ Qualification /
Comment on the Company’s consolidated financial statement

Management view is documented in note 8(b}13(ili) of consolidated financial
statement of GIL for March 31, 2021. As detailed in the notes, on account of non-
availability of gas, both GVPGL and GREL plants were not operated for significant
time resuiting in erosion of economic value. Various stakeholders, including Central
and State Governments have formulated schemes for efficient utilization of these
facilities, though these efforts have not brought in permanent resolutions to the
operations. GREL has implemented resolution plan during the year ending March
2019 to restructure its debt obligations which would improve the profitability and
consequently the carrying cost of the company. Further, CERC has passed order
dated January 28, 2020, declaring that natural gas for the purpose of PPA includes
Deep Water Gas and accordingly, GVGPL is entitled to claim capacity charges from
APDISCOMs from October 2016 based on availability declaration for generation of
power on the basis of deep water gas, along with late payment surcharge. GVGPL
has calculated a claim amount of Rs. 741.31 crore which will further improve the
valuation. Taking into account the uncertainties associated with the efforts of
various stakeholders, management is not in a position to assess the impact of these
measures on the carrying values.

Further, Basis the internal assessment and legal opinions, the management of the
Group is confident of obtaining the requisite clearances and favorable orders for



GBHPL and GKEL and based on business plan and a valuation assessment carried
out by an external expert the management of the Group is of the view that the
carrying value of net assets of GBHPL/GKEL by GEL as at March 31, 2021 is
appropriate.

Further, there are certain Matters of Emphasis in the notes to the Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements that forms part of the Independent Auditor's Report
as at March 31, 2021. The same are self-explanatory.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014,
the Company has appointed M/s V. Sreedharan & Associates, Company Secretaries, a
firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report in
Form No.MR-3 is appended as ‘Annexure - 17 to this Report.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Secretarial Auditors” Report.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

Your Company carries its businesses through its several Subsidiaries and Associate/
Joint Venture Companies which are formed either directly or as step-down
subsidiaries.

As on March 31, 2021, your Company has total 131 subsidiary companies, 42
associate companies {inciuding Joint Ventures).

The complete list of subsidiary/stepdown subsidiary companies, associate companies
and joint ventures as on March 31, 2021 is appended as ‘Part A of Annexure - 27 to
this Report.

GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited, GMR Hyderabad Airport Assels
Limited and GMR Infra Ventures LLP became indirect subsidiaries of the Company
during the year under review. The status of GMR Logistics Park Private Limited
changed from subsidiary of the Company to associate of the Company during the year:

Further, with a view to rationalize number of subsidiaries and costs associated with it,
GMR Energy Global Limited, GMR Power Corporation Limited, SIK Powergen Limited,
GMR Coastal Energy Private Limited, GMR Kakinada Energy Private Limited, GMR
Genco Assets Limited, GMR Utilities Private Limited, GADL (Mauritius) Limited, GMR
Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limited (GHAPDL), Interzone Capital Limited
and GMR Sports SA (Pty) Limited have ceased to be subsidiaries during the FY 2020-
21.

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
prepared a consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary
companies, which is forming part of the Annual Report. A statement containing salient



features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AQC-1 is
appended as 'Part B of Annexure ~ 2’ to this Report.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards:

The Company has duly complied with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (§S-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

Changes in Share Capital:

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capitai of
the Company. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 112,55,00,000
(Rupees One Hundred Twelve Crore Fifty Five Lakhs Only) divided intoe 9,50,00,000
(Nine Crore Fifty Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating
to Rs.95,00,00,000 (Rupees Ninety Five Crore Only) and 1,75,50,000 (One Crore
Seventy Five Lakhs Fifty Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only)
each aggregating to Rs. 17,55,00,000 (Rupees Seventeen Crore Fifty Five Lakhs Only}
with effect from June 03, 20165.

During the year under review, the Company had issued and allotted 1,42,85,716
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs,200/- each aggregating to
Rs.300,00,00,360 (Rupees Three Hundred Crore Three Hundred Sixty only) to the
existing shareholders of the Company on Rights Basis as approved by the Board vide
its resolution dated August 26, 2020 and redeemed 18,96,000 (Eighteen Lakhs Ninety
Six Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating to
Rs.1,89,60,000 (Rupees One Crore Eighty Nine Lakhs Sixty Thousand only) held by
GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited, on November 08, 2020.

The total Paid up Share Capital as on March 31, 2021 stands to 9,11,25,092 (Nine
Crore Eleven Lakhs Twenty Five Thousand Ninety Two) Equity shares of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating to Rs.91,12,50,920 (Rupees Ninety One Crore
Twelve Lakhs Fifty Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty only).

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186;

Being NBFC, provisions of Section 186 are not applicable on the Company. Disclosure
on particulars relating to Loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company
during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 are explained and provided in the
notes to accounts of the audited standalone financial statement of the Company.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

Al contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material.
Your Directors draw attention of the members to notes to accounts of financial
statements which sef out related party disclosures.



Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
company:

As on the date of this report your Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not
otherwise dealt with in this Report or in the financial statements of the Company,
which would render any amount stated in the accounts of the Company as misieading.
Further, in the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of a material
and unusual nature has arisen which would affect substantially the results or the
operations of the Company for the financial year in respect of which this report is
made and no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company had occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this report.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the requiators or courts

or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in

future:

There are no orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and the company’s operations in future.

Maintenance of Cost Records:

The Company does not attract the criteria prescribed under Section 148(1) hence Cost
Records are not required to be maintained by the company.

Conservation of energy, technology Absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of energy:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings during the year 2020-21.



The Foreign Exchange Qutgo during the year 2020-21was: B

(Rs. in Lakhs)

e Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Professional and Consultancy 213.20 Nil
Charges

s Total | 213.20 Nil

Risk Management:

The Company has robust business risk management framework capable of identifying
business risks, commensurate with its aclivities. Your Company has a risk
management policy which was formulated by the Board of Directors on November 14,
2016 and was further revised on September 26, 2019. In the opinion of the Board,
presently the Company is not facing business risk which may threaten the existence
of the Company.

The Reserve Bank of India vide Master Direction on Infermation Technology
Framework dated June 08, 2017 has mandated the NBFC Sector to enhance safety,
security, efficiency in processes leading to benefits for NBFCs and their customers.
Accordingly, the Company has undertaken a gap-analysis to ensure safety and
security in the IT related processes and systems of the Company and IS Audit was
conducted under the said requirements.

Further, your Company adheres to the applicable guidelines as per Liquidity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment
Companies as per Master Direction on Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 {as amended), issued by the RBI.

Vigi! Mechanism

Your Company has adopted an Ombudsman process which is the channel for receiving
and redressing employees’ compiaints. Under this policy, your Company encourages
employees to report any fraudulent financial or other information noticed by them, to
the stakeholders, any conduct that results in violation of the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct to management {on an anonymous basis, if employees so desire.)
Likewise, under this policy, we have prohibited discrimination, retaliation or
harassment of any kind against any employees, who based on the employee’s
reasonable belief that such conduct or practice have occurred or are occurring, reports
that information or participates in the said investigation. The Audit Committee
periodically reviews the functioning of this mechanism and there was on such instance
reported during the year under review.

Corporate Sacial Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
9 of the Coempanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("the Act”), the Company has constituted
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) of the Board on October
27, 2016, which was reconstituted on February 15, 2020. CSR Committee is
responsible for formulating and monitoring the CSR policy of the Company. The CSR



Policy may be accessed on the ~€Company’'s website at the link:
https://www.holdinggep!.com/pdf/CSR-Policy-gmr.pdf.

The provisions of the Act were not applicable for contributing any amount towards the
CSR activities.

The disclosure of contents of CSR Policy in the Board’s Report as per Rute 9 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is appended as ‘Annexure-3’ forming part of this
report.

Change in the nature of business:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial
vear under review.

Other Compliances/ Disclosures:

Your Company continues to comply with the requirements prescribed by RBI for a CIC,

Your Company has formulated and is implementing a policy known as Policy on
Resource Planning in compliance with the Circular No. RBI/2014-15/475 DNBR (PD)
CC No0.021/03.10.001/2014-15 dated February 20, 2015 issued by Reserve Bank of
India {"RBI Private Placement Guidelines”} which was approved by the Board of
Directors on July 27, 2016 and further revised on September 30, 2019,

Further, as per RBI Notification namely Review of Guidelines for Core Investment
Companies dated August 13, 2020 read with RBI Master Direction on Core Invesiment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 and RBI Master
Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 for NBFCs dated September 1, 2016 (as
amended), Carporate Governance Report, Management Discussion & Analysis Report
and other disclosures are appended as ‘Annexure 4’ to this Report and can be accessed
at website www . holdinggepl.com.

Your Company has been taking appropriate measures in terms of changes in
Regutations from time to time.

Public Deposits:

During the year under review, the Company, being CIC (NBFC}, has not accepted any
deposits from public during the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to
the Financiail Statements:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no
reportable material weakness in the design or operation was cbserved.

Details of Debenture Trustees:



As per Regulation 53 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the contact details of the Debenture
Trustees of the Company are provided in ‘Annexure - 5 that forms part of this Report.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures;

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, will be provided upon
request. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts
are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information
on employees’ particulars which is available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the
Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member is
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in this
regard.

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel and Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics

Good corporate governance does not mean merely compliance and simply a matter of
employing checks and balances; rather it is considered as a continuous process for
superior delivery of Company’s objectives with a view to transiate cpportunities into
reality. With this conceptual clarity your Company had adopted Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
with effect from August 03, 2011, The primary objective is to encode and adopt a
corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and openness in the
business operations, fairness and accountability in carrying out the financial
transactions, having the propriety, equity and sustainable value creation, to foliow the
ethical practices and to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve
the goal of value creation, thereby creating an outstanding company in the field it is
engaged in.

The Directors have complied with the norms of Fit and Proper Criteria as reguired
under the RBI Regulations.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company at Group level has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and have constituted Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) to address complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees {(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under this Policy.



The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed
off during the financial year ending March 31, 2021:

Sl. No. of complaints No, of complaints
No. Category filed during the pending as on end
financial year of the financial year

Sexual Harassment of . .
1 Mil Nil
women at workplace

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the guidance and
co-operation received from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Government Authorities,
Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI), Stock Exchanges, Financial
Institutions, Banks, Debenture Trustees, Debenture Holders and Members during the
year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of
appreciation for the committed services by the employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Ao a

Grandhi Mai’ilﬁarjtfna Rao
Chairman
PIN: 00574243

Place: New Dethi
Date: November 29, 2021
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rute No.% of the

Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31,03.2021

To,

The Members,

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR ENTERPRISES
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in 2 manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company

has, during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 (the audit period) complied with

the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also thai the Company has proper




Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner

and subject to the reporiing made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended March 31,

2021 according to the provisions of:

{i} The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} and the rules made thereunder;

{if} The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rule
made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed

thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowing {to the extent applicable);

{v] The following law specifically applicable to the company
a, The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b. the Non-Banking Financial Companies- Systemicaily important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016,

¢. Core fnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

d, information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector, 2017

{vi) The following Requlations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI Act’):

-a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b, The Securities and Exchange Board of Indis {Prohibition of Insider

Trading} Regulations, 2015;




¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capifal and
Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2009; {Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014; {Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Debt
Securities} Regulations, 2008 [Repealed and substituted by Securities
and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities} Regulations, 2021 effective from August 9, 2021)1;

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regutations, 1991 regarding the Cpmpanies Act

and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; {Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has listed its Debentures on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE} on
MNovember 02, 2016, and is the Holding company of GMR Infrastructure Limited, a
listed company. It is a Core Investment Company (CIC) holding Certificate of
Registration No.C-07.00832 dated August 02, 2017, issued by RBi, Chennati.

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards (55-1) on
meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standards (55-2) on General

Meeatings issued by the institute of Company Secretaries of india.




We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial taws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, sihce the same have been subject to review by

statutory auditors and other designated professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of

the Act, Rutes, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above,

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duty constituted. Being a debt listed private
Company, the company is not required to maintain any balance relating to Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at {east seven days in advance or on shorter
notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

As per the minuges of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that based on the compliance certificate furnished by the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the company, there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure comptiance with other applicable {aws, rides,

regulations and guidetines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken the
following actions which are having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in

pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.:




. To take note of merger of Subsidiaries:
a. Amalgamation of Rajam Enterprises Private Limited into Grandhi

Enterprises Private Limited.
b, Amalgamation of ldeaspace Solutions Private Limited, Leora Real Estates
Private Limited and Pashupati Artex Private Limited into GMR Infratech

Private Limited.

. Allotment of 1,42,85,716 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.
200/- each aggregating to Rs. 300,00,00,360 on rights basis to the existing

shareholders of the Company.

. Redemption of 18,96,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/- each held by GMR

Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited at a premium of Rs, 90/- per share,

. Restructuring and further redemption of 2200 Rated, listed, redeemable,
marketable, non-convertible debentures of {ace vatue of Rs. 10 Lakhs each

held by VTB Capitat PLC aggregating to Rs. 220 Crores in two tranches.

. Issue of 3500 Secured, unlisted, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of
face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each to Nomura Singapore Limited aggregating to

Rs. 350 Crores in two tranches.

. Issue of 630 Secured, unlisted, rated, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each to Citrine Fund Limited, Mertin
Holdings Private Limited and Avro Commercial Company Private Limited

aggregating to Rs, 65 Crores.

. lIssue of 1875 Secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertibie Bonds of
face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each to DB international (Asia) Limited aggregating

to Rs, 187.5 Crores in two tranches.




8.

Place: Bengalury
Date:r October 19, 2021

UDIN: FO02347C001215119

Peer Review Certificate Number;58%/2019

issue of 3000 Secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible Debentures
of face value of Rs. 10 Lakhs each to Edelweiss Special Opportunities Fund and

Ecap Equities Limited agaregating to Rs. 300 Crores in two tranches.

For ¥ & aé;ﬁﬁz n & Associates
A Lf::wwl‘w"}
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V. Sraedhoran
Partner
F.C.5.-2347 : G Mo, 833
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is amnexed as Annexure 1 and

. forms an integral part of this report.

‘Annexure -1’
Jo,

The Members,

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Third Floor, Otd No.Z48/New No,114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah,
Chennai - 600 014.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibitity of the management of the company,
QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretariat records hased on our audit,

Z.We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate {o obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Sscretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretariat
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinfon.

3.We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

4.Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representiation ahbout the
comptiance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.Fhe compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regutations, standards are the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited
{0 the verification of procedures on test basis,




6.The Secretarial Augit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Lompany nor of the efficacy or effectivene

the affairs of the company,

Place: Bengaluru
Date: October 19, 2021

UDIN: FO02347C001215119

Peer Review Certificate Number:58 /2019

- ‘T’T

58 with which the management has conducted

for fliSreedharan & Associates |
’! ";i%é K_*?-% ) “f::{" LSHMV)
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Y, Sreadharan ©
FParingar
F.O.8-2347 . 010 Bo. 833



Part A of Annexure - 2

List of Subsidiaries and Associate companies as on March 31, 2021

Holding/Subsidiary/

¥
Si. No. Name tAssociate
1 GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL) Subsidiary
, | GMR League Games Private Limited (GLGPL) Subsidiary
3 GMR Infratech Private Limited (G'-IPL) Subsidiary
4 Cadence Enterprises Private Limited (CEPL) Subsidiary
Purak Infrastructure Services Private Limited (Formerly PHL | Subsidiary
5. Infrastructure Finance Company Private Limited) (Purak)
6 Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL) Subsidiary
. Vijay Mivas Real Estates Private Limited (VNRPL) Subsidiary
8.‘ Fabcity Properties Private Limitéaﬂ(ﬁﬁbﬂl_) Subsidiary
9 Kondampéta Properties Private Limited (KPPL)I"”WM Subsidiary
10 Hyderabad Jabilli P%di:'}éft'iéém?rivate Limited (HIPPL) Subsidiary
i1 GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited (GBPPL) Subsidiary
12 Kakinada Refinery and Petrochemicals Private Limited {(KRPPL) | Subsidiary
Subsidia
13. | GMR Solar Energy Private Limited {GSEPL) Y
. _— Subsidiary
14. | Kothavalasa Infraventures Private Limited (KIPL)
Subsidia
15, | GMR Real Estate Private Limited (GREPL) LbsIdiary
16. | GMR Property Developers Private Limited (GPDPL) Subsidiary
) Subsidia
17. | GMR Holdings (Overseas) Limited (GHOL) Y
18 Kirthi Timbers Private Limited {KTPL) Subsidiary
19 Corporate Infrastructure Services Private Limited {CISPL) Subsidiary
50. | GMR Holdings (Mauritius) Limited (GHMaL) Subsidiary
Subsidi
21. | GMR Infrastructure (Malta) Limited (GIML) sidiary
Ellan Vannin International Holdings Limited (Formerly GMR | Subsidiary
22. | Airport (Global) Limited)
53 Crossridge Investments Limited (CIL) Subsidiary
54 | GMR Holdings Overseas (Singapare) Pte Limited (GHOSPL) Subsidiary
L | GMR Business & Consultancy LLP (GBCLLP) Subsidiary
26 GMR Infra Ventures LLP {GIV LLP) Subsidiary
27. + GMR Energy Limited (GEL) " Subsidiary
Subsidiary

28.

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL) *




GMR Tunt Anakapalli Expressways Limited {(GTAEPL)

GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private Limited | Subsidiary
29. | (GBHPL)*
0. | GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL) - Subsidiary
51, | GMR Energy (Mauritius) Limited (GEML) * Subsidiary
| 32, GMR Lion Energy Limited (GLEL)® Subsidiary
33, | GMR Upper Karnali Hydropower Limited (GUKPL)* Subsidiary
34. GMR Energy Trading Limited (GETL) Subsidiary
35 | GMR Consulting Services Limited (GCSL) * Subsidiary
55 | GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (GBHHPL) * Subsidiary
37 | GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited”&G‘LHPPL) Subsidiary
3g. | GMR Energy (Cyprus) Limited (GECL) Subsidiary
g | GMR Energy (Netherlands) B.V. (GENBY) Subsidiary
GMR Warora E'nergy Li__mited ( Formerly EMCO Energy Limited} | Subsidiary
40. |-
41 | Indo Tausch Trading DMCC (ITTD) Subsidiary
45, | GMR Maharashtra Energy Limited (GMEL) * Subsidiary
43, | GMR Male' International Airport Private Limited (GMIAPL) Subsidiary
4a | GMR Bundelkhand Energy Private Limited (GBEPL) * | Subsidiary
GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited (formerly known as | Subsidiary
45. | GMR Uttar Pradesh Energy Private Limited (GRSPPL) *
46, | GMR Guiarat Solar Power Limited (GGSPL)* Subsidiary
47 | Kamnali Transmission Company Private Limited (KTCPL)* Subsidiary
4g. | GMR Indo-Nepal Energy Links Limited (GINELL)* Subsidiary
49, | GMR Indol-il\lep;ai Power Corridors Limited (GINPCL) * | Subsidiary
5o | GMR Energy Projects (Mauritius) Limited (GEPML) Subsidiary
&, | GMR Infrastructure (Smgapore) Pte Limited {(GISPL) Subsidiary
55 GMR Coal Resources Pte Limited (GCRPL) Subsidiary .
53 ;MR Power Infra Limited (GPIL) Subsidiary
£, | GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) Subsidiary
cc | GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (GTTEPL) Subsidiary
Subsidiary




GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expresswa?gh Private Limited { Subsidiary
57. 1 (GACEPL)
sg | GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (GPEPL) Subsidiary
"1'GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited | Subsidiary
6o | GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL) Subsidiary
61 | GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited (GHIAL) Subsidiary
6. | Gateways for India Airports Private Limited {GFIAL) Subsidiary
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited (GMR Hyderabad Airport | Subsidiary
63. { Resource Management Limited (GHARML))
64 | GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited (GHAPL) Subsidiary
65, | GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited (GHASL) Subsidiary
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Limited [formerly | Subsidiary
66. | known as GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited (GAEL}]
GMR Aerc Technic Limited (GATL) (formerly known as MAS GMR | Subsidiary
67. ¢ Aero Technic Limited (MGATL)) o
cg. | GMR Airport Developers timited (GADL) Subsidiary
co. | GADL International Limited (GADLIL) Subsidiary
I GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited {(Formerly GMR Hotels and | Subsidiary
70. | Resorts Limited)
,1 | Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL) Subsidiary
- | Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited (DAPL)” Subsidiary
45 | Delni Duty Free Services Private Limited (DDFS) * Subsidiary
44 | Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited (DAPSL) Subsidiary
o= | GMR Airports Limited (GAL) Subsidiary
46 | GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (GALM) Subsidiary
- | GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL) Subsidiary
78 Raxa Security Services Limited (Raxa) Subsidiary
g | GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited (GKSIR) Subsidiary
go. | Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL) Subsidiary
g1 | Akiima Properties Private Limited (AKPPL) Subsidiary
gy | Amartya Properties Private Limited (AMPPL) Subsidiary
g3, | Baruni Properties Private Limited {BPPL) Subsidiary
Subsidiary

84,

Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited (BOPPL)




Camelia Properties Private Limited (CPPL)

Subsidiary

85,
g, | Deepesh Properties Private Limited (DPPL) Subsidiary
g | Eila Properties Private Limited (EPPL) Subsidiary
gg. | Gerbera Properties Private Limited {GPPL) Subsidiary
go. | Lakshmi Priya Properties Private Limited (LPPPL) Subsidiary
gp. | Honeysuckle Properties; Private Limited (HPPL) Subsidiary
gy | ldika Properties Private Limited (IPPL) Subsidiary
g | Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited (KPPL) Subsidiary
g3, | Larkspur Properties Private Li'mite;j (LAPPL) Subsidiary
94. Nadira Properties Private Limited {(NPPL) Subsidiary
g5 | Padmapriya Properties Private Limited (PAPPL) Subsidiary
9. | Prakalpa Properties Private Limited (PPPL) Subsidiary -
97, Purnachaﬁ‘cl;"a Properties Private L.ai.mited (PUPPL) Subsidiary
a8, Shreyadita Properties Private Limited (SPPL) Subsidiary
99, Pranesh Properties Private Limited {(PRPPL) Subsidiary
100, | Sreepa Properties Private Limited (SRPPL) Subsidiary
101, Radhapriva Properties Private Limited (RPPL}) Subsidiary
Loy | Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL) Subsidiary
103, Lantana Properties Private Limited (LPPL) Subsidiary
104, | Namitha Real Estatég Private Limited (NREPL) | Subsidiary
.05, | Honey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL) Subsidiary
106, | GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited (GSPHL) Subsidiary
1o | Suzone Properties Private Limited (SUPPL) Subsidiary
108, | Lifiam Properties Private Limited (LPPL) Subsidiary
109. GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited (GCAPL) Subsidiary
Dhruvi Securities Limited (Formerly known as Dhruvi Securities | Subsidiary
110. | Private Limited) (DSL) n
111 | Kekinada SEZ Limited (KSL) Subsidiary
Subsidiary

112,

GMR Business Process and Services Private Limited (GBPSPL)




Subsidiary

113 GMR Infrastructure {(Mauritius) Limited (GIML)
.14 | GMR Infrastructure (Cyprus) Limited (GICL) Subsidiary
115 GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limited (GIOL) Subsidiary
116 GMR Infrastructure (UK} Limited (GIUL) Subsidiary
117 GMR Infrastructure (Global) Limited (GIGL) Subsidiary
118 Kakinada Gateway Port Limited (KGPL) Subsidiary
119 GMR Goa International Airport Limited {GGIAL) Subsidiary
120 GMR Infrastructure {Overseas) Limited (GIOL) Subsidiary
1721 GMR Generation Assets Limited subsidiary
122 GMR Infra Developers Limited (GIDL) Stbsidiary
{23, | GMR Airports International B.V (GAIBV) Subsidiary

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL) Subsidiary' IIIII
124.

GMR MNagpur International Airport Limited {GNIAL) Subsidiary
125,

GMR Airports Singapore Pte Limited Subsidiary
126.

GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited Subsidiary
127.

GMR Airports Greece Single Member S.A Subsidiary
128.

GMR Visakhapatnam International Alrport Limited Subsidiary
129,

GMR Mining and Energy Private Limited Subsidiary
130.

GMR Hyderabad Airport Assets Limited Subsidiary
131,

AMG Healthcare Destination Private Limited Associate
132.

Globemerchants, Inc. Associate
133,

JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited Associate
134.

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (GREL) Associate
1 35 : B T et |

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited (DASPL) Associate
136.

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited Associate

(TFSPL)
137. B

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited (DAFFPL) Associate
138,

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Associate

139,

Limited (CDCTM)




166,

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited {TIMDAA) Associate
140.

Lagshya Hyderabad Airport Media Private Limited (LHAMPL) Associate

______ 141.

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Coiporation {GMCAC) Associate
142.

Megawide - GISPL Construction Jv (MGCIV) Associate
143. |

Rampia Coal Mine and Energy Private Limited (RCMEPL)* Associate
144.

PT Golden Energy Mines Thk {GEMS) Associate
145,

PT Roundhill Capital Indonesia {RCI) Associate
146.

PT Borneo Indobara (BIB) Associate
147.

PT Kuansing Inti Makmur (KIM) Associate
148. .

PT Karya Cemerlang Persada {KCP) Associate
149,

PT Bungo Bara Utama (BBU) Associate
150, _

PT Bara Harmonis Batang Asam (BHBA) Associate
151.

PT Berkat NMusantara Permai (BNP) Associate
152,

PT Tanjung Belit Bara Utama (TBBU) Associate
153. '

PT Trisula Kencana Sakti (TKS) Associate
154.

PT Gems Energy Indonesia (Gems Energy) Associate
155, '

GEMS Trading Resources Pte Limited (GEMSCR) {Formerly Agsociate

GEMS Coal Resources Pte Limited)
156.

PT Karya Mining Solution (KMS)} (formerly known as PT Bumi Associate

Anugerah Semesta)

I 157,

Limak GMR Construction 1V (CI1V) Associate
158.

PT Era Mitra Selaras {(EMS) Associate
159.

PT wahana Rimba {WRL) Associate
160' ...................

PT Berkat Satria Abadi (BSA) Associate
161.

PT Kuansing Inti Sejahtera (KIS) Associate
162.

PT Bungo Bara Makmur (BBM) Associate

.. 163

Heraklion Crete Infernational Airport Saciete Anonyme {Crete) | Associate
164.

DIGI Yatra Foundation (DIGI) Associate

Mactan Travel Retail Group Co. (MTRGC) Associate




SS5P-Mactan Cebu Corporation (SMCC) Associate
167.

GMR Tenaga Operations and Maintenance Private Limited Associate

{(GTOMPL)
168.

Megawide GMR Construction Jv, INC (MGCIV Clark} Associate
169.

GMR Logistics Park Private Limited (GLPPL) Associate
170.

PT Unsoco Associate
171,

PT Duta Sarana Internusa (melalui DSU) Associate
172,

PT Barasentosa Lestari {melalui DSI dan UNSQCO) Associate
173.

PT Dwikarya Sejati Utama Associate
174.

£ Associate includes Joint Ventures,

* Struck off and dissolved w.e.f 19-04-2021

¥ does not include Company limited by guarantee.

» assessed as Jointly Controlled Entities for the purpose of Indian Accounting Standards.



Part “A”: Subsidiaries

PART B ANNEXURE '2' TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

Form No. AOC - 1

(Pursuant to First proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

(Rs. In crore)

Turnover
Dategince Jinovey Other Othey Total Propo | Effective eIi:‘ne;n::io
when . Other (Revenue Profit Provision comprehen Tax compreh A % performance of
L S e Reporting : " Total Profit after | “°™P : Pref | comprehen | sed | % of ns
S.No Name of ths Subsidiary Reporting period | subsidiary Capital equity / Total Assets Total from before for 2 sive |imapctof| ensive P se the company to
currency Liabilities s* " - " taxation . . sive divide | sharehol | (Revenue
was. Reserves o/ taxation | taxation income ocl income o o total revenue
A income | nd | ding | from
acquired ) (oci) (Net) !
Operation
s\
- "ApHI 01, 2020 - March
1 |GMR krishnagiri SIR Limited # 312021 28.09.2007)  INR 1750 | (14543) 56037 | 58830 1.00 - (ss70)|  000| (138.70) - - - (3870)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
) - “April 01, 2020 - March
2 |GMR Aviation Private Limited 312021 28.05.2007)  INR 24408 | (11267 168.34 36.92 - 55.98 184 - 184 0.02 - 0.02 186 | - |e239% 55.01 0.87%)
R “April 01, 2020 - March
3 |GMRSEZ&Port Holdings Limited 312021 SL03.2008 |  INR 4799 |  (19011) 45325 | 50536 |  77.00 0.03 824| o052| (3664 0.00 - 000 | @sem| - | e233% - 0.00%)
) — “April 01, 2020 - March
4 Advika Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31032009 INR 1.00 (2.29) 7.00 830 - - (2.00) - (2.00) - - - (00| - | 62.33% - 0.00%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
5 Aklima Properties Private Limited # 31, 2021 31032009 INR 1.00 004 388 284 - - 026 - 026 - - - 026 | - |6233% - 0.00%
A “April 01, 2020 - March
6 Amartya Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31032009 INR 1.00 (1.50) 377 427 - - (0.69) - (0.69) - - - (0.69)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%
- — “April 01, 2020 - March
’ Baruni Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31.08.2009 INR 1.00 (2.02) 555 656 - - (1.89) - (1.89) - - - (189) - | 6233% - 0.00%
8 Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited # April 01, 2020 - March | 47 7 5009 INR
g P 31,2021 or. 1.00 044 5.22 378 - - ©09)| (.01 (0.08) - - - 08)| - |6233% - 0.00%
) — “April 01, 2020 - March
o Camelia Properties Private Limited # 31, 2021 31032009 INR 1.00 535 6.49 014 - - 6.09 - 6.09 - - - 600| - |6233% - 0.00%
A “April 01, 2020 - March
© Deepesh Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 11.06.2010 INR 1.00 7.98 9.19 021 - - 6.49 (0.00) 6.49 - - - 649 | - | 62.33% - 0.00%
- - “April 01, 2020 - March
u Eila Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31032009 INR 1.00 (153) 4.06 459 - - (1.09) - (1.09) - - - (1.09)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
12 |Gerbera Properties Private Limited # e 31.03.2009 INR Loo 234 580 255 . . 84 . 284 . . . I T . 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
13 Lakshmi Priya Properties Private Limited # 31, 2021 31.03.2009 INR 1.00 (1.97) 6.72 7.69 - - (1.78) - (1.78) - - - 78] - 62.33% - 0.00%)
April 01, 2020 - March
“ Larkspur Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 01.02.2011 INR 1.00 4.49 5.82 0.33 - - 4.07 - 4.07 - - - 407 | - |6233% - 0.00%)
April 01, 2020 - March
15 Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited # 31 2001 31.03.2009 INR 1.00 (0.19) 7.04 6.24 - - (0.28) - (0.28) - - - (0.28)| - |6233% - 0.00%|
April 01, 2020 - March
% \dika Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31.08.2009 INR 1.00 (1.60) 5.17 5.77 - - (1.25) - (1.25) - - - 125)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
April 01, 2020 - March
17 |Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited # e 31.03.2009 INR Loo 000 102 283 . i 032 . 032 . . . 02| - | 6233 . 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
18 |NadiraProperties Private Limited # 31,2021 S108.2009)  INR 1.00 ©0.32) 4.06 3.38 - - ©0.32) - (0.32) - - - ©3)| - | e233% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
19 |Prakalpa Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 SL08.2009)  INR 1.00 (1.99) 5.69 6.63 - - (1.66) - (1.66) - - - @ee)| - | e2.33% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
20 |Purnachandra Properties Private Limited # a1 oomn 31.03.2009 INR Loo 095 515 321 . . 133 . 133 . . . P N . 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
21 |Padmapriya Properties Private Limited 31, 2021 11062000  INR 1.00 241 19.68 16.28 - 0.96 280 | 005 2.75 - - - 275 | - | 6233% 0.96 0.02%)
April 01, 2020 - March
22 |Pranesh Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 27.06.2011)  INR 1.00 (0.25) 7.0 6.44 - - (0.05) - (0.05) - - - ©o5)| - | e2.33% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
= Radhapriya Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 01.11.2011 INR 1.00 (2.89) 11.22 131 - - (2.61) - (2.61) - - - 61| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
24 |Shreyadita Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 31082009  INR 1.00 (0.43) 5.08 451 - - 003 - 0.03 - - - 003| - |6233% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
25 |SreepaProperties Private Limited # 31,2021 31082009  INR 1.00 019 4.22 3.03 - - 049 - 0.49 - - - 049 | - | 6233% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
26 |Asteria Real Estates Private Limited # St oonn 28.04.2012 INR 0.03 ©026) 375 3.98 . - (0.03) - (0.03) - - - 03] - | 6233% - 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
27 |-antana Properties Private Limited # 31,2021 28082012  INR 001 3.5 3.44 0.28 - - 3.89 - 3.89 - - - 389 | - | 6233% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
28 |Namitha Real Estates Private Limited # St oonn 27.03.2014 INR 001 (L59) 2077 2266 . i (0.15) . 015 i . . o1s] - | soza% . 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
29 Honeyflower Estates Private Limited 31, 2021 27.03.2014 INR 476 34.06 4112 230 - 243 136 048 088 - - - 088 | - | e233% 243 0.04%
“April 01, 2020 - March
30 |Suzone Properties Private Limited # St oonn 15.07.2014 INR 001 (4.68) 1015 1482 . i ©0.94) ) (0.94) . 5 5 ©0on| - | 623% . 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
31 |Liliam Properties Private Limited # St oonn 15.07.2014 INR 001 (2:50) 664 923 . i 027 . 027 i . . 027 | - | 62330 . 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
2 GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited 31,2021 22.12:2006 INR 5.00 (8.35) 239.51 242.86 42.95 - 5.66 203 364 - - - 364| - |6233% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
s GMR Hospitality and Retai Limited 31,2021 08.09.2008 INR 156.00 (148.32) 240.23 232.56 .78 60.20 (21.61) - (21.61) 0.20 - 0.20 (21.40)| - | 2003% 58.57 0.93%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
4 Kakinada SEZ Limited 31,2021 15.01.2011 INR NA NA NA NA NA 131 (3.27) - (3.27) 0.01 - 0.01 (3.26) - NA 131 0.02%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
35 |Phruvi Securities Private Limited 12021 23022010) IR 168.06 4161 228.26 1850 | 3550 | 1764 1056 | 027 1029 | (48.59) - (48.59)|  (3830)| - | 62.33% 1318 0.21%
“April 01, 2020 - March
36 GMR Business Process and Services Private Limited 1, 2021 19.08.2011 INR 0.01 42.88 82.85 39.96 68.20 0.16 57.73 6.07 51.65 - - - 5165 - | 6233% 016 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
s7 GMR Airport Developers Limited 1, 2021 22.01.2011 INR 10.20 60.09 157.48 87.19 14.85 | 14721 32.84 8.27 24.57 0.62 0.16 047 2504 | - | 31.79% 084 0.01%
38 Raxa Security Services Limited April mé'lzoz%ozi March 20.10.2015 INR
: 36.44 25.88 348.39 286.07 857 | 16506 272 0.76 1.95 (0.94) - (0.94) 102 - | 6233% 95.02 1.50%)
39 GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited April 01, 2020 - March | 1 5003 INR
31,2021 10 378.00 |  1.755.04 1072384 | 8590.79 | 97258 | 44122 | (23004)| (78.99)| (151.05)|  (80.61)| (4358)| (37.04)| (188.09)| - | 20.03% | 384.40 6.07%
April 01, 2020 - March
40 |GMR Aerostructure Services Limited 312021 18072007 ] INR 0.05 (19.79) 82186 | 84160 | 2201 | 105648 |  (5147) - (37.47) - - - @ran| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
A April 01, 2020 - March
41 |GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited 31,2021 18.072007]  INR 90.50 (15.92) 32494| 25036 | 3146| s87.08 aen| 175 @.01 0.14 - 0.14 sm| - | 20.03% 85.06 1.3a%)




Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Form No. AOC - 1
(Pursuant to First proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

(Rs. In crore)

Turnover
Date since Turnover Other Other " ne ( of_
- Total | Propo |Effective | eliminatio
when ) Other (Revenue |  Profit |Provision comprehen| Tax | compreh % performance of
- " N e Reporting _ » Profit after - N " comprehen| sed % of ns
S.No Name of ths Subsidiary Reporting period | subsidiary Capital equity / Total Assets . from before for " sive imapct of | ensive " " the company to
currency s " ! " | taxation | ) sive | divide | sharehol | (Revenue
was Reserves Operations| taxation | taxation income | OCI | income | Sve | divide | sheve evont® | total revenue
acquired (ocl) (Net) 9 '
Operation
s)
“April 01, 2020 - March
42 |GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited 31,2021 04.12.2007 INR 51.60 (4.61) 213.48 166.49 8.45 19.26 0.08 045 (037 0.03 - 0.03 (034 - |2003% 15.96 0.25%
A “Apri 01, 2020 - March
43 |Gateways for India Airports Private Limited 31, 2021 12012005)  INR 0.01 254 276 021 - 0.63 ©.04| 000 (0.04) - - - ©on| - | s391% 0.63 0.01%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
a4 Delni International Airport Limited 31,2021 19.04.2006 INR 2,450.00 104.77 10759.04 | 17.204.27 | 121057 | 242348 | (483.15)| (16573)| (317.41)| 19963 | 69.86 | 12077| (187.64)| - | 20.35% | 2,394.84 37.85%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
45 |Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited # e 22052007 |  INR 010 (0.16) i 006 i . ) ) . ) ) ) . - i 0.00%
A “Apri 01, 2020 - March
46 |Delni Airport Parking Services Private Limited 31,2021 03032010 |  INR 81.44 (11.04) 17455 104.16 1090 | 4816 |  (2749)| (624 (2125 008| 002| o006| (119 - |2200% 48.16 0.76%
PR “April 01, 2020 - March
47 GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limited****# 13. 2021 18.09.2012 INR ~ - - ~ - ~ - - ~ - - - ~ ~ NA . 0.00%
“April 01, 2020 - March
48 |GMR Aero Technic Limited 31, 2021 12122014) IR 0.10 001 065 054 - 0.47 ©32]  (0.00 (0.32) - - - 032) - | 2008% 047 0.01%
- — “Apri 01, 2020 - March
49 |GMRAir Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Company Limited 31,2021 12.12.2014 INR 473.83 | (471.53) 524.36 522.06 220| 32565 562 |  (0.06) 568 024 0.06 017 585| - |2003% | 32565 5.15%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
S0 |GMRAirports Limited 31, 2021 81082009) INR 1,406.67 | 1418489 2277205 | 718050 | 15879 | 36078 | (302.89)| (45.00)| (257.74)| (1.33327)| (345.46) (987.81)| (1.24555)| - | 31.79% 89.40 1.41%)
January 01, 2020 -
5L |GMR Airport Singapore Pte Limited # December 31, 2020 | 24072019 |  USD 314 088 14.94 10.92 - 018 | (1882 . (18.82) 017 - 017 | @ses)| - | s17o% 018 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
52 |GMR Energy Trading Limited 31,2021 09.03.2010 INR 74.00 082 79458 719.76 - 653.34 810 |  (1.20) 1234 ©05)| 001 (0.08 1230 | - | 5049% | 653.33 10.33%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
53 |GMR Londa Hydro Power Private Limited # 31, 2021 11.11.2008)  INR 0.01 (89.09) 0.08 89.16 - - (6.13) - (9.20) 0.00 - 0.00 (020 - | s121% - 0.00%




Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Form No. AOC - 1
(Pursuant to First proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

(Rs. In crore)

Tarnover
Date since Turnover Other Other " ne ( of_
- Total | Propo | Effective | eliminatio
when | oo Other (Revenue | Profit [Provision| [ o |comprehen| Tax |compren | Total | Propo| Effecth % performance of
S.No Name of ths Subsidiary Reporting period | subsidiary P 9 Capital equity / Total Assets . from before for " sive imapct of | ensive p se o o ns the company to
currency s " ! " | taxation | A sive | divide | sharehol | (Revenue
was Reserves Operations| taxation | taxation income | OCI | income | e | sher ¢ total revenue
acquired (ocl) (Net) | 'Meome | ing rom
Operation
s)
— “April 0L, 2020 - March
54 |GMR Generation Assets Limited 31,2021 08.12.2010 INR 196843 | (2.682.92) 1837.33 | 255181 - 076 | (11528)| 00| (592.88) 02| 001| (003)| (59288)| - |51.21% 076 0.01%
“April 01, 2020 - March
S5 |GMR Power Infra Limited 31,2021 25022011 ) INR 1.70 (10.09) 14.23 2262 - 0.39 (1.83) . (1.83) - - - ws3)| - | 6238% 0.39 0.01%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
56 GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Private Limited 31. 2021 16.05.2002 INR 1.00 263.26 42410 150.84 - ~ 18.08 128 16.80 - - - 16.80 ~ 59.33% . 0.00%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
57 GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Private Limited 31. 2021 16.05.2002 INR 1.00 145.81 185.05 38.24 - ~ 984 - 9.84 - - - 9.84 ~ 59.33% . 0.00%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
56 |GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited 31,2021 09092005 |  INR 98.24 | (375.59) 34187 619.22 - 2228 (76.00) . (76.00) (0.00) - ©oon| asom| - | e233% 2228 0.35%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
59 GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 31,2021 18.11.2005 INR 138.00 100.24 721.72 489.48 0.34 78.67 10.96 2.97 7.99 0.02 - 0.02 801 | - | 6233% 78.67 1.24%]
“April 01, 2020 - March
60 |GMR Highways Limited 31,2021 08.01.2009 INR 775.44 213.65 234573 |  1.285.00 056 | 14151 (55.00)| 628 (90.57) 011 - 011 (90.46)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%
— “April 01, 2020 - March
61 |GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited 31,2021 31.07.2009 INR 500 |  (835.95) 207192 | 2.902.86 - 30347 | (186.82) - (186.82) 001 - 001| (18681)| - |56.10% | 30347 4.80%
“April 01, 2020 - March
62 |GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited 31,2021 26082010) IR 30.00 (13.24) 763.60 746.92 - 92.45 (45.35) . (45.35) (0.03) . ©03)| @s3s)| - | seaom 92.45 1.46%)
- January 01, 2020 -
63 |GMR Infrastructure (Global) Limited (2) December 31, 2020 | 28.05-2008|  USD 1,00056 | (1,000.56) - - - - | @osa2n - | @osazn 16.25 - 1625 | (1,067.95)| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
— January 01, 2020 -
64 |GMR Infrastructure (Cyprus) Limited (2) December 31, 2020 | 19142007 |  USD 0.05 2207 2219 0.08 - - 1.20 0.47 073 (22.05) - (2205| (13| - | 62.33% - 0.00%)
January 01, 2020 -
65 GMR Energy (Global) Limited**** (a) December 31. 2020 27.05.2008 usb ~ - - ~ - ~ - - ~ - - - ~ ~ NA . 0.00%
- January 01, 2020 -
66 |GMR Infrastructure (Mauritius) Limited (2) December 31, 2020 | 18122007)  USD 2342.26 | (1,658.04) 1,046.40 36218 |  163.45 - 128.57 095 | (22357 7.22 - 722 | (21635) - | 62.33% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
67 |GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limited, Malta (b) December 31, 2020 | 27032013 |  EURO 003 45.83 46.12 026 - - (0.71) - (0.71) 472 - 472 401| - |6233% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
68 |indo Tausch Trading DMCC (@) # December 31, 2020 | 20082016 | USD 201 (1.43) 061 0.03 - - ©.27) - ©.27) (0.02) - (0.02) (029) - |6238% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
69 |GMR Infrastructure (UK Limited (¢) December 31, 2020 | 03082008 | GBP 50.01 (58.87) 434 13.20 - - (4.02) - (4.02) (9.75) - ©79)| asrn| - | e23m% - 0.00%
- January 01, 2020 -
70 GADL (Mauritius) Limited**** (a) December 25, 2020 22.01.2011 usD ~ - - ~ - ~ - - ~ - - - ~ ~ NA . 0.00%
— January 01, 2020 -
7L |GAPL International Limited (2) December 31, 2020 | 22012011 | USD 018 (©.14) 005 - - - (0.06) - (0.06) (0.40) - (0.40) ©an| - | e238% - 0.00%
- January 01, 2020 -
72 |GMR Infrastructure (Overseas) Limited () December 31, 2020 | 23062010 |  USD 000 | (973.66) 1,920.18 | 2,902.84 - - 64.45 - 64.45 (32.38) - (32.38) 3208| - |6238% - 0.00%
- January 01, 2020 -
73 |GMR Male International Airport Private Limited () December 31, 2020 | 082010 )  USD 421.07 5.30 645.95 530 - - (0.02) - (0.02) 971 - 971 069 | - | 47.92% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
74 |GMR Energy(Cyprus) Limited () December 31, 2020 | 26082008 |  USD 0.03 (0.03) - - - - ©.11) - (0.11) (5.34) - (5.34) (540 - | 62.33% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
75 |GMR Energy (Netherlands) B.V.(a) December 31, 2020 | 27102008 |  USD 0.16 261.17 361.31 99.98 - - 17.74 - 17.74 3.78) - 3.78) 1397 - |6238% - 0.00%
76 |GMR Infrastructure Singapore Pte Limited (a) January 01, 2020~ | 15,05 5009 | USD
9ap December 31, 2020 1,155.06 676.16 210115 | 26002 710 | 3e801| 14935 - 149.35 27.51 - 2751 | 17686 | - | 62.33% | 368.91 5.83%)
] January 01, 2020 -
77 |GMR Energy Projects (Mauritius) Limited (a) December 31, 2020 | 23122010 | USD 007 | (1858.45) 8231 194069 - - 169.26 - (©3.99)|  (39.81) - (981| (12380) - | 62.33% - 0.00%
January 01, 2020 -
78 |GMR Coal resources Ple Ld (3) December 31, 2020 | 24062010 |  USD 551.68 459.47 370516 | 260401 - - @o57| 1641 (86.68)]  (24.00) - (2400)| (11068)| - | 6233% - 0.00%
- January 01, 2020 -
79 |GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (&) December 31, 2020 | 21012013 | USD 110 (1.08) 0.06 0.04 - - (3.04) - (3.04) 0.09 - 0.09 (295 - | 3179% - 0.00%
) — ‘April 01, 2020 - March
80 |Kakinada Gateway Port Limited ™" # 312021 13072006]  INR | na NA NA NA NA - (0.02) - (0.02) - - - ©o2)| - NA - 0.00%
“Apri OL, 2020 -
81 GMR SEZ Infra Services Limited February 25.2021 20.05.2016 INR R R R R R R R R R R R R R R 0.00% . 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
82 |GMR Infra Developers Limited 31,2021 26022007]  INR 0.05 469.99 269505 | 222501 | 17621 2727| (3asm| o003| (saon| 12073 - 12073 4a23)| - | 6233% - 0.00%
— ‘August 22, 2020 -
83 |GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited # March 31, 2001 | 22082019|  INR 0.01 (0.03) 001 0.03 - - (0.00 - (0.00) - - - ©o0)| - |3179% - 0.00%
- November 25, 2020 -
84 |GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited March31, 2001 | 2>112019]  INR 1.00 (©.14) 458 373 - 0.93 ©.11) - (.11) - - - ©in| - | 3179% 0.93 0.01%
January 01, 2020 -
85 |GMR International Airport BV December 31, 2020 | 26052018 | USD 731 | (319.68) 1,860.74 | 217311 - - (133.47) - (133.47) (253 - 253)| (13600 - | 31.79% - 0.00%
— May 17, 2020 - March
86 |GMR Power Urban Infra Limited # 312021 17.052020|  INR 0.10 (0.44) 001 0.34 - - (0.04) - (0.04) - - - ©on| - | e233% - 0.00%
- . January 01, 2020 -
87 |Megawide - GISPL Construction JV** (d) December 31, 2020 | 01042007 | PHP 0.68 7.15 37.98 29.55 - 3214 7.96 - 7.96 0.65 - 0.65 8.61| 9.06| 3117% 3214 0.51%
—— ‘April 01, 2020 - March
88 |GMR Goalnternational Alrport Limited # 312021 14102016  INR 384.50 (15.12) 803.01 433.63 0.56 - @20| oo (4.22) - - - (22| - | 3179% - 0.00%
- ApTI 01, 2020 - March
89 |GMR Mining & Energy Private Limited 1. 2021 26122019  INR 0.05 (1.13) 0.00 1.09 - - (0.00) - (0.00) - - - o0 - | 51.21% - 0.00%)
— May 19, 2020 -
9 |GMR Vishakhapatnam Interational Airport Limited # March 31, 2001 | 19052020  INR 450 432 12.36 354 4.04 - (0.18) - (0.18) - - - ©18) - | 3179% - 0.00%




Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Form No. AOC - 1
(Pursuant to First proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

(Rs. In crore)

Turnover
Date since Turnover Other Other " ne ( of_
- Total | Propo |Effective | eliminatio
when ) Other (Revenue |  Profit |Provision comprehen| Tax | compreh % performance of
- " N e Reporting _ » Profit after - N " comprehen| sed % of ns
S.No Name of ths Subsidiary Reporting period | subsidiary Capital equity / Total Assets . from before for " sive imapct of | ensive " " the company to
currency s " ! " | taxation | ) sive | divide | sharehol | (Revenue
was Reserves Operations| taxation | taxation income | OCI | income | " total revenue
N income nd ding from
acquired (ocn (Net) '
Operation
s)
— November 25, 2020 -
91 |GMR Hyderabad Airport Assets Limited # March 31,2021 | 25112020 INR 0.10 (©.01) 009 0.00 - - (©.01) . (0.01) - - - ©on| - | 2008% - 0.00%)
January 13, 2020 -
92 |GMR Airports Greece Single Member S.A.# December 31, 2020 | 13012020 |  Euro 0.22 055 8.87 8.10 - - (052) . (0.52) - - - 052 - |3179% - 0.00%)
“April 01, 2020 - March
9 |GMR Infrastructure Limited 31, 2021 30-03:2015|  INR 60359 | 9,142.63 1825083 | 850461 020 | 1448.60 | (1284.02)| (3.86)| (1.280.16)| (1,115.03)| 339.09 | (776.84)| (2057.000| - | 62.33% | 110879 17.44%)
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
94 |othavalasa Infraventures Pt Ltd 31, 2021 280320171 INR 47.06 54.31 2119.06 | 201859 050 - (169.42)|  (0.03)| (169.40) - - - (169.40)| - | 100.00% - 0.00%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
9 |GMR Bannerghtta Properties Pvt. Ltd 31,2021 81032014 | INR 25.00 (64.97) 759.48 79945 050 - (4097)|  006|  (50.03) - - - (50.03)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
9 |GMR Business & Consultancy LLP 31, 2021 30-03:2015|  INR 1,09541 |  592.49 196033 | 28144 11.48 - (15.30) . (1530 598.32 - | se832| s8303| - |10000% - 0.00%)
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
o7 Grandhi Enterprises Pvt. Ltd 31,2021 29-05-2010 INR 25.10 4.09 72.13 4294 32.55 16.02 13.01 8.59 4.41 116 - 116 558 | - |100.00% 16.02 0.25%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
98 |GMR Solar Energy Pt Ltd 31, 2021 01-042016|  INR 241 178 10.22 6.03 063 2.00 051| o012 0.39 - - - 039| - |10000% 200 0.03%)
A “Apri 01, 2020 - March
99 |Viaynivas Real Estates Private Limited 31, 2021 30-03:2015|  INR 098 (36.02) 3448 69.53 - - (5.20) . (5.20) - - - (5.20)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
100 |Kondampeta Properties Pvt. Ltd. 31, 2021 30-03:2015|  INR 054 (0.05) 0.51 0.03 - - (©.01) . (0.01) - - - ©on| - |100.00% - 0.00%)
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
101 Hyderabad Jabilli Properties Pvt. Ltd 31. 2021 30-03-2015 INR 1.06 45.64 64.16 17.46 - ~ 055 0.14 0.41 - - - 0.41 ~ 100.00% . 0.00%
“Apri 01, 2020 - March
102 |GMR League Games Private Limited 31,2021 30-03-2015 INR 001 (6.48) 7.27 1874 - - (113) - (113) - - - (113)| - | 51.00% - 0.00%
— April 01, 2020 - March
103 |Fabeity Properties Private Limited 31,2021 80-08-2015 INR 015 (2.09) 6.42 8.36 - - (0.63) - (0.63) - - - (063)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
- April 01, 2020 - March
104 |Cadence Retail Private Limited 31,2021 80-05-2015 INR 001 (0.25) 0.00 0.24 - - (0.02) - (0.02) - - - 002)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
PHL Infrastructure Finance Company Private Ltd ( Purak APTI 01, 2020 - March| .~
195 |infrastructure) 31,2021 S0-032015) R 2,425.78 | (2425.85) 0.01 0.09 - - (0.02) - (0.02) - - - ©02)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
) ) April 01, 2020 - March
106 |Kakinada Refinery & Petrochemicals Pvt. Ltd 31,2021 26-03-2011 INR 20.02 (427 579 0.04 - - 0.01 0.03 (0.01) - - - (0on| - |100.00% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
107 |Corporate Infrastructure Services Pvt. Ltd 31,2021 16-09-2008 INR 1.00 0.87 116.80 11493 1.04 008 ©4n| 022 (0.68) - - - (068)| - |100.00% 008 0.00%
I— April 01, 2020 - March
108 |Kinthi Timbers Pvt. Ltd 31,2021 09-03-2011 INR 013 115 575 448 - - 021 0.06 015 - - - 015 | - |100.00% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
109 |GMRInfratech Pvt. Ltd 31, 2021 S0-032015) R 6.78 (83.35) 106.87 163.44 - - (7.55) - (7.55) - - - (755 - |100.00% - 0.00%
- April 01, 2020 - March
110 |GMR Real Estate Private Limited 31,2021 11-01-2019 INR 1.00 0.09 111 0.02 - - 0.09 0.02 007 - - - 007| - |100.00% - 0.00%
- April 01, 2020 - March
141 |GMR Property Developers Private Limited 31,2021 11-01-2019 INR 1.00 (0.86) 803 89 - - 078)| _ 0.00 (0.78) - - - 078)| - |100.00% - 0.00%
) April 01, 2020 - March
142 |GMR Holdings (Mauritus) Ltd (@) 31, 2021 80-03-2015| UsD 217.88 | (791.43) 30068 874.23 2.19 - (18.53) - (853)| (2475 - (4.75)|  (4328)| - |10000% - 0.00%
- April 01, 2020 - March
13 |Crossridge Investments Ltd (a) 31,2021 8003:2015)  USD 0.0 283.50 287.32 363 - - 68.48 001 68.47 (8.47) - (8.47) 6000 | - |100.00% - 0.00%
— April 01, 2020 - March
14 |interzone Capital Limited (3) 1. 2021 30082015 UsD - (0.00) - 0.00 - - 3.43 - 343 .31 - .3n 2.06 | 68.21 | 100.00% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
115 |GMR Sports SA Pty Ltd (f) o 24122015 |  RAND . . . E i i i i . i i i . 1 10000% . 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
116 |GMR Holdings Overseas (Singapore) Pte Limited () 31, 2021 2412:2015)  USD 0.00 143.15 14867 552 - 128.62 126.87 084 126.02 (2.33) - (233)| 12370 | - |100.00% 558 0.09%
’ April 01, 2020 - March
147 |Btian Vannin International Holdings Ltd (2) 1, 2021 2r0s-2007)  Usb 076 ©0.76) - - - - (10,00 - (10.00 (©0.21) - ©20] @o2n| - | o.0o% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
18 | GMR Holdings ( Overseas) Lid (2) 1. 2021 30:03-2015|  USD 26.67 (120.50) 100.99 194.62 - - 222 0.07 215 332 - 332 547 | - |100.00% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
19 |GMR Infrastructure ( Malta) Ltd (2) 312001 30032015 UsD 001 118.90 119.11 0.20 - - ©0.22) - (0.22) (.17 - .17 (4.39) - |100.00% - 0.00%
April 01, 2020 - March
120 |GMR Infra Ventures LLP 2 31032021  INR 100 (67.76) 7612 142.88 i i i i . i i i . 1 10000% . 0.00%

Notes:

1. The annual accounts of the Subsidiary Companies and the related detailed information will be made available to the members of the Company and the subsidiary companies seekina such information at any point of time.

The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will also be kept for inspection by any member in the registered office and that of the subsidiary companies concerned.
2 * Investments except investment in Group entities (Subsidiaries / Joint ventures / Associates).
3** MGJCV is iointly controlled operation (JCO) consolidated on proportionate basis w.e.f 1st April 2017.

4.** Indicates entities sold durina the vear
5. ** indicates under

6. Details of reportina currency and the rate used in the

off.

f consolidated financial

or Conversion

Currency Average
Reporting Currency Rate Closing Rate
Reference (inRs.) (inRs.)
Usb a 74.07 73.07
Euro b 84.93 89.74
GBP. [ 95.44 99.82
PHP d 1.50 1.52

7. #indicates the names of subsidiaries which are vet to commence operations




ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.

Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company

CSR Policy is stated herein below.

Composition of CSR Committee:

ANNEXURE 3

The composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Sl. | Name of | Designation | Number of | Number of
No. : Director / Nature of | meetings of CSR | meetings of
Directorship | Committee held | CSR
during the year | Committee
attended
during the
. year
1] Mr. Grandhi | Member/ Non- | NIL. Resolution was | NIL.
Mallikarjuna Rac | Executive passed by | Participated
Non- Circulation through
Independent Resolution
Chairman passed by
.. Girculation
2] Mr. Grandhi Kiran | Member/Non- | NIL. Resolution was ; NIL.
Kumar Executive passed by | Participated
Non- Circulation through
Independent Reselution
Director passed by
..... Circulation
3| Mr. Venkata | Member/Non- | NIL., Resolution was | NIL.
Nageswara Rao | Execufive passed by | Participated
Boda Non- Circulation through
Independent Resolution
Director passed by
Circulation
41 Mr. R. | Member/Non- | NIL. Resolution was | NIL.
Balasubramaniam | Executive passed by | Participated
Independent Circulation through
Director Resolution
passed by
| Circulation

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR
Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company



Weblink: www.holdinggepl.com

Since, the Company has not reported profits in the immediate previous year,
therefore, there is no project or programme been undertaken.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out
in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report)
Not Applicabie
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if
any
Not Applicable
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Not Applicable
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section
135(5)
Not Applicable
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial years
Not Applicable
(c ) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
Not Applicable
{(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year {7a+4+7b-7c).
Not Applicable
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Fotal Amaunt Spentior [ AmeuntUnenent G Ry ="
the Financial Year (in | Total Amount | Amount transferred to any fund
Rs.) transferred to | specified under Schedule VII as

Unspent CSR Account | per second provise to section
as per section 135(6) | 135(5)




Amount

Not applicable. There is
no mandatory
requirement for spending

as

per Companies Act,

| Date
transfer

of

~ Not applicable

Name of
the Fund

Amount

Date
transfer

of

2013 and Rules made
thereunder.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the
financial year:
Sl Na Item | Local | Location | Proi | Amo  Amo | Amou | Mode of | Mode of
. me | from | area | of the | ect unt unt nt Impleme | Implement
N | of the (Yes | project dura | alloc | spen | transf | ntation - | ation -
0. | the | list /No) tion |ated |t in | erred | Direct Through
Pro | of for the to {Yes/No | Impliementi
ject | activ the curr | Unspe | ) ng Agency
ities proj | ent nt
in ect fina | CSR
Sche (in ncial | Accou
dute Rs.) | Year | nt for
Vi1 St | Dist (in | the Na | CSR
to at ;rict Rs.) | projec me | Regist
the e t as ration
Act per ] numbe
: Sectio r
n
135(6
) (in
I IS S Rs.}
e Not applicable
{c ) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for
the financial year:
Sl. | Name | Item Loca ! Location of | Amou Mode of : Mode of
No | of the | from I the project nt implementati | implementation -
Proje | the list : area spent [ on - Direct | Through
ct of {Yes for the | {Yes/No) impiementing
activiti | / projec agency
es in | No) — 1t (in
schedul Stat | Distri Rs.) NMam | CSR
e VII to e ct e Registrati
the Act on
_____________ number

Not applicable

{(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:



Not applicab

le

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:

Not applicab

le

{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):

Not applicab

e

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

| SI. No. . Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i} Two percent of average net profit of the Not Applicable
. _...|.company as per section 135(5)
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Not applicable
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial Not applicable
year [(iD-(0] e
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects Not applicable
or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in Not applicable
succeeding financial years [{ii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial

years:
Si. No. Preceding ! Amount Amount {Amount transferred to Amount
Financial ftransferred| spentin any fund specified remaining to be
Year to Unspent the under Schedule VII as spent in
CSR reporting | per section 135(e6), if succeeding
Account Financial any financial years.
u'nder Year (in Name jAmount/Date of (in Rs.)
section 135 Rs.) .
(6) (in Rs.) of the | (in Rs) transfer
Fund

Not applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects
of the preceding financial year(s):

Sl.

No.

Projecti Name Financial Project | Total Amount
ID. of the Year in |duration. amount [spent on the
Project.} which the atlocated| projectin
project was for the the
commenced. reporting

Cumulative
amount
spent at

the end of
reporting

Status of
the project -
Completed
/Ongoing.




project | Financiai | Financial
{in Rs.}. ¥ear (in Rs). Year. (in
Rs.)

Not applicable

10.In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details
relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year (asset-wise details):

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset{s}.

Not applicable

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
Not applicable

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

Not applicable

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired
(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

Not applicable

11.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent
of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

Not applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
v, of GMR Enterprises Private Limited

ﬂ"’\"::-%—‘“

Grandhi Mallikatjuna Rao
Chawman/ Member of CSR Committee
DIN: 00574243

Piace: New Delhi
Date: November 29, 2021



ANNEXURE 4

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

a. Industry structure and developments.

Your Company is a Core Investiment Company (CIC) registered with RBI. it is the Holding Company
of the Group and holds investment in various SPYs either directly or indirectly. The 5PVs operates
In various sectors like Airports, Highways, Energy, Urban Infrastructure and Sports. Its major
investment is in GMR Infrastructure Limited, the listed company in infrastructure sector.

FY 2020-21 may very well be calied the COVID year. The Pandemic prevailed throughout the year
disrupting global economy at a macro fevel and impacting human life on an individual level, The
period was marked with stringent lockdowns across the globe, loss of employment, struggle of
inadequate healthcare infrastructure and finally much sought after rofl out of vaccinations. While
the world continues to reel under the effects of the pandemic, ecconomies have started to
cautiously open up after initial stringent lockdowns.

Your Company doesn’t have any business operations directly, however, due to the challenges
posed by Covid-19, the business of the subsidiaries got severely impacted. The subsidiaries have
taken all the necessary steps to handle the challenges posed by Covid-19. In order to counter the
effect of revenue loss due to low traffic, our airport took up various measures to ensure optimal
use of capital. These include terminal usage optimization, deferment / avoidance of non-essential
operational expenditure, renegotiation of major expenditure contracts, manpower expense
optimizatien etc. Pandemic, in the early phase, impacted the Power sector severely, as the
fockdown imposed by Government led to stoppage of almost all heavy industrial activity across
India, which laed to a sharp drop in consumption. However, since then energy demand has made
good recovery. On Sports front, due to the pandemic, the IPL 2020 was not conducted as per the
regular schedule and the tournament was relocated to UAE. The Pro Kabaddi League {season VIH)
in the year 2020-21 was cancefled due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

The major developments and details of the Group’s business forms part of the Board's Report.

b. Opportunities and Threats.

cautiously open up after initial stringent lockdowns. Rapid vaccination across the globe coupled
with pent up demand from last year is expected to support the global economic growth in 2021,
As aresult, the global economy is expected to grow at 5.5% in 2021, however, these estimates are
subject to severity of successive COVID waves we might encounter in future and progress made
on vaccination coverage. Government spending is an important tool 1o spur economy in such
uncertain times. Recognizing this, government decided to increase spending espedially in the
infrastructure sector. Apart from the budget announcements, government continues 1o announce
various policy measures to combat the impact of COVID-19 pandernic.

b
f
§
E
while the world conlinues to reel under the effects of the pandemic, economies have started to }

Important downside risks stem from heightened policy uncertainty in major economies. Every
business carried out by any Company are full of challenges and risk and the success of any business




always depend upon the ability of the Company how it faces the challenges and survive in the
hiphly competitive market. Your company is developing various systems and strategies to face the
challenges in the competitive market. The Challenges are not from the competitors but from the
domestic and global economic scenario.

Your company is taking all precautions to offset the associated risks.

{a) There has been substantial appreciation in the value of the investments of the Company
in the recent past.

{b} The company has partly divested its investments during FY 2020-21 to raise fund, which
was primarily used towards servicing / repayment of its borrowings.

{c) In view of various initiatives being taken by the subsidiaries including the proposed
demerger of GMR Infrastructure Limited, the management expects the operations and
performance will be further strengthened as the proposed demerger will enable both
Airport & Non-Airport businesses to chart out their respective growth plan independently.
Reduction of borrowings through the proceeds of monetization / divestment of its
investment will help the company in reducing the borrowing cost, which in turn will
contribute to reduction of losses and strengthening of the Balance Sheet.

The Company is also exploring other business opportunities to improve its revenue and
risk profite.

Segmeni-wise or product-wise performance,

Your Company is an ultimate holding company of the Group and being Core Investment Company
{CIC) registerad with RBI, its major investments are in the listed and unlisted companies of the
Group. Hence, it does not possess any segment-wise or product-wise expansion however, an
update on the performance of Hs subsidiaries duly forms part of the Boards’ Report during the
reporting period,

Qutlook

Your Company continues to hold significant investments in equity shares of GMR Infrastructure
Limited {listed subsidiary of the Company). in an important step towards uniocking value, GIL has
taken up a restructuring initiative, under which, the group has initiated a vertical demerger of its
airport and non-airport businesses. Post the de-merger, GIL will emerge as India’s only pure-play
listed airport company. Company’s non-airports business will shift to another listed entity GMR
Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL), with a mirror shareholding of GIL. The restructuring will
result in simplification of corporate holding structure and enable airport and non-airport
businesses to chart their respective growth plans independently. Further, value creation will be
targeted through strategic partnerships and attracting dedicated investor capital.

tn addition, it has stake in other subsidiaries / Jvs that are carrying activities like Sports Franchise
in Cricket {indian Premier League), Kabaddi (Pro Kabaddi League}, investments in properties ete.
The subsidiaries carrying Sports and Kabaddi League Games business activities have demonstrated
breakthrough performances and as the world evidencing recovery from pandemic, the leagues
are expected to come back to regular format in front of spectators, which will further enhance the




financial performance of the franchises. The Company will be focusing on major long term
strategic investments in various new ventures to increase its operational income.

Operational perfarmance of material/ major subsidiaries of Company.

Detailed operational performance of the material/ major subsidiaries of the Company forms part
of the Board’s Report.

Risks and concerns.

The Company is mainly exposed to risks related to its investments made in its listed and other
subsidiaries. The subsidiaries are carrying infrastructure activities, which are capital intensive in
nature and have lang gestation period. Due o the challenges being faced by infrastructure sector
and as underlying projects are in different stages of development / expansion, they are not able
to provide dividends, however, there is value accretion, which is being monetized periodically. The
Company also has well defined contingency plan ta overcome the challenges.

Risk Management Committee of the Company regularly reviews the risk framework, overall risks

on the Company, conducts the stress testing and monitors the concerns relating to fiquidity and
returns.

Internal control systems and their adeguacy.

Your Company has an Internal Controlf System, commensurate with the size and nature of its
business operations. As part of our operational review process and requirements, there is a
system and process to ensure Internal Control within the organization especially over financial
reporting and Information Technology activities. Regular audits are being conducted and
improvements are being ensured. Recently, the Risk Based Internal Audit system has been
introduced pursuant to the requirements of the RBI Circular on Risk Based Internal Audit dated
February 03, 2021 which provides for the framework to increase the efficiency and efficacy of the
internal control functions. )

Your Company endeavors to refine and enhance the existing internal controls from time to time;
and adequate systems & processes have been put in place to ensure internal controls including
but not limited to the financial controls over financial reporting.

Audit Committee of the Company regularly reviews the Audit Reports, monitors the compliances,
discussed the Reports and keep the Board updated on the same.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance. - Revenue,
interest, profit, other income

The standalone financial performance of the Company during the financial year ended March 31,
2021 are discussed hereunder

1. Revenue from Operations: Revenue from operations is derived from Interest Income,
Trademark & ticense fee, Consultancy fee and Profit on Sale of Investments. For FY 2020-21,




Revenue from Operations increased by 18% from Rs. 257.01 Crore in FY 2019-20 to Rs. 302.05
Crore in FY 2020-21, mainly on account of increase in Profit on sale of investment in GMR
Infrastructure Limited (the listed subsidiary} during FY 2020-21.

QOther Income: Other Income for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 54.82 Crore as against Rs. 213.61 Crore
for FY 2019-20. Gther Income was higher in FY 2019-20 on account of reversal of provisions
of Rs. 147.47 Crore during the year.

Finance Cost: Finance Cost shows reduction of 8% from Rs. £617.02 Crore in FY 2018-20 to Rs.
570.56 Cr in FY 2020-21 mainly due to reduction in borrowings through repayments during
the year.

Cther expenses: Other Expenses during FY 2020-21 was Rs. 73.70 Cr as against Rs. 162.97 Cr
during the previous year. The Other Expenses for the previous year was high on account of
loss in share in investment of LLP of Rs. 83.18 Cr.

Profit/{Loss) for the year: Owing to the above, Losses after Tax for FY 2020-21 shows
reduction from 312.78 Cr during the previous year to Rs. 292.22 Cr for FY 2020-21.

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of
people employed.

Your Company emphasis on appropriate human resource development and recognizes that its
human resources are its valuable strength in achieving its targets and objectives.

Due to corona virus Pandemic, the lives of all the Human resources was impacted during the year.
The Company endeavoured to follow new norms of social distancing, wearing of masks, use of
sanitizers, maintaining cleanliness to mitigate the risk due to spread of Corona virus and took
various awareness and support measures for health and safety of the employees. Buring the year
the Company switched to Work From Home Policy and encouraged its employees to learn new
skills, ideas, experience sharing; and conducted workshops for efficient time management,
improving overall efficiency, efficiency uplifting them emoticnally.

your Company has well planned to adapt and switch to hybrid work culture — a combination of
work from Home and Work fror Office, as and when necessary, to face further challenge, if any.
from pandemic. As part of the Group initiative, there is regular vaccination drive for the employees
and their families to prevent them from the pandemic.

As on March 31, 2021, the Company had thirteen employees on its roiis.

EESEERELELEES Y]




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AS ON MARCH 31, 2021

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL) is the ultimate holding company of GMR Group
and holds investments in listed and unlisted companies within the Group. It holds valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) No.C-07.00832 dated August 02, 2017 issued by the
Reserve Bank of India ("RBI”), Chennai for registration of the Company as a Non-
Banking Financial Institution - Core Investment Company under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company are a combination of
voluntary practices and compliance with laws and regulations enumerated as below:

1. Composition of Board of Directors: The Board of the Company consists of an
optimum combination of eminent entrepreneurs with skilled set of knowledge, who
effectively contributes to the Company’s business and policy decisions. The
composition of Board of Directors is given as betow:

Category
{Chairperson Initial Pate Fenure
Title (Mr.| Name of the DIN PAN fExecutive/ of *
/ Ms.) Director Non- Executive/ ; Appointment
independent/
Nominee) &
Mr. Grandhi Mom - Executive 25-09-2017
Mallikarjuna 60574243 AAUPGS856C Mon- Independent NLA.
Rao Chairman
M. - Non-Executive 25-09-2017 NLA,
Srinivas 00061464 | ADAPB2ISSL | dependent
Bomumidala h
Director i
Mr. ) . Mon - Executive 25-09-2017 NA,
Grandhlt Bgch: 00061686 AGAPGL105G Non- Independent
Sanyasi Raju Director
Mr. hi Ki Non - Executive 25-09-2017 M.A.
Grandhi Kiran 00061669 ADUPG3647G | yon- Tndependent
Kurnar Director
Mr. Venkata MNon - Executive 25-09-2017 M.A.
fay
MNageswara 00051167 ACUPBO349D Non- Independent
Rao BOda PO um i derree s ed e DlrECtor
Balasubraman Non - Executive; 15-02-2020 5 years
iy, iam 07512987 AAAPROSABE | Independent
R devi Mon - Executive | 41-08-2020 Y
Ms. Bama .g”’i 00575031 | AGLPB4218N | Mon- Independent
ommidala Birector

&Category of directors means executive/non-executive/independent/Nominee. if a'direclor fits inta more than ane category
write att catogories

* to be filled onty for Independent Director. Tenure would mean total peried from which [ndependent director is serving on
Brard of directors of the entity in continuity without any cooling

v Ms. Grandhi Varatakshmi (DIN; 00061699) resigned as Mon — Executive Non- Independent Director effective from closure
of working hours of July 31, 2020.

= M=, Winita Tarachandani (DIN: 07158537) resigned as Mon-Executive Independent Director w.oaf, May 5, 2020,
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2. Composition of Committees:

Committees:

The Company has constituted

the following

Name of Committee

Name of Committee members

Category
{Chairperson/Executive/
Non-Executive/

independent/ Nominee) %
Others, if any

1. Audit Committee

Mr. R, Balasubramaniam

Chairperson / Non- Executive/
Independent

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar

Member / Non- Executive/Non-
Independent

Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao | Member / Non- Executive/
Boda Non-Independent
S Chairman / Non- Executive/
) Neminat ) Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar Non-Independent
) Romma 'oh an Mr. Venkata MNageswara Rao | Member/ Non- Executive/
emuneration
: Boda MNon-Independent
Committea . .
Mr. R. Balasubramaniam Member / Non- Executive/
Independeant
Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao Member / Non- Executive/
Non-Independent
3. Corporate Social Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar msmﬁ“ég gﬁgéftxecutwef
Responsibility P ;
Committee Mr. Venkata Nageswara Raoc | Member / Non- Executive/
Boda Non-Independent
Mr. R. Balasubramaniam Member / Non- Executive/
Independent
Mr. R. Balasubramaniam ~Chairman / Non- Executive/
Independent
4 Inf " Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao | Member / Non- Executive/
- inrormation Boda Non-Independent
Technology (1T) Member (Chief Information
Strategy Committee | Mr, Kashinath Mahapatra Officer)
Mr. Bithal Kumar Bharadwaj® Me_mber (Chief  Technology
Officer)

5. Information

Mr. Bodapati Bhaskar*

Chairman / Non- Executive/
Non-Independent

Technology (IT) Mr. Kashinath Mahapatra gfef_mber (Chief  Information
Steering Committee icer) .
Mr. Bithal Kumar Bhardwaj”® Member  (Chief  Technology
' Officer}

6. Asset Liability

Mr. Bodapati Bhaskar

Chairman (CEQ- Family Office)

7. Risk Management

Management Mr. Vishalkumar Sinhat Member {Chief Finance Cfficer)
Committee
Mr. Ravi Majeti Member (Manager)
Mr. Bodapati Bhaskar Chairman {CEO- Family Office)

Mr. Vishalkumar Sinha?

Member (Chief Finance Officer)

Committee
Mr. Ravi Majeti Member {Manager)
8. High Level Mr. Vishalkumar Sinha® Member (Chief Finance Officer)
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Monitoring Mr. Ravi Majeti Member (Manager)
Committee
Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao Chairman/ Non- Executive/
Non-Independent
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala Member/ Non- Executive/
Non-Independent
9. Management Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi Raju Member/ Non- Executive/
Committee Non-Independent
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar Member/ Non- Executive/
Non-Independent’
Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Member/ Non- Executive/
Boda MNon-Independent

&Category of directors means executive/non-executive/independent/Nominee, if a director fits into more than
one category write alf categories separating them with hyphen

*Mr. Bodapati Bhaskar has been appointed as Chairman of Information Technology (IT) Steering
Committee in place of Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao Boda w.e.f. July 31, 2020.

*Mr. Bithal Kumar Bhardwaj has been appeointed as Member {Chief Technology Officer) of
Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee and Information Technology (IT) Steering
Committee (in place of Ms. Manisha Pawar Bansiwal} w.e.f. July 31, 2020.

Mr. Vishalkumar Sinha has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f,
August 01, 2020 (in place of Mr, Sreemannarayvana K. who superannuated effective from
closure of working hours of July 31, 2020).

3. Code of Conduct:

The Group/Company follows the written Code of Conduct (the "Code”) for the Beard
and Senior Management that serve as a basis for maintaining the standards of
business conduct for the Company and compliance with principies of Corporate
Governance and legal reguirements. The Board approved the Code of Conduct on
August 03, 2011.

4. Policies:

The Board has adopted various policies to carry out duties and functions in most
ethical and compliant manner as required under various statutes:

S. No. Name of Policy Date of approval
1. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy November 14, 2016
2. Policy of Related Party Transactions May 29, 2015 revised on
November 14, 2016
3. Whistle Blower Pdlicy November 14, 2016
revised on March 15,
2019
4, Nomination & Rermuneration Policy November 14, 2016
revised on March 15,
2019, revised on
September 26, 2019
5. Policy on Fit and Proper Criteria September 26, 2019
6, Policy on preservation of documents March 23, 2017
7. Policy on Internal Guidelines on Corporate | March 23, 2017 revised
... |Governance on June 24, 2019
8. Policy on Rescurce Planning July 27, 2016 revised on
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September 26, 2019

9. Fair Practice Code February 14, 2013
revised on November 14,
2018 rrantn

10. Investment Policy March 23, 2017 revised

0D Septernber 26, 2019

11, Loan Policy March 23, 2017 revised
on September 26, 2019,
revised on July 31, 2020

12, KYC Palicy January 29, 2018

13, Information Technology Policies May 30, 2018

14, Asset Liability Management Policy September 26, 2019
revised on July 31, 2020

15, Risk Management Policy September 26, 2019

16. Policy on appointment of Chief Risk Officer | July 29, 201%

(CROY

5. Officers appointed under various RBI Regulations:

N

Principal Officer: Mr, Ravi Majeti (KMP)
Reporting Officer under Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds: Mr. Ravi Majeti

(KMP)

O WO U W

Grievance Redressal Officer; Mr. Ravi Majeti (KMP)
Chief Information Cfficer: Mr. Kashinath Mahapatra
Chief Technology Officer: Bithal Kumar Bharadwaj
Chief Risk Officer: Mr. Pankaj

Neodal / Compliance Officer: Mr. Ravi Majeti (KMP)
Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Vishalkumar Sinha (KMP)
Company Secretary: Ms. Yogindu Khajuria (KMP)

6. Processes:

The Company follows various processes as good governance initiatives:

Preparation and ensuring implementation of ICSI Secretarial Standards and
Policies as applicable te CICs;

Creating knowledge sharing ptatforms for CIC and others Companies in the
Group for discussions and implementations of latest amendments and way
forward;

Preparing and releasing Newsletters for the benefit of all stakeholders within
the Group;

Conduct Study Circle meetings to facilitate open discussions with external
facilities on latest amendments;

Implement Compliance Management System known as Legatrix for tracking
Complances electronically;

Work for continued improvement as Centre of Excellence to provide support to
Group Companies;

Emphasis on enhancing core cempetencies to improve learning activities and
overall Corporate Governance Mechanism;

Adhering policies in right spirit;
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« Focus on implementation of Digitization initiatives;
« Ensure smooth flow of information to the top management and Group
Companies.

7. Number of meetings:

A. Meetings of Board of Directors:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, your Board of Directors met eleven
times on April 24, 2020, June 12, 2020, July 31, 2020, August 05, 2020, September 11,
2020, October 03, 2020, October 26, 2020, December 10, 2020, December 24, 2020,
February 05, 2021 and March 10, 2021.

The interval between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Number of the Board meetings attended by the DBirectors during the said period is as
follows:

B. Meetings of Committees:

Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of
Board Board Committee | Committee
Name of the Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
entitled to | actually entitled to | actually
attend attended attend attended
Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna 11 7 i4 8
Rao
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 11 5 11 2
Mr. Grandhi Buchi Sanyasi 11 2 11 6
Raju S S S S SUS
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 11 10 26 16
Mr. Venkata Nageswara Rao i1 6 28 15
Boda
Ms. Grandhi Varalakshmi 3 1 ¢ 0
{Resigned w.e.f. July 31,
2020
Mr. Batasubramaniam 11 8 14 i2
Ramchandran
Ms. Vinita Tarachandani 1 1 1 1
(Resigned w.e.f. May 05,
2020)
Ms. Ramadevi Bommidala” 8 3 0 ¢

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the following Committees met at
different intervals as follows:

Audit Committee: April 24, 2020, June 12, 2020, July 31, 2020, August 05, 2020,

September 11, 2020, October 03, 2020, October 26, 2020, December 10, 2020,
December 24, 2020, February 05, 2021 and March 10, 2021

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: July 31, 2020




CME Lnterpiises Frivate Limited - Corporate (overance Keport — WMarch 31, 2021

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: NIL

IT Strategy Committee: July 31, 2020 and January 19, 2021

IT Steering Committee: January 19, 2021

Asset Liability Management Committee: July 30, 2020 and January 25, 2021

Risk Management Committee: July 30, 2020 and January 25, 2021

Management Committee: June 29, 2020, June 30, 2020, July 20, 2020, August 20,
2020, September 22, 2020, November 06, 2020, November 21, 2020, December 07,
2020, December 31, 2020, January 29, 2021, February 08, 2021 and March 25, 2021.

8. Affirmations:

The composition of Board of Directors, Committees, Periodicity of Meetings of Board
and Committees, Awareness by Directors and Committee Members of their Powers,
Roles and Responsibilities are in terms of the following:

the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder;

SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 -
Debt Listing Requlations;

RBI Master Direction - Ceore Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 dated August 25, 2016 (as amended);

RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Depeosit taking Cempany and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 {(as amended);

RBI Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016 dated
February 25, 2016 (as amended);

RBI Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector
dated June 08, 2017.

R Kk Kk R K K R R kK Rk




Details of Debenture Trustees as on March 31, 2021

1.

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Asian Building, Ground floor, 17 R,
Kamani Marg Ballard Estate,
Mumbai, Maharashira-400 001
Email: swapnali@idbitrustee.com
Tel No.: + 91 22 4080 7000

Fax: +91 22 6631 1776

. Vistra ITCL {India)} Limited (Earlier IL&FS Trust Company Limited)

IL&FS Financial Centre, Plot No C-22, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East

Mumbai, Maharashtra-400 051

Emall: itclroc@vistra.com

Tel No.: 022-2659 3150

Fax: 022- 2653 3297

. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Office Nec, 83 - 87, 8th floor,

‘Mittal Tower’, ‘B Wing, Nariman Point,
Mumbal, Maharashtra—400021

Email: brindha.venkatraman@ctltrustee.com
Tel No.: 022-49220555

Fax: 022-49220505

Axis Trustee Services Limited*

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,

Mumbai, Maharashtra-400 0252

Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com
Tel No.: 022-24255215

Fax: 022-24254200

Annexure 5

*The debentures were redeemed during the financial year under review and Axis Trustee
Services Limited, as on March 31, 2021, is not a Security Trustee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under sec 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 34 of the financial statements, wherein the Company has made strategic
investments in group companies which are long term in nature out of borrowings. In view of this, there
Is mismatch of cash flows to service its liabilities and the Company is making continuous efforts to
raise its capital, monetise assets and also restructure loans to improve its liquidity position to meet its
liabilities.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter a4y



Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter. We have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Charge: INR 2,589.49 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021
Provision: INR 41,383.75 lakhs as at March 31, 2021

Subjective estimate

Recognition and measurement of investments in
subsidiaries and associates involve significant
management judgement

As detailed in note 7, the Company has
investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and
step-down subsidiaries amounting to INR
548,052.71 lakhs, in preference shares
amounting to INR 31,899.54 lakhs and INR
4,647.43 lakhs in debt instruments. Such
investments are individually assessed for
impairment as per the requirements of Ind AS 36
= Impairment of Assets,

We have identified impairment testing of
investments in subsidiaries as a Key Audit
Matter due to the magnitude of the carrying
value of investments in group companies, which
were 88.70% of the total assets as on March 31,
2021. Considering that the Company is a Core
Investment Company ('CIC’) which is primarily
required to hold investments and loans in group
companies as per Reserve Bank of India Master
Directions for CICs, impairment testing of
investments in such group companies continues
to remain an area of focus for the audit. The key
areas where we identified greater levels of
management  judgement and therefore
increased levels of audit focus in the Company's
estimation of impairment are:

» As part of such impairment assessment,

management considers financial
information, liquidity and solvency position
of investments in subsidiaries.

Management also considers other factors
such as assessment of the investee

Our audit procedures included the following:

Design /[ controls

» Understanding of the process, evaluating
the design and testing the operating
effectiveness in respect of impairment / fair
value assessment of investments done by
management.

» Evaluating management’s controls over
collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for impairment / fair
value of investments.

Substantive tests

» Testing appropriate implementation of
policy of impairment by management.

» Reconciling the financial information
mentioned in impairment assessment to
underlying source details. Also, testing the
reasonableness of management's estimates
considered in such assessment,

» Obtaining and reading latest audited
financial statements of subsidiaries, to the
extent available and noting key financial
attributes / potential indicators of
impairment.

» Challenge completeness and validity of
management judgements, particularly in
response to COVID-19 by critically evaluating
the risks that have been addressed by
management in the valuation approach

»  Assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data

» Assessing the factual accuracy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made in
the Financial Statements.




The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
company's operations, business
performance and modifications, if any, in
the auditors’ report of such subsidiaries.

» Economic scenarios - impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic on the Company's ability to
obtain adequate returns in the form of
dividend or through sale of its investments
in its subsidiaries, along with its ability to
find a buyer for the investments to
generate the expected return

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our
risk assessment, we determined that the
impairment of investments in subsidiaries has a
high degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable outcomes greater
than our materiality for the Financial Staterments
as a whole, and possibly many times that
amount.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’'s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read these reports if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter with those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income [ loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Compa




and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

K‘@E— L,



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2016 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required under section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our
audit, we report that, to the extent applicable that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Staternent of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B" to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(6) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us,
the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable

Wwith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us: .
B p g T
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position in its financial position. Refer Note no 26 (b) to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

fis Jvmme

B S Purshotham

Partner

Membership No. 26785
UDIN: 21026785A5AAE06856

Place: Chennai
Date: 18 June 2021



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date to the members of GMR Enterprises
Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view of the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us, in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of our knowledge, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) As explained to us, property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management at regular intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The Company does not have inventory as at the balance sheet date and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has granted loans to parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act and in this regard:
(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest

(b) The schedule and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts of
principal and interest amounts have been regular in most of the loans granted except in 1
case, where there is a delay in repayment of principal and interest amounting to INR 1,522.73
lakhs

{c) There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days except as given below:
{INR in lakhs)
MNo. of cases Principal amount Interest amount Total ]
1 1,442.00 80.73 1,522.73 ]
In our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of overdue
amounts where possible

(iv] In our opinion, the Company is a registered Core Investment Company / Non-Banking Finance
Company ("NBFC") under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") Act, 1934 to which
the provisions of section 185 and 186 except sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act, are not
applicable. In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has not made any investments through more than two layers of investment companies
as mentioned in sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act.

[v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by

RBI and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the



Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)

of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable which were outstanding as on March 31, 2021
for a period of more than six months from the date on which they became payable

(¢} No dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value
added tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

MName of the Amount in Period to which the Forum where the dispute is
statute INR lakhs amount related to pending
Value Added 49.04 2008-09 Additional Commissioner,
Tax (appeals), Haryana, VAT
Income tax 437.27 2008-09 CIT{A)-11, Bangalore
Income tax 311.37 2010-11 CIT(A)-11, Bangalore
Income tax 558 2009-10 TDS, AD
Income tax 10,523.44 2015-16 I.T.A.T, Bangalore

(viii) The Company has not defaulted during the year in repayment of dues to debenture holders,

bankers and financial institutions. The Company did not have any outstanding dues the
government.

(ix) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(x)

including debt instruments and term loans. In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, the Company has utilised the money for the purposes for which they
were raised.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(xi) The Company is a private company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xi) is not applicable.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion all transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188

of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.




(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and it has obtained the registration.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

ﬁ . ﬂ LA A
B S Purshotham
Partner

Membership No. 26785
UDIN: 21026785AAAAEOGBS6

Place: Chennai
Date: 18 June 2021




Annexure B: Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the
financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of GMR Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A



company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

g . - ’ L AT

B S Purshotham

Partner

Membership No. 26785
UDIN; 21026785AAAAEQBR56

Place: Chennai
Date: 18 June 2021




GME ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd Office : Third Floor, O1d Ne 248 /New No.114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah
Chennali - 600014
CIN:UT4000TNZOOTPTCIOZIRY

Bualance Sheet s at 315t March 2021
Moles 315t March' 2021 | 315t March 2020

Particulars Hsin Lakhs
Assets
Finaneial Assets
Cash and cash equivalients 3 1AABRTE 1407
Hank batance ather than cash and cash equivalents 1 7E7 LA
Recelivables
{i] Trade recelvables 5 13,500,342 AT
(1) Dther receivables
Loans f 47.112.15 TOR7591
Investments ¥ LT I A | R R
Duleer Anancial assets A 402128 AAGT.TR
6,20,681.95 6,88,727.41
Non-Financial Assets
Carrent L assels [nel) ¥ 262707 340760
Froperty, Plant and Equipment L LOKET.05 204300
(ther non-linancial Assels 1 A03.749 H{.T0
496841 6,260,506
Total Assels 625,650,360 6,54, 9087.77

Liabilithes and Equity
Linbilities
Financial liabilities

(1} Trade Payahles

[i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
[i] Lertal eentzctanclbng dues of creditors other than mlern enterprases 12 163157 aA494.28
and small enverprises

(1} Other Payables

(i) total otstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3
(i) tostal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 12 1au7.u 1 A0, in
and small enterprises

Deht Securities 13 251 6604004 2O IRLLT
Borrowings [other than debt securities] 14 34 304,040 153 11439
Other lmancial liabilities 15 B2A07.04 FN R ERER
Total Fimancial lialilites 3,73,466,63 439,109,465

Non-linancial labilities

P"rovisions 1h 3,790 34 AT
Other Mon-linancial labilites 17 19,31%.22 22714949
Total Non financial linbilities 2315050 2761115 |
Equity
Equity share capital 14 0,112.50 TR
(her eguily 14 2,193 2.67 2,20.,583.04
2,29,045.17 2,.28,266.97
Total Liabilities and Equity+B20 6,25, 650036 6,94, 387.77
Summary of significant accounting policies ]

The accompanying notes are an integral par of the inancial slalements.
A per gur report of even date
For B, Purushottam & Co,, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants GMR Enterprises Private Limited |
Firm Registration No, : Eﬂ30035

-
.45 Purshotham .M. Rao Grandhl Kiran Kumar
Fartner Chairman Director
M No D2a785 DMNODSTA243 IMN.O00EL A9
Place : Chennas Place: Dl Place: Dhabai
Dante ¢ THU June'2021
%——- e —
Bodapati Rhaskar S

Chief Executive Officer
Place: Bengalurn

w
Vishal Kumar Sinha Yog Kl juria
Chiel Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengalur M.No. Fa2iz

I"ace Pathanhol
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old No 248 /New No. 114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah
Chennai - 600 014
CIN:U74900TN2O07PTC10238Y

Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended 31st March'2021

Bt ot it 31st March zua;m lehs,ila,thimch 2020
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 20 5,B16.36 6,357.21
Trademark and License fee 20 27995 338.65
Consultancy Fees 20 730342 6,730.00
Prafit an sale of investment 20 L6,804.79 13, 274.90
Total Revenue from Operations 30,204.52 25,700.76
Other income 21 5.482.08 21,361.16
Total Income 35,686.60 47.061.92
Finance costs 22 57,066.12 G1,702.47
Employee benefit expenses 23 44982 232,56
Depreciation expenses 24 795 776
Other expenses 25 737021 16,396.75
Total Expenses 64,884.10 T8,339.54
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (29,197.50) (31,277.62)
Exceptional items - -
Profit/(loss) before tax (29,197.50) (31,277.62)
Tax Expenses
(1] Current tax
(2] Earlier Year tax 24.30
(3] Deferred tax .
Profit/[Loss) for the year (29,221.80) (31,277.62)
Other Comprehensive income f[loss)
[a) Remeasurements gain/{loss) af the defined benelit plans
(1] Equity instruments through other comprehensive income including
sale of Investments
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the vear i N
Tatal comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (29,221.80) [31,277.62)
Earnings per cquity share | Mominal value of share Bs. T07-each ] | a4 (34.28) [+2.63)
Basle and diluted)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart of even date

For B. Purushottam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 0028085

ﬁ,f_fwm"“ T ! M

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Bodapati Bhaskar
Chief Executive Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Vishal Kumar Sirtha
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Yogin

|
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e OT gl

i i _-'--__ o -
B.5. Purshotham \;""\'_} N G.M.Rao Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Partner ‘_::: v, porr Boag Chairman Director
M No 026785 k*( Rz, T. W | DIN.OO574243 DIN.00061669
Place ; Chennal g4 Place: Dubai Place: Dubai
Date : 18th June'2021 N

\“:-_\___I_I.:-""-. 2' /1 g

%

Khajuria
Company Secretary
M.No.F6232

Place: Pathankot

Date : 18th June'2021




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Repd.Office (Third Floor, Od No, 248 /New No.114

Rovapettah High Road, Royapettah
Chennai - 600 014
CIM:UT4900TNZODTFTC1IDETBY

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31st March 2021

, J1st March™ 2021 | F1st March 2020
Particulars Ws Lalha

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Taxation & Exteaordinary llems [29,1497.50) [31,277.62)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 745 TT0

Interest & Finaneial Charges 5547101 Af,692. 84
Operating profit before working capital changes 26,284.46 2942298
{Increase]/Decrease in trade receivables (4.671.52) [2.382.15]
{Increasc]fDecrease in Loans 3276376 [ 25,60H.H5]
{Increase]/Decrease in Oher linancial assets 4650 17.95
{Increase]/Decrease in Other non linancial assets 50591 0,275
Inerease/{Decrease] in Trade Payable 137.29 22607
Inereasef{ecrese ) in Other Payable [2.07] [ 15,047.27)
Increase/{Decrease] in Mon Current provisions | Lithaa2) (13756000
Increase{ Decrease] in Cther Financial lability 91412 [1.00EAT)
Inereasef{Decrease) in ther Mon Financial liability [1.475.76] (A ELATY

5190585 {19,234.30)
Taxes [paid] / Refunds 75573 (1087 60)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 52,661.58 [21.121.90)
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Sale fiPurchase] of Property, Plant and Equipment [1.94]) [293.01)
[ Purchase ) Sale of lnvestments{Ner] 35916507 G4, 130050
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activitics | B) 35913.13 63,837.52
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest & Financial Charges (5547401} | Gk 6Y2 EE )
Loans repaid_Long Term Borrowings (67, 265.4T) |65 A436.14)
Loan repaid_Short Term Borrowings TR R 29,126.449
Proceeds from issue of shares LR ] 42,493.27
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities [ €] o [92,166.37] (54.500.82)
Met Increase in cash and cagh equivalents [ A+B+C) (3,591.66) (11,793.20)
Cash & Cash Eguivalents, and other Baok balanees at the beginning of the year 4,703.55 16,490.75
Cash & Cash Equivalents, and other Bank balances at the end of the year 1,111.89 4, 704.55
L

Sumupsary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

Mote;

1. The ahove cashilow statement has been prepared woder the ' Indicect Method as set out in the INDAS - 7 on cashilng statements as

relerved toin section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003,

2. The above cashflow statement g been compiled from and is based on the balance sheetas o Marech 31, 2020 and the related statement

off profit and loss for the year ended on that date,
As per our report of even date attachaed
For B. Purushottam & Co,,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 0028085

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
GMR Enterprises Private Limited

§-5.lvimr

B.5, Purshotham .M. o Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Partner Chairman Director
M Mo 026TES DIN.ODSTA243 DIN.OD0GT 669

Phacis: Dl

Place: Dubsai

Plaee ¢ Chennan

Ihane o LHUR June' 2021
Bodapati Bhashkar

Chief Executive Officer -
Plaes Bengalurn

/
Yogindu KRajuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Phace: Bengaluru M.No FG232

Place: Pathanko

Erate @ 1Hth fune'2021
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Reqd.Office s Third Floor, Obd Mo 248/Mew Mao.114,
Royapeltah High Road, Royapetiah, Chennai - 600 (0114
CIN Mo UT4900TN2007PTC 102389

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

Corporate Information

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (*GEPL™ or "Company’} was incorporated on June 5, 2007
as investing company. The Company holds its investments in Group Companies with the
objective to consolidate and expand in infrastructure business mainly through its subsidiaries.
The company got registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as Core Investment Company
(C1C) and 1s categorised as Non-Deposit taking and Systemically Important CIC (CIC-ND-51).
The Company is the registered owner of the trademark and logo "GMR™ and licenses the usage
to its subsidiaries and also renders managerial services. The Company carns fee income on
trademark licensing and through managerial services

These standalone financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors
and authorised for issue on June 18, 2021,

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (
Indian Accounting Standards) rules 2015 ( as amended). Any application guidance/
clarifications/ directions issued by The Reserve Bank of India (RB1) or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for certain financial assets and labilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments) which have been measured at fair value as required under Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements are presented m Indian Rupees ("INR™ ar "Rs.7) which
is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest
lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

2.2, Fair value measurement
Fair value 15 the price that would be recerved 1o sell an asset or paid w transter a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the lhability takes place either:
a. Inthe principal market Tor the asset or halality, or

b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

Sl AL .




GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Reqgd. Office “Third Floor, Old Mo 248/MNew Mo, 114,
Royapettah High Road. Royapetiah, Chennai - GO0 014
CIN Mo U74900TN2007PTC 102388

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benelits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data arc available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which Tair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone linancial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level mput
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

2.3. Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behall ol the government.
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Regd Office Third Floor, Old Mo 248/Mew Mo, 114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - G00 014
CIN Mo U7A900TNZ007RTC 102384

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts
Interest Income

[nterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
of vutstanding and the rate applicable

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive mcome, as applicable, Interest income is recognised using the eflective
mierest rate (EIR) method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 1o the gross carrying
amount ol a financial asset. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

The EIR (and theretore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part
of the EIR, The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the
instrument.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established. which 1s generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Fees and commission

Fee based income are recognised when they become measurable and when it is probable
to expect their ultimate collection.

Commission and brokerage income carned for the services rendered are recognised as
and when they are due,

Trade mark and Licence Fees

Revenue by way of trademark and license fees in respect of self-generated trademark
owned by the Company, is recognised as a percentage of revenue ol licensees as per
the terms and conditions of the agreements entered into with the licensees.

2.4, Taxes on income
Current income tax

Tax expense lor the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payuble
i5 bused on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit difters from net profit as reported
m the statement of profit and Joss because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible i other vears and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is caleulated using the
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old Mo 248/MNew No, 114
Foyapetlah High Road, Royvapettah, Chennai - GO0 014
CIN Mo, UT4300TN2007FTC 102380

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
tems are recognised m correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between
the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability model. Delerred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred assets are only
recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assct to be utilized.

Deterred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is realized
or the hability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direetly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") paid in accordance with
the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future cconomic benefits in the form of
availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the assct can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the future cconomic benetit associated with the asset will
be realized,

Dretoerrad tax assets and delerred tas Labilities are eflset iL.gLJL sl enlureeable right
exisls woset ol the recognised amounts _e;'_-'»'f’“;_‘ !




GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Fegd. Office Third Floor, Old Mo 248/New No_114,
Royapeltah High Road, Royapeltah, Chennai - GOO (114
CIN No.U74900TN2007PTC 102389

Statement on Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

2.5. Property, plant and equipment

Frechold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, iU any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
assel. as appropriate. only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate assets are
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset
separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the
asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining assct.
These components are depreciated over their useful lives, the remaming asset 1s
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated uscful lives of the

assels as follows:

f__(,‘aterr, ory of asset™ Estimated useful life
Buildings ( Office/Residential) | 60 years

Plant and equipment * 4 - 15 years.
| Office equipment | 6 years o
B ure and fixtures 9-10 years
| Vehicles - 8 — 10 years
Computers O-7 years

#*The Company., based on technical assessment made by the technical expert and
management estimate, depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated
useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the

Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, 1b
appropriate,

An item of property, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially recognised
is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (caleulated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset 1s derecognised.

5 —
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2.0. Finance Costs
Finance cosls represents Interest expense recognised by applyving the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities other than financial
Liabilities classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed:

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the
amortised cost of a financial Lability.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
the cash flows.

¢ Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part ot
the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

[nterest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognised as part of the carrying
value ol the financial liability and amortised over the expected life using the effective
miterest method.

2.7, Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of cach reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts ol its
non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets may
have been impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its value in use or its fair value less costs of disposal. of the asset or cash-
generating unil, as the case may be, is estimated and impairment loss (if any) is
recognised and the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individoal assct, the Company
cstimales the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assct belongs.

In determimimg tair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
15 used, In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss s recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss s treated as a revaluation decrease. When an impairment subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is mercased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount. but upte the amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss
been recognised for that asset or cash-generating unit. A reversal of an impairment loss
15 recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset
s carried at o revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation merease. 1
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2.8. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result ol a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed. for example. under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the cffect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 15
recognised as a linance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting
its obligations under the contract, The provision is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract, Before a provision is established, the Company recognises
any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

A contingent liabilities is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
standalone financial statements.

Provisions and contingent liabilitics arc reviewed at cach balance sheet.

2.9. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form ol provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund
are defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable. The Company recognises contribution payable to provident fund,
pension fund and superannuation fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recoenised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid,
I the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due lor services received
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betore the balance sheet date, then exeess s recognised as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to. for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity Liability is a defined benefit abligation that is provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation. based on projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date, carried out
by an independent actuary. In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is
reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans 1o recognise the
obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
cetling, excludimg amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability). are recognised immediately in the standalone balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC1 in the period in
which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of*

a.  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs,

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or assel. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense i the statement of profit and loss:

a. Service cosls comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income.
Short Term Employvee Benefit
Accumulated leave. which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is
treated as short-term employee benelit, The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,
Long Term Employee Benefit

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
maonths, as long-term emplovee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year-end.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised when the Company becomes a
party 1o the contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets.
financial liahilities and financial guarantee contracts are mitially  measured  at
transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value. at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue ol financial
assets and financial labilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilitics at fair
value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the Fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability, Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Investments in cquity instruments issued by subsidiaries and joint ventures are
measured at cost less impairment.

Investments in preference shares/debentures of the subsidiaries are treated as cquity
instruments if the same are convertible into equity shares or are redeemable out of the
proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose ol redemption ol such
investments. Investment in preference shares/debentures not meeting the aforesaid
conditions are classified as debt instruments at amortised cost.

Alective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period, The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Financial asscts
i.  Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost il these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ol the
financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash lows that are solely paviments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

ii.  Financial assets measured at fair value
Finaneial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

il these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to

hold these assets in order to colleet contractual cash Hows or to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the finaneial asset give rise on
specificd dates to cash Mlows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding. The Company mrespeet of equit

5) el
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not held for trading has made an irrevocable clection Lo present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by
mstrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity mvestments,

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement of” profit
and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the shorter maturity of these
instruments.

Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, and debt
financial assets not held at FVTPL. together with loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts, in this section all referred 1o as “financial instruments’. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to anse over the life of the
assct ( the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL). unless there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since origination. in which case. the allowance is based on the 12
months’ expected credit loss ( 12m ECL)).

The 12m ECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a linancial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caleulated on cither and individual basis or a collective
hasis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of inancial instruments,

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each
reporting period, ol whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has  increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default
oceurring over the remaining hife of the financial strument.

The Company Tollows the regulatory framework preseribed by Reserve Bank of India
(RBI} for recognising Special Mention Accounts ¢ NPAs from time to time. in

entifying the default in its teade receivables and Toans extantdod.,
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Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loan into Stage |, Stage 2,

and Stage 3. as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are fivst recognised. the Company recognises an allowance based
on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the eredit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase credit risk since origimation, the
Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities,
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the
L TECL::

The calculation of ECL: The Company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contact and the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key clements are, as
follows:

PD: The probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if
the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD: The Exposurc of Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date (
in case of Stage 1 and Stage 2), taking mto account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether
scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and
accrued interest from missed payments. In case of Stage 3 loans EAD represents
exposure when the default oceurred.

LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where default
oceurs at a given time. [ is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of
any collateral, It is usually expressed as a pereentage of the EAD.

Impairment fosses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately  from
maodification losses or gains that are accounted for an adjustment of the fimancial asset’s

eross carrving value,
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The mechanies of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage |: The 12m ECL is calculated as per the portion of LTECLs that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months alter the reporting date. The Company calculates the 12mECL allowance
based on the expeetation of a default oceurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and
multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination.
the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs PDs and LGDs are estimated over
the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For Loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime
expeeted credit losses for these loans. The method s similar to that for Stage 2 assets,
with the PD set at 100 Y.

Forward looking information: In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range
of forward looking information as economic inputs,

iii.  De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
1o the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset
and the transfer qualities for de-recognition under Ind AS 109,

[f the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nisks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transterred assct, the
Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

I the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards ol ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration
received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Trade Reccivables and Loans:

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequenthy. these assets are

held at amortised cost. using the Flicetive Interest Rate ("EIRT) mcthod net ol any
-
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Expected Credit Losses ("ECL7). The EIR is the rate that discounts cstimated future

cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Finane

ial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and cquity instruments issued by the Company are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial hability and an equity mstrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Company afier deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

. Financial Liabilitics

.

Financial liahilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing bank
loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are
subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net ol transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the
borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these mstruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a liability at fair value. adjusted for transaction costs that arce directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantec.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derceognised when the obligation under the lability 1s
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Tiability 1s
replaced by another from the same Tender on substantially difterent rerms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantiglly modified. sueh an cxchange or
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modilication is treated as the de-recognition of the original lability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts

is recoenised in the statement of profit and loss,

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial asscts and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash al banks and
on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of Cash Flow

The Statement of Cash Flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby the net
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Statement
of Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company arc
segregated.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdra fts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured al
amortised cost or financial assets other than equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, Such assets include trade receivables, loan assets
and commitments,

The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments, requires

judgement. in estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and recoverability

of collateral values while determining the impairment losses and assessing a significant
increase in credit risk, The Company recognisces impairment loss on trade receivables
and advances as per expeeted eredit loss model. which involves use of provision matrix
constructed on the basis ol historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS
109, For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased sinee mitial
recognition. loss allowanee equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recogmised.
Loss allowance cqual to the lifetime expeeted eredit losses is recognised 1t the credit
risk on the financial instruments has signiticantly inereased sinee initial recosnition.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writlen off when there is no realistic
prospect of further recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could gencrate sutficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

However. linancial assets that are written oft could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking mto account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made from written off assets are netted off against
the amount of financial assets written ofT during the year under "Bad debts and write
olfs" forming part of "Impairment on financial instruments™ in Statement of profit and
loss.

The Company also follows the regulatory framework preseribed by Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) for recognising Special Mention Accounts / NPAs from time to time, m
identifying the default in its trade receivables and loans extended, includimg
mstructions and guidelines RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22,10.106/2019-20 on March 13, 2020 with respect to the
implementation of Ind AS by NBFCs. According to the guidelines, NBFUs, inter alia,
are to hold impairment allowances as required by Ind AS but are also to maintain the
asset classification and compute provisions as per extant prudential norms on Income
Recognition,  Asset  Classification  and Provisioning  (IRACP)  including
borrower/beneficiary wise classification, provisioning for standard as well as
restructured assets, NPA ageing, ete. The guidelines and instructions also reguire that
where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the provisioning required
under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCs is to appropriate the
difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate “Impairment Reserve’.
The Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Earnings per share

Busic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net prolit or foss T the period
attributable to the equity sharcholders by the weighted average number ol equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number ot equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issuc and shares split that have changed the number ol cquity shares
outstanding. without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose ol
calculating Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the period atiributable
to the equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Motes to the financial statements asat 31st March'2021

Cash and cash equivalents

[ Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 315t March' 2021 31st March 2020
Balances with banks:
= On current accounts 1.038.72 164.67
Cash on hand N
Total 1,038.72 164.67

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

st March® 2021

31st March 2020

Other bank balances
Fixed Deposits with Banks ©

317

4,538.38

Tatal

73.17

4,538.88

* Fixed Deposit are under lien towards security for BG's

Receivables

Particulars

st March® 2021

31st March 2020

Trade Receivables
Unsecured Considered Good

(i} Culstanding more than st menihs 1,603.15 1,580 64

(i) Outstanding less than six months 11,906.17 7,257 14

Other Receivables -

Total 13,509.32 ®,837.79
Loans

Particulars

st March® 2021

31sl March 2020

Loans at amaritised Cost

Unsecured Loans 1o Graup Companies - repayable on demand 47,112,15 7087591
Eai a7,112.15 ) 79,875.91




6T HEa'LL RIEIEEN e |
- [T
[FRR 0] SIUBWASEN F3 SINEA L UBSNUMU (0 UDIRIADAY S58]
Lrrl Ler i (sreunepy) SSWROH MO
4223 QG L5 o SEyg Anbg geIent un-dn ped fing
< BalTIENE U
BT LIE'LL e [ ey
rLEENLL 59002 PLERFLL TE'00°Z BT bng 1EM3UT WIND MET
L= CsLEP'EL STETL LR BT e WRIBGER0 ARIYIENH Oy
IES -1 5l A 5AEYE fxnb3 perond un-on pred dng
1507 POz T (2]
90T i [CAIEER
LIS LVE Bl 1P SAEMARGRIONS LUCLEAEIL ] WEAGLE ] WD
ELE a8 papwn Siesssaideg qrodeyery WNL YD |
EL9E e o] g shewssmce yeelpuRid RROUSY HNG
THOWwy = STUC|p| Izl
S908rac EENTEES [ERIEE
9% [ BT GA0 D0 90 L7 09 ORF 5L 00000 80 L7 I tog SEIMIUAREIU] BITEAT TS
Eajuzdw AEGENE O]
sy Aas s aadwoD Jagg yBnouy)
BNEA J50d « 4aEa - 4 0 Saueys Aunbg paaonk wn-dn pled ing =
T ELLEL PLEESSL [ERIEEN |
IER GET T e zzarl FILALSAAE JT BNES U LNMJILIp S0 varaiug 555
BLVEDE'T Lo0LL's BIEQR'E ooa'LL'e i tag Seqesd @5y semunielip
LT B0t L5 'ES'0L LTG0y 00%'65°01 £ 1 Faadoug mge regieniy
swdau) Balsuayaudwos
1510 yEnouy anjea gge 4 - seuedwon Aripisgng
s GRS T OD0'EEEE EFEES'E 000°82°5T y3EE | (I8N - P [sEamman) sEutiod D
=g G50 (4] BSOS 214 g SBwegy ardea MNa
aRulely qOaa0oL [aligile] 8 D000 0k BT g RIES e gD |
1001 SO0 000 ool oo’ e0'an A g S0nBean ALURIDi HIND |
Judll DODLL IS TR | O0'DSE D0 LE LSRR pEI) BEAu BRUMEE JUNTInPRL 1EF
BrOg5'T LAY DE'E 2 BYOEET a00'06'ar's Bt ing SELEdou ENEURALLEE HND
£8 39 [z ] ER'GRE’L Q3 LB LS PIT g OB D
01 ooo'os oo’ aon'aL Bi7 g sasudinuy sauRpe |
an'rs QLarars _ [ ao0'ax's B b SHLBORIG BRRCLRTUDY
Lost il il 4! | 00'5H nanos's At StiuBdtu AOgE S
0 LEE 30TaL'eE o0 EFE 000 DL'FE ] 1 ARIBUT S gD
CE LED GO0 GE0YE QELZD | DOo'DE'O0E B g FlRSLEYItilag § S wEM BTN
[Eafln]e R D2EEE'SHE Q0rias°E OBE'BG'GF T 097 14l SRudRILg ABUED) 1
PRIIOWN « SFIUTEL =T
yes L Sy 10 Sereyl AUND3 palonh unedn pred drg 1ol
[ BELLLLE'F (el meL
Gy H0L0E'S OELEFLI'DE'E | BRLLLLER [ D17 BMFNASELGU] D
FTRE] Meadwog
oI} LFILEES L] a7 MTIpEEg |
-(1°5Y Jo 5REYE Sunbg geqonb ped 4ing (el |
.hxa.._ “EH SRAUCYE JO0 9N SUMET By | SAICYE 4O 0N
1 Q702 "LE WER VEDT "RE MR FURLsIAUL PO 3E1R0

[STENT-EETTT R
L ZOZMRURRY 1SLE 1B SE SIUSMIFIETS [R1auTuly Syl O] S210N

BREZORDLSLO0THLOBERLN:NID
PO 0048 - EUUIYY
yeadedoy “peoy ubiy yeusdedoy
FLL'ON MANEFEON PID 9018 PNl A0 pEsy
P17 Ind Sasudiaiul 4No



LT EBLRE SELERE'TE 1@+ ] quDwWgsdau) o NEL 1) UHNUILIE J07 ugrSEaold TR
|ELEENES P F60'FE [ERICE
VeE P LT BaPER LE SEMEGE Al AL U UsWIERA| - 01 [Eraungyy ] SEEROH Hie

oL LEFL SuiSaa) - O] [Snaurey | sSuooH gD
. ErFOe8T | funbs w lwBwiEsd| - B [srasiany | SEuioH QNG
unpsiafag

LELRE'L LELBE'L [CRICET

Eripar TV LFe'r ERAMURIR L JURWASEeul - B 1 GIRIRGR] D

00 05T naasE Aypnbg W juawisasyg - P g 00 BIuEuld anaseg) TH |
i 55 EhE SHEYT FRURSRG L UBWlgEng - PTT Mg YFRIERY BN

% | ERSEE'L Aznbg w ubwiSanu - BIT W YSIIELU VD

TIPU] O] SiUaLU L BAG] 350 0] - BRERHNLIIA 18] Uoj=|adid

0Z0T "TE YHEW

1Z0Z 'TE Y&l

SERNI|LIE JUdWSaALY

WAL EB AW J BNTA 1] UDDINUWER J0p uarEsoud G4l J0p dnEeaun 25 uugs i

S'E

| ZLELETS

HE IFROE'S TELEE'PSS SIUWEEES ALY _a_.a._._

S EOS'LE PESED'FT SRATIAAD U1 SIUSWIEIALA JO SM)EA it JEINUILIp JD) uDisiesld il ¥Basdy 5|

PRLET'L LELBT'L BEIU| Ul SLUBLLIISAAL 3 SRS Ui UDRINUILIP I} uisagidd F1edaamily - i
5 SE0 L wh S0 VE SEFSHAD L S|USw

B0 L FiEan U]

OZ0T 'TE YHEw

| 1202 "TE yEn

UDIF IO} [FUTLPRY

T LGLRE SLERE'IE JURLITTER J5 BT(EA W1 ERNIPEIID 23] LoISIhead J0 Junwe 2183305y i
ST GEG'FN'T BT'BET'SO'T =g
sIBaLIsaM PEIGRDWR 0 Juncwe 2eBaEly (v
TH9E0'L0's EEEE0TE PUITTRE S FLITH
GE00LNT'S BRITT G a3
|6 1A 40pY PUE Sruawikaag $aienk joanjes s1edaully )
OZ0Z “TE YR | TZ0T 'TE Y2ew URNELLIRLLE [FUatippY
[BrzreoES LEIZEFE S T0 B £] E30 ] pUeIS)
B = [INEED
FEFIIT z - =¥ UDAIBIEY) ENid U5ED) 159
Td 10 IUBLBIEIE LA - S Ul juusain) )
[T [ [
00'5E o0 doL | puang a0e35 FUEg puivy
1500 PATIIGAY - SlUmuBIEaAL] Wa] Bugq| (4]
3 . 1B} o
TEP 20970 Ttrirdpl E|LBLPERRLE 3 BIREA U LQNULep 0y moisedlg 8980
| CrLb3T LEL's EF L'y Oz} 017 b UIRHY] WD Sei00
1 Uy - saucipisg { By
- - AL
T+5 EBE 1T) (r5'6E8 LE) SILFULETAL FT BMES B uEENUAD Joj uDisLns (S5ET
S5 FEF'LE st R R EEPERLE DEEEL MRS uZ2E (S0 L5 « B (smgqurmepy) shudics s TS
2 B W WRAIRLLY YN
1502 BOZILIOHIY
- SHUEEDISANE UMDROIIE U ~SaTyS 03UBBIRsd (H FIURLLLEIAY|
Earlw COLG0'0E S5'HIF Qno'on'as FI7 Wi L3RR IU] HINE
199 pAINDUNY 1]
-SRALEIPISONS «a0a -p0 L S SMEYS FIUaIAEL 1) HE_E_».?E._
SUNET sy | SWRYS 40 ON 4T SN SRaEYg p0 Oy
OBEOE "1 MIBH LEO2 'LE WRN sjuaunEaIAU| §o SReihg

SUURERALL §

LZOZ.UE IELE 1 SE SJUAWSIELS [BISUBUY DY) O] SELI0N

GRTZ0L DL JLO00ZNLODERLNNID
LD 008 - IEUEAYT
yepadedoy ‘pecy yiiy yraadeioy
FLLON MENIEPZEN IO Fooid pagL B0 riay
P17 g sAEUdITIUE HIND



GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Repd. Office Third Floor, Old No 248 /New No. 114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah
Chennai - 600014
CIN:UT4900TNZO07 P TCIO238Y

Notes to the financial statements as at 3150 March 2021

9

Other financial assets [ Rs. Lakhs)
I1st March' 2021 31st March 2020

Unsecurad Loan & advances to employees 10.45 18.14

Deposits 4235 4235

Interest receivable on Loans, FOs with banks, Bonds & Others 3963848 4,407.28

Total 4,021.28 4,467.78

Current tax assets [Net)

31t March' 2021

3st March 2020

Advance income-tax {net of provision far taxation)

2.627.57

3,407 60

Total

2,627.57

3,407.60
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GME ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITET
Repd.Office “Third Floor, 0ld Mo 248 New No. 114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah
Chennai - 600014
CIN:UTHOTNZO07PTCIOZIRD

Motes to the financial statements as ot 31s1 March' 2021

Trade & other Payables

[ s Lakhs)

Particulars 315t March' 2021 | 31st March 2020
Trade Payables
(1} total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(11) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than muero enterprises 303157 340428
and small enterprises
Other payables 1,397.93 1A00.00
Total Trade & other payables 5,029.50 4,894,227

ekt Securities at Amortised Cost

Particulars

315t March' 2021

31st March 2020

Hon Convetible Debentures - Secured [ Including Accrued Interest)

25160604

2.00,181.17

Total Debt Securitices

2,51,666.00

20018117

et Seurities in India
[3ebt Seurities outside [ndia

LALB72.85
1,10, 793,24

1,11, 14:4.30
29,036.87

2,51,666.09

2,00,181.17

Secured, redeemable and non-canverlible dabantures (MCDY of Bs. 10 lakhs (Rs | ono.oooy face value cach issued to a Company/ Inwesiment
banking compary amounting Lo Rs 67,500 lakhs { March 2020, Rs 67,500 lakhs)The debenturas are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR
Infrastructure Lid and repayable in June'2022 { orginally repayabla in 4 quartery instaliments staring from 15t Apnl 2019 and these MCD's are

restruciured during Sept’ 19)

Securad, redeemable and non-converlible debenlures {MCDY) of Bs. 10 lakhs (Rs

1,000,000 Tace value each issued 1o inancal inslitution

amounting to Rs.6,510 lakhs { March 2020, Rs.7.300 lakhs). The debeniures are secured againzl Pladge of shares of GMR Infrastiuciure Lid and

repayable in August 201

Secured., redeemable and non-converlible debantures (NGO of Rs 10 takhs (Rs

1,000 0003 face value each issued 1o inancial inslitution

amaunting o Fs. 12,500 lakhs { March 2020, Bs 12,500 lakhs) The debentures arg secured againzl Pladge of shares of GMR Infrastruciure Lid

and repayable in March™2022

Spcured, redeemable and non-convertible debentures (NCDY of Rs 10 lakhs (Rs. 1,000,000} lace value each issued 1o financial inslitution
amaunting lo Bs.9,120 lakhs { March 2020, Fs. 10,000 lakhs). The debaentures are secured againsl Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastruciure Lid and

repayable in March'2022

Secured, redesmable and non-converible debeniures CNCDY of Rs 10 lakhs (Rs. 1.000.000) face vatue sach issued lo financial institution

amounting to Rs 10,000 lakhs { March 2020, Nil). Tha debenlures are securad against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Lid and repayable in

Aprir 2022

Secured, redeemable and non-converible debeniures ("NCDY of Rs A0 lakhs (R 1,000,000 face value each issued Lo financial institutian
amounting Lo Rs 18,750 lakhs ( March 2020, Mil). The dehanlures are secured agans! Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Ltd and repayabla in

warch'202:4

Secured, redeemable and non-converdible debentures (MDY al Rs 10 lakhs (RS 1,000, 0040} face value each issued Lo financial inslilubion

amounting le Rs 8,700 lakhs { March 2020, Mil) The dabanlures ara secured aganst Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Lid and Rs. 580

Lakhs repayable in March 2022 amd balance Rs 120 Lakhs repayable in Dec 2022 L
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GMRE ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd Office (Thivd Floor, O0d No 248 /New No. 114
Rovapettah Nigh Road, Royapettah
Chenmai - G0 014
CIN:UTAQ00TNZODTPTCLOEIRY

Motes to the financial statements as al 31st March’ 2021
Secured, redeemable and non-converible debamures (NGO of Rs 10 lakhs (Rs 1,000,000 face value each issued 1o inancial inshiluhion

amounting lo Rs 21,300 lakhs ( March 2020, Mil) The debanlures are secured agansl Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Lid and Rs. 1,420

Lakhs repayabla in March'2022 and balance Rs 19,880 Lakhs repayabla in Dac'2022

Secured. redeemable and non-converible debentures (NGO of Fs 10 lakhs (Rs. 1,000,000} face value each issued fa linancial inslitution
amaunting to Rs 65040 lakhs { March 2020, MNil). The debanlures are secured againsl Pladge of shares of GMR Infrastruciure Lid and repayable in

Dec'2023

Secured, redesmable and non-eanverlible debentures (NCDY of Rs 10 lakhs (Rs. 1,000,000) lace value each issued 1o inancial inslitution

amaounting to Rs 35,000 lakhs ( March 2020, Mil) The debentures are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastruciure Lid and Rs 20,000

Lakhs repayable in Oct'’2023 and balance Rs 15,000 Lakhs repayabla in Moy'2023

Sacured, redecmable and nan-converible debenluras (NCDY) of Rs. 10 lakhs (Rs, 1,000,000} ace valua each issued Lo financial institutian

amounting to Rs Nl { March 2020, s 22 000 lakhs) The debentures are secured against Pledge of shares of GMR Infrastructure Lid and Rs

12,000 lakhs repayable in April 2020 & anothar Rs 10.000 lakhs repayable in June2020

Borrowings (other than debt securities] at Amortised Cost

Particalars

315t March" 2021

31st March 2020

Incian Rupee Term Loans from Financial Insttutions [ Secured) 15,500100 F0,900.00
Indian Rupee Term Loans from Others { Unsecured| - 52500010
Indian Rupee Term Loans from Group Companies & Relaed Parties{ Unsecured] 1B,H6:400 RAUSH.T0
Liahility Compopent al compouwnd Guancials instoaments
Preference Shares . 1,756.03
Total Eurruwﬂgs {other than debt securities) 3436400 1,53,114.39
Barrowings in India 34,3640 L53114.39
Horrowings nulside India . z
34,364.00 1,53,114.39

SecuredLoan from financal instilution of Rs, 7.500.00 Lakhs [ March 2020: Rs. Mil} againsl he secunly of the GMR Infrastruclere Lid Shres

Fledge repayable in Febuary'2024

Sacurad lean fram financial instilution of Rs. 8,000 Lakhs (March 2020 Rs 12,000 Lakhs) is secured against Pledge of GMR Infrastructure Lid

shares, repayable in Feb'2022
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GME ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Office Thivd Floor, OLd No, 248 /New No 114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettal
Chennai - 600 014
CIN:UTAMMITNZO07PTCLOEIES

Notes Lo the inaneial statements as at 3150 March” 2021

Unsecured loan from Graup Companies  of Rs 18,864 lakhs | March 2020 Bs. 61,714 39 lakhs) Rs. 8,565 50 lakhs payable in June'2023,

R 7 700.00 lakhs in March'2024 | Rs 500 Lakhs payable in Dec’ 2021 and anclher Rs. 2,098 50 Lakhs payable i Septi2023

Loan fem financial inslitution of Rs. 17,400 lakhs { March 20200 Nily against security of the Curent Assets of lhe Company repayble in July 2020,

Unsecured loan from bady corparate of Rs. Mil {March 2020 Rs. 52.000 Lakhs) repayalble in July' 2020

SecuredLoan from inancial insliutien of Rs. Mil ( March 2020 Rs, 9,500 Lakhs) a

Shres Pledge repayable in Febrian2022

(ther financial liabilities

qainst the secunily of the securnly of the GMR Infrastructure Lid

Particulars

A1st March' 2021

A1st March 2020

Securny Deposiy

1329173

A5,0749.03

Tterest accrued Bat not due on Borrowings Q16153 5,956.33
Current Maturities of Long Term Delbt 39,940.00 39, 306,84
Financial Guarantees 1474 GleS6

Tonal Other financial liabilitics 22 .407.04 80,919.81

Unsecured Indian rupee lerm lean from olhers of Rs, 10,000

lakhs ( March 2020; Rs. 10,000 Lakhs} of the company repayabile in June'2021

Unsecurad loan from Group Companies  of Rs. 10,240.00 lakhs { March 2020- Rs, 3322 59 Lakhs) Rs. 240 00 lakhs payable in SeplZ021,

R 10,000 lakhs i May 2021

Sacurad loan fram financial instilulion of Bs.5,000 lakhs (March 2020 Rs

shares, and repayabla in Juna2021

5000 Lakhs ) is secured againsl Pledge of GMR Infrasiniclure Lid

Unsecured Indian rupee term laan from athers of Rs. 7,700 lakhs { March 2020; Rs. §,700 Lakhs) of the company repayable in Sepl2021

SacuredLaan from financial institulion of Rs. 7.000 Lakhs March 2020: Nil) agains! the securily of the security ol the GMR Infrastructure Lid

Shras Pledge repayable Rs 10 Crores each calender quarler and balance amount in Feb'2022

Unsecured Indian rupee term laan from financal instilution af Bs. Nl { March 2020 Fs 13,344 Lakhs) of the company Rs 200000 Lakhs

repayable i June' 2020 and Rs. 1 1,244.00 Lakhs rapayabla in Sepl 2020

Provisions

Particulars Tist March' 2021 | 31st March 2020
Pravisien e employes benefits 177.38 T2H0
Provision loe Standard Assets 20600 728
Provision lor Doubithfl Assets 3.375.88 3 L1H30
PFrovision for Substandard Assels 1,397.62
Total Provisions 3,70 E4 4890160
O her non financial linhilities
Particulars

Fist March' 2021 | 31sl March 2020 |

statutary Liabilivies
Addvanees receivid
Preterred Aecenen - Secariy Depeos [S0W

BRI

&

1400 vl

iz
Z.TUTAM

17549597

To, 1

1933922 | 22,714.99 |
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Motes Lo Lhe fieancial statements as ot st Mareh® 20021

L Share Capital

S8t March® 2l

Alst March 20020

Share Capital

Mo |1t'5h.u':!.-i

s Lakils

Wil Shares

Ry, Lakhs

Authorized

Proference S

Enuaty Share of B 105~ Fach
Tssuel, Subsseribed & Fally Paid Up

1,75, 540,000
50004

1, 75500
2, 50000

1.75,450,000
0 5L

L 7A5.0H
4, 5k Ik

Freference Share - . -

Equly Share 010,205,002 .15 ThHEANITH 708399

TOTAL 112G 00 9,112,650 T A9 70 ENH KRR

nciliinti at the begi amed at the epd of the Year
— 3 151 March® 2021 F1st March 2020 — |
Mo of Shares Rs. Lakhs No of Shares s, Lakhs

Dpemng Balance FHE30. 370 7.hE3.93 {1, 20,74 4 0O, 267470
Shares Bzsued during the vear LAZAG 710 142807 141,04, 42H 1A41GAA
Shares bought back during the year . . - .
Closing Balance O, 11,25,0%2 N1 1E RN TAHB,39.3T0 7.0R3.93

b) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Every member holdimg equity shares therein shall have veling rights in
proportion to the member's share of the paid up equity share cagital. The Company dechires and pays divadend m Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by e
Roard of Birectors, of any, is subject te the approval of the sharcholilers m the ensuing Anmial General Mecting,

In the event of iguidation of the Company, the holders ol cquity shares would be entithed o recetve remaming assets of the Company, after distribution el all
preferential amownts, The distribution will be ioproporton to ther numbser of couity shares held by the couity shareholders.

i holding

e shires in the Company,

Fist Mareh' 2021

F1st March 2020

Mame of the Share holders

No.of Shares g of Halding Mo.of Shares Yo ol Holding
El 22781149 PR DL 1,92 040,720 240098,
Grandin Varalakshmi Mallikarjuna Rao Trust
b, bSrinivas Bommidala and Ramadevi Trost 2,27 81,149 24,9990 % 1,932,007 20 2459081,
- [Er.'mdhf Ii.iur_'hi. Sanyas Raju and Satyavathi 2.27,81,149 24, 9990% 1L02,00.720 28 OO
Stitha Trust
d. [Grandhi Bivan Eumar and Ragim Trust 227.01,149 249998 1,923,080, 720 2499015

As per record of the company, including its register of sharcholders fmembers and other declarations received Trom shareh olders regarding benoficial imterest, the

ahave sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial cwnerships of shares.

19 Oiher Equity

Mlel f(Less) : Profit / [Less] for the yoar
Closing, Balance

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Dpening Balance
Al Less ] Eflect of measuring Fyuity Insaraments at Fan WValue
I leazing Ralance

m

(20,22 L)

Particulirs 31st March' 2021 F1st March 2020
Al Equity component of compeound financial instroment 1,361.24 1,361.24
BlCapital Reserve 14, 10600 3,34, 106,60
| Securities Premium
Opening Balance A0 ES 22460
Adidf [Less): Received f (Utilised) during the yvear 2057143 4L070.H3
Ulasing Balance Th, 9T 2. Adb 401,43
Cipeming Balance [2.50,357.39) [2.1907977)

(31.277.62)

[2.79.579.1%)

[2,50,357.39]

H7,071.10

R B H

0707110

H7.071.10

Total Other Equity (A to E)

219,032 67

220,583, 04

The deseription of the natare and purpose af each reserve within coquity i as lalles

. Eguity component of compound finaneial instrument

Ecurty Compuinent of Compound Fasmwial Tnstruments represent vesidual amaunt alter deducting liabilitg component rom the B value ol the compeiid

Nirveacial mstruments

i Capital Reserve arised onaccount of M Teldings Mt el Morger with she e Company dovmg the FY 2010415

i Seeurithes Premiom

Secwrities Frommm os used o record the preminm an ssue of shares The resen

acenrilance with the provissens of e Companes Act, 2008
e Retained Earnings
Retained Earmngs are the poobins that the Company s earned bl dan,
shairaholders,
v, Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive meome
The o walue change el the cguity imstruments measored ab Lo valo

Fanmings

v transler Lo General Beserve, donidenids
-

s '.__-;'_

i’ e j.
thaosich l.!lllj':u_n" Comprehenziiad locome
Bnstruments throngh Gher Compeehensiee neome, On disposal, the caedaa tleaalie el 1tpe s
{ ol [

v b ublised only tee lovted purposes such as sswance of bonus shares i

other distobomos paidld to

et wnder Bouity
sailivd v Hetnnaed
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah

Chennai- 600 014

CIN:U74900TN2Z007PTC102389

Notes to the financial statements as at 31st March '2021

Revenue From Operations

{ Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March' 2021

31st March 2020

Interest Income

(i) Interest on Loans

5,698.77

0,284.36

(il)Interest on deposits with Banks 33.03 72.84
(iii)Interest on IT Refund 8456 -
Total Interest Income [ A) 5,816.36 6,357.21
Trademark and License fee ( B) 279.95 338.65
Consultancy Fees ( C) 7,303.42 6,730.00
Profit on sal investment

(i) Profit on Sale of Investment 16,773.54 12,047.65
(ii) Profit on Sale of Mutual Funds (net) 31.25 22726
Total Profit on sale of Investments ( D) 16,804.79 12,274.90
Total Revenue from Operations ( A+B+C+D) 30,204.53 25,700.76

Other Income

Particulars

31st March' 2021

31st March 2020

Provisions no longer required, written back 1,458.82 16,259.49
Creidtors written off 6.36 -
Gain on account of foreign exchange Auctuations - 1,324.06
Security Deposit-Deferred interest income 3.513.42 3,523.04
Miscellaneous income 50351 25457
5,482.08 21,361.16

Particulars

31st March' 2021

31st March 2020

Interest on debts and borrowings 5547401 60,692,854
Bank Guaralnee Commission 352.40 199,17
Bank Charges 15.64 36.46
Other Finance Charges 1,214.07 F74.00

57,056.12 61,702.47

23 Employee benefits expenses

24 Depreciation & Amortisation Charges

Particulars

31stMarch' 2021

31st March 2020 |

Salaries, allowances and benefits to employees 389449 211.65
Contribution to Provident fund and other lunds 25.70 [4.65
Gratuity expenses 28.69 4.15
Staff wellare expenses e 2.11

449.82 232.56

Particulars

31stMarch' 2021

3 l_f;t ["_ri.'lrch 2020

Depreciation

7.95

7.76

795

7.76
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Notes to the financial statements as at 31st March "2021

Other Expenses

[ Rs. Lalkhs)

Particulars

31st March® 2021

31st March 2020

Communication Expenses
Conveyance Expenses

Bidding Expenses

Brokerage and Commission
Advertisement & Sponsership Exp
Annual Fee

Demal Charges

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Rates & Taxes

Directors Sitting Fee

Professional Charges

Security Transaction Tax

Software Licence & Installation
Printing & Stationery

Insurance

Interest on delayed payment of taxes
Standard Assets Provision as per RBI Act
Sub-Standard Assets Provision as per RB1 Act
Provision for Doughtfull advances
Loss Assets Written off

Rental Expenses

Postage and Courrier Charges
Maintenance and Security Charges
Office Maintenance-Other

Other Expenses

Travelling Expenses

Certification Fee

Audit Fee

Auditor Certilication Fee

Audit Expenses

Trade Mark Expenses

Trustee Charges

Consent Fee

Share of Loss in LLP Tnvestment
Provision for Dimunsion in value of Investments

.48 (.23
1.00 .78
281 1.77
- 2.58
.50 139
0.05 (.10
L.63 395
125.25 7.43
22578 19265
2.85 -
3.682.82 3,188.93
16.50 2216
095 0.88
.40 0.53
9.07 223
127.82 206.24
115.83

257.51 -

5 400225
(.84 092
0.17 (.16
6.07 6.04
1.68 0.03
014 0.03
202 4,88
2.10 373

10000 11.00

0.15 .

. 3.02
12.19 6.19
24.00 4.75

237.96 287.85

5 Ha18.21

258649 -
7,370.21 16,396.75

Note (i) : Payments to Auditors

Particulars

31st March' 2021

31st March 2020

Audit Fee 1000 11.00
Cortification Charges (.15 055
Audit Expenses - - 3.02

Total 10.15 14.57
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

26. Contingent Liabilities:

il

CGuarantees ete,

C nrpﬂhllt Gum:mtum

Par tlculars

I‘Lri"m mance Bank Guarantees

b,

Grand Total

T Mareh 31,2021

| (Rs. Lakhs)

57,416.16 |

30,000.00

_ 8741616

March 31, 2020
~ (Rs. Lakh !akhq}

1,41,790.89
30,000.00

Appeals pending against Tax Liabilities under dispute as on March 31, 2021 Rs. 11,326.70
Lakhs (March™ 2020; Rs.11,450.70 Lakhs).

'§.No | Nature of dues

| VAT

2 [Income Tax
3 | Income Tax
4 | Income Tax

Income Tax

The u;mpuny expects no lmhsl]t}r under the above items.

I mmuml
CYear
2008-09

2008-09

pen ImglI
Additional  Commissioner,

| appeals), Haryana, VAT

CIT(A)-1 | Bdl'l"dh‘.llt.

7

2010-11 | CIT(A)-11, Bangalore
| 2009-10 [TDS,AO
2015-16 | LT.AT, Bangalore
Total

Amnunl_{_ I

Rs. Lakhs)

_l_f},523.44
11,326.70

27. The following long term investments included in Note No 7 have been pledged by the
company.

a) towards borrowings of the Company

' March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 _
S. Name of the Serip No. of Shares | Face Value | No. of Shares Face Value
No - sy |  Rs) |
| GMR Infrastructure 2.35,09,14,650 | Rs. 1/~ per | 2,50,96,70,768 | Rs. 1/- per share
A Lid | share 4 —
2 | JSW GMR Cricket Pvt. 2,001,693 Rs. L0/- per 2.00,693 Rs. 10/- per
Lud - share i ~ share
3 Kothavalsa 1L,76,50,000 | Rs. 1/~ per - -
| Infraventures Pvt. Lid | share s S
by towards borrowings ol the Group Companics
| | March 31, 2021 [ March 31, 2020 ‘
5. Name of the Serip | No.of Shares | Face Value | No. of Shares | Face Value (Rs.)
No | ’ Rs)
| GME Infrastructure 5,02,22,313 } Rs. |- peri 5 *}"h'”."m]* Rs_ 1.- po share
I1d _ ¢ share | ——
2 GMR Solar Energy | 7,200,000 PRs - per | T ’?{] f}T"_‘“‘i@\L{] per nh,;fﬁ"ii-\qﬁé:
Pyt Lid | | share !
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

28.Public disclosure on liquidity risk as at 31, March’ 2021 pursuant to Para IX to Appendix |
to RBI Circular RBI2019-20/88/DOR/NBFC(PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 Dt. 4'h
November'2019 on *Liquidity Risk Management Framework™ for Non-Banking Financial
Companies and CICs:

(i)  Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and
horrowings):

5.No Number of Significant | Amount %% of Total % of Total
. ~ Counterpartiecs | (Rs. Lakhs) deposits Liabilities * |
I NCDs - 12 parties 1,95.880.00 Not 49.39%
o — S | Applicable —
2 Group Companies — 0 partics 20,104.00 Not 7.34 %
| S R . Applicable |
3 Body Corporates — 3 parties 22,700.00 Not 5.72 %
S il B i | Applicable | i
4 Financial Institutions — 4 Parties 22.500.00 Not 5.07%
Applicable - A

* excluding cquity and other equity

(i) Top 20 large deposits (amount in ¥ erore and % of total deposits):
The Company doces not accept public deposits.

(iii) Top 10 borrowings amounts to Rs. 2,09,585.50 Lakhs and constitutes 77.57% of total

horrowings

(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product:

S.No. | Name of im‘lrunwnﬁprmluut " Rs. Lakhs | % of Total Liabilitics |
I | NCD's o 10588000 | 49.39%, B
2 1Y - - ":;}“I-._E{H.{][} . l."w.{iﬁ“_.-i;
__?.__ Term i.nun:f. i .“__:’E;_i"s.[.]'ﬂ.[]i}' S ‘:l_fﬁu
|

# excluding equity and other equity
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(v) Stock Hatios:

[SNo.]  Particulars . | %
{1 Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and None
total assets
2 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as

a % of total public funds, total liabilitics, and total asscts

%4 of Total public Funds None
oy of Total Liabilities MNone
%4 of Total Assels ~ None

3 Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total
liabilities. and total assets

% of Total public Funds 33.53%
% of Total Liabilities 22.84%
Yo of Total Assets 14.48%

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

Overall liguidity risk management is overseen by Board of Directors at apex level. As per
the requirement of Master Directions-Core Investment (RBI) Directions 2016 and guidelines
on Liquidity Risk Management Framework, the company have constituted Asset Liability
Management Committee ( ALCO) & Risk Management Committee to monitor liquidity risk
apart from this there is a working level team.

29, Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/39 i.c. Master Direction — Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 Dated August 25,2016 (Updated as on
October 05, 2020)

A. Asset Classification and Provisioning:
Classification of Loans & Advances, Trade and other receivables and provisions made for
standard/substandard/doubtiul/loss assets are as given below:
~Classification of Assets: -

Particulars

_ (Rs. Lakhs) _
March 31,2020 |

:'[1:’-['_:“":]'1_3 1, 2021

| Standard assets T plEEE 76.820.29 |
Sub-standard assets - . - Nil R _ I_ﬁ}ﬁﬁ.l_i_
Doubtful asscts - o ) 337588 | R IIR3T
I - Total - 6489605 | 93.914.81
Closing balance of provisions: - _ _
E _ Particulars | March31,2021 | March 31,2020
" Sandard assets 246,08 | _ 307.28 |
Suh-standard assets ] 5.  1.397.62
Doubtiul assets 3 g 31 5.37
Taotal 1,(12I.'}@}1 A Nor -'-.-\';.':- \ 4,823.27 |
T\
o Ol o &)
\\’\‘:\-__.ff
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Movement in the Provisions: -

( Rs. Lakhs)

| Particulars i March3l, | March '*H
- . o - 2021 2020

Standard assets o = _
Opening balance 307.28 191.45
mitlltm]mi provision -’{ Reversal uf prov mnn}l tlunn;__, ﬂ'l{. ;,_;_1:_:11 {ﬁl .20) ~115.83

_lem;;., balance of Spl_nd.lrrl assets provision - ~ 240.08 307.28
Sub-standard assets = B
Opening balance 1,397.62 | 2,010.94
‘Additional provision / ( Reversal of pm\n\.mn} dunm:, the }-’L ar iy {l 397.62) |  (613.32)
(lmmg balance of Sub- Standard asscts provision =1 139062
Doubtful assets - B ) B ;
Opening balance B 3.118.37 4,022.25
Additional provision / ( Reversal of }‘.lr'lWl\-IUlﬂ during th w,r:,m 25751 | (903.88)
€ Immg_halame of Doubtful asscts provision ) - 3,375.88 | 3,118.37

B. Investments

Particulars March3l, 2021- Rs. | March 31,2020~ |
- Lalhs Rs. Lakhs
(1 Value of lnwstmu.,nh :
1) Gross value of t]'il;. hwu.lm:,n!u i o N -
(a) In India 5,62,215.12 5,95,543.71
(b) Outside India . - 34,005.94 34,095.94
i) Provision for diminution i e
(a) In India ) S ~ 1.287.81 7.287.81
(b) Outside India _ 34,095.94 315 Sf}‘l 46
i) Net value of !mmtmuntx B
- {a) In India '34 027.31 5,88,255.90
(b) Outside lndm i Nil _E,iHh 49
(2) | Movement of pmwamm held towards
| diminution on Investments o - e
| (a) Opening balance 3B, ’.FiJ? 27 41,297.27
- (b) Add:- F‘rr.u]xmlh made llL]]lTi" H]L ‘.n.:n 2 Wﬁ 48 M.
(¢} Less: Write-Of1 write-back ol excess Nil 2.500.00
-  provisions du during the year B - - -
(d) L% lmlna.__b_uhlnt.n. 41.383.75 | 38.,797.27 i

C. Exposure to Real Estate Sector, Both Direct & Indirect

The Company does not have any divect or indirect exposure o the ]u.  lstgile Sector s at

e

Mareh 31, 2021 ( 202k Nil).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

D. Balance of Provisions and Contingencies as on 31.03.2021

(Rs. Lakhs)

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions [or Diminution on Investments
Provision towards NIPA-

_P]'Lwisi_q_ll p_‘l_udu towards Income tax
| Other Provision and Contingencics

Provision for Standard Assets

Provision for Sub-standard assets

| Provision for Doubtful Asscts

| March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020 !
o 4138375 | 3879725
~ 246.08 307.28
- 1.397.402
- 3.375.88 3.118.37

E.. Maturity Pattern of Assets & Liabilities (March 31°2021) : (Rs. Lakhs)
S.No. [ Particulars Liabilities Assets

1 [ 0dayto 7 days ' 12,966.39 11,499.04

2 | Sdaystolddays -

3 Owver 14 days to one month 11,091.25 -

3| Over one month to 2 months 11,615.00 _2,'9_95.85

4 | Over 2 months to 3 months 15,543.69 =

5 Ower 3 Months upto 6 months 9,718.92 390.87
:E: _(:}Tu_ If‘_: M_E‘.I-[:Iih:i I.Lpfﬂ | year 29,_6-58,13 B i T,i'_SE-.f@_

7 Over | year upto 3 years 2,78,704.81 47,972.57
__H Over 3 years Li-ptnm 5 years = 13,224 47 ) EAESEBBL_

9 QOver 5 years 2,43,127.71 3,14,065.70
Grand Total 6,25,650.37 6,25,650.37 ]

i, The Company will continue to disinvest a part of its strategic investment in the shares of
its subsidiaries in the next 2 years to improve the liquidity,

ii. The Company is having its majority of the Investment in a Listed entity, which can be
liquidated at any time. However as per the RBI norms the maturity of these shares is
shown under ©3-5 years and over 5 years bucket™.

iii. Loans lrom Group entities will be renewed for further periods in casc of need.

F. Concentration of NPA's

rarticulars As on |
March 31, |

w021 |
1.2006.60 !

%

Total Exposure to top live NPA

| m:l.:(.y}_uﬂ.\;

Exposure as a
of total assets

Ason M.uruh
31,2020

0.51% ‘ 3.003.85

Rs. l_:;llihs

Exposure as a
%o of total

ASSCLs
(r.43%,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

. Other Disclosures

(Rs. Lakhs)

] Particulars Amount Amount Amount Amount |
. | Outstanding | Overdue | Outstanding | Overduc |
| — - ) B As on March 31,2021 | As on March 31, 2020 |
- Loans and advances availed by the
Company inclusive of interest
accrued there on but not paid: ) I - -
) Debentures
- Secured 2. 51.666.09 Mil 2.00.181.17 Mil
- Unsecured ( other than Nil Nil Nil Mil
falling within the meaning of
~ public deposits) " ) ) B _ 4
b) Deferred Credits Nil . Nil O Nil CNil
¢) Term Loans 23,692.74 Nil '}‘s 507.48 Nil
d) Inter-corporate loans and 59,772.79 Nil 1.38.174.50 Nil
~ borrowing i . )
~¢) Commercial Paper Nil ~_Nil Nl ! Nil
)  Other Loans ( Loans from Nil Nil Nil Nil
promoters) B ) ]
N y B - B ( Rs. mkht;]
Particulars Amount Amount Outqtamimu
QOuitstanding — As - As on 31"
on 31% March'2020
- - March’2021 | D
Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables ( Other than these included in (4) '
below: o [ R .
a) Secured il Mil
by U nsecured 4711215 . TS5
Hruulmp for Leascd Assets and stock on hire and |
other assets counting towards asset financing
activities L | -
(1) Lease assets including lease rentals 5
under sundry debtors !
(a) Financial lease Mil i Wil
. (b) Operating lease Mil Nil
{i1) Stock on hire includmg ing hire L]'I.LHLLH '
under sundry debtors.
{a) Assets on hire Nil Nil
- (b) Repossessed Assels i Nil | Nil
{1ii) Other loans counting towards asscl !
fnancinge activities |
(a1 Loons where assets have been MNil Nil
repossessed 20T T, i
(h) Loans other than(a) above qf?%’ ) ?“'\‘5}5‘.\
T e A
P —
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments (Gross):

. Quoted:

-

(1) shares:

( a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv)  Government Securilics
{(v) Others
Unguoted
(1) Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
(11} Debentures and Bonds
(iii)  Units of Mutual Funds
(iv)  Government Sceurities
(v) Others

Long Term Investments(Gross):

1.

Quoted:

(1)

(i)
(1ii)
(1v)
()

Shares:

( a) Equity

(*b) Preference
Dchentures and Bonds
Units of Mutual Funds
Clovernment Sccuritics
Others

Unguoted

(1)

(1)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Shares:

( a) Lguity

{*b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Linits of Mutual Funds
Grovorimieil Securitics
CHhves

lnyvestment i LLP

Adternotive Investiment Fund

| ._fﬂl.mullt o
| Outstanding ( Rs.
© Lakhs)— As on

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
il
il
Nil
Nil
Nil

4.91,111.89
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

G8.552.21
| J1.509% 54
404743

31 Mareh'2021

Amount
Qutstanding ( Rs.
Lakhs- As on 31*

March’2020

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
il
il
Nil

5,20,700.49
Nil
Nil
Nil
Ml
Nil

68,552.21
31.899.54
4.0647.43
J.R14.98

Nil
25.00
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(v) Hq;'ruwur group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above - N
Amount net of provisions (Rs. Amount net of provisions ( Rs.
Category ~ Lakhs) — As on 31* March’2021 Lakhs) — As on 31" March’2020
e | Secured | Unsecured | Total | Secured | Unsecured | Total
I, Related Parties | i R I _
~(a) Subsidiaries | Nil 45,670.15 | 4567015 |  Nil 65,722,489 | 8572219 |
(b) Companies in Nil 1,442.00 1,442.00 Nil 14,153.72 | 14,153.72
the same
____EBfoup . : -
(c) Other related Nil Nil il Wil Nil Nil
__parties | S EE—— SR, S e
(d) Other than Mil Nil Nil Mil Nil Nil
__related parties | g il — | -
Total - Nil 47,112.15 | 47,112,15 | Nil 79,875.91 79,875.91

Category

1. Related Parties

(1) Subsidiaries

(b) Companics in the

___ Same group

(c) Other related

| Puniess

(d) Other than related
parties ( Mutual

(vi) Investor sroup-wise classi
| securities (Both quoted and unquoted)

(Rs. Lakhs) — As o

| 7.02.98039
11.642.02

Fund ctc.,)
Total

[ {\'_ii.:]_“ ij!_!:!c_r in furnmtiﬁn

(i)

| “”..

Market
Value/Break up
or fair value or

_NAV

| Book Value {_Net
of Provision)

or Tair valu
NAV

Value/Break up

fication of all investments (current and long term) in shares and

¢ or

MNil

100,00

n 315 March'2021

7,74,722.41

Particulars

. _T_]Em:w; Non-Per I_'ér_min o Assels
(a) Related Partics _
(b) Other than related parties

| Net Non-Performing Asscls
(a) Related Parnes

(b) Other than reliied parties

i) Assets acquired o satesfaction ol debt

'5.43,185.29 5,73,184.93
11.642.02 153.88
NIl | NIl
100,00 3,839.98
554,927.31 | 57717880

As {Ill. Z’-I“_M arch’
2021 ( Rs. Lakhs)

3,050.57

325.30

58084851
| 53,88

Nil

3.839.08

| 5,90,842.38

As on 31" March’

2020 (Rs. Lakhs) |

1707952
15.00

12,578,533
Ml

Nl

(Rs. Lakhs) — As on 31* March'2020

Market | Book Value { Net |
of Provision)
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30, Core Investment Company (*CI1C") Compliance Ratios:

S5.No Particulars As at March | As at March
i ; . _ o 31, 2021 31,2020
a1l Investment in Group Companies equity shares, preference 08.77% 07.99%
shares, debentures, debt or Loans as a proportion of Net
| Asas(w ) e
| Tnvestments in equity shares as a proportion of Net Assets 89.21% 85.40%
RIS i . I
c)}i Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 46.41% 27.59%
= ( Adjusted Net worth/ Risk Weighted Asscts) o R )
d)| Leverage Ratio (Times) | .43 2.60
( Outside labilities/Adjusted Net worlh) i 1 B ]

As per RBI circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.06/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020,
unrealised gains arising out of fair valuation of financial instruments, arc ignored for caleulation of
= owned funds™; consequently, the net unrealised gains arc also excluded from Risk Weighted Assets

{ RWA).

Components of Adjusted Net Worth ( ANW) and other related information: -

( Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
| _ | | 2021 2020
i) ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Asscts 46,41 % - 27.59% |
i) Unrealised appreciation in the book value 1.70,707.38 1,04,959.05
_ ~ olquoted investments — Rs- Lakhs ) . _ |
i) Diminution in the Aggregate book value Nil Nil
~ofquoted Investments - S
iv)  Leverage Ratio ( Times) 143 2.26 o

31, Overscas Asscls

{ Rs. Lakhs)

’ﬁ Name of the Subsidiary/Stepdown Country
b __ subsidiary |
GMR Holdings { Overseas) Lid Mauritius

| GMR Holdings ( Mauritius) Lt

leurit_ii ]

As at March 31,
2021
4,527.33
31.500.40

*As at March 31, 1

2020
453273

4548561
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

a. As per Regulation of the RBIL every Non- Banking Financial Institution mcluding
Systematically Important Core Investment Company ( CIC-ND-S1) is required to make
provision @ 0.40% ( 31 March 2020: 0.40%) on all standard assets and at other defined
percentages  for  all - “sub-standard  asscts.  doubtful  assets  and - loss asscts”.

b. In order to comply with the prudential norms, the Company. based on the internal assessment,
has identificd the assets to be considered for provisioning, Accordingly, the company has
created provision on standard assets (@ 0.40 % (31 March 2020: 0,40%) on these assets.

Management has also created provision @ 10 % on the sub-standard assets and 100 % provision
created on the doubtful assets as per the requirement of master directions — core investment
companies (reserve bank) directions.

33. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 24 on “Related Party Disclosure”

(i) | Directors and Key Management | Mr. G.M. Rao — Chairman
Personnel Mr. Srinivas Bommidala — Director
Mr. G.B.S.Raju — Dircctor

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar — Director
wWr. B.V.N.Rao — Director

Mrs. G.Varalakshmi — Director ( upto July 31, 2020)
Mrs. B.Ramadevi — Director ( w.e.f August 0172020)
Mr.Balasubramaniam Ramachandran

Independent Director

Mr.Bodapati Bhaskar — Chiel’ Executive officer

Mr. Vishal Kumar Sinha — Chiel Financial Officer
( w.e.f. August 01, 2020)

Mr. K. Sreemannarayana — Chief Financial Officer
( upto July 31, 202()

Mr. Ravi Majeti - Manager

Ms. Yogindu Khajuria — Company Secretary

Subsidiary Companies (Direct & |
(i) | Indirect) / Joint Ventures/
Associate’s and others ( where
transactions taken place)

GMR Infrastructure Lid
GMR Airport Developers Ltd
| GMR r"‘\'ll:|‘.lL'rI'[.‘\' 1.1
GMR Ambala Chandigarh I-'_xprc;.;ﬁ.;my:i Pyt Ltd
I GMR Aviation Pyt Ld -
| GMR Badrinath Hydropower Generation Ltd
GMR Bajoli Holi Hvdropower Pyt Ltd
[ GWE Bannerghanta I’|'u|‘.|2,iu:¢ﬂﬁ-'l Lad

. RO Ers

| GMR Bundelkhand Ency@& P T
| GMR Business & Congulf;
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

| GMR Chennai Outer Ehm_ Road Pyt Lid

GMR Lnnau]ung, SLeru Pyt | Ad

GMR Energ gy L td
GMR Encrgy Trading Ltd

GMR Family Fund T rust

_ GMR Gujarat Solar Power Pt Ltd

GMR H}fdcmlmd Vi jd}-’de(lLl Lv.]u'uwwnya Pvt Ltd

GMR Indo Nepal Energy Links Ltd

GMR Indo Nepal Power C orridors Ltd

| GMR Infratech Pvt Lid

GMR Kamalanga Encrg y Ltd

GMR Kmhlmj;,m SIR Lid

GMR Londa Hydropower Pyt Ltd

GMR Maharashtra Energy Pvt Lid

GMR Mining & Energy Pvt Litd

GMR Power Infra Ltd

GMR Pnch_anpulﬁ Expressways Ltd

GMR Rajahmundry Encrgy Ltd

GMR Generation Assets Ltd

GMR Rajam Solar Power Pvt Ltd

GMR SEZ & Port Holding Pvt Ltd

JSW GMR Cricket Pvt. Ltd

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Fxpn:\;w,'uyu Ltd

GMR Tuni hmk.umih Fxplw-.wayx Lid

GMR ‘-.f’um;,]n Power Generation Lid

GMR Warora En&g Ltd

Gmndhl Entupn&.u Pvt Ltd

'C_u.,nlcnn Indm Pyt Ltd

GMR Im;un Games Pvt Lid

Vuu},f Nivas Real Estates Pyt Lid
Fabeity Pmpuuu Pyt Lid
Iiyduuhud Jabilli Pmpu.rt;u Pyt Ltd

Kakinada RLhnuy & I‘Lllumulmah Pyt L Id

Kakinada SEZ 1.t

Pumk ]I'Iil:]Hl]ULILI["L Services Private 1 1l
Wellare IILtHl for GMR Inlht E |1111tuy:,u.
GOMR ‘:nl i Ener uy Pt | il

g Dhruvi Seeurities Pyt | Ir.1

| WL][.IrL Trust for GMR (rm

( MR |[U]d1|.'|‘“w Ovdariting




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Reqd.Office Third Floor, Old Mo 248/Mew No. 114,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

GMR Hlb]]‘r\ ays | it
GMIR ﬂ"'LLmHt;LlLuuL Servi I.LLH Lid

Kirthi [.mhmm Lid
Kut]mm]mi Inhm. entures I’wt Lid
GMR In’ﬂ 1HllllLlL1lL lld _SIL IV

Cadence Enterprises Pyt Ld

hnmldmput a !’I.anri;u Pt L ttl a J

Summary of transactions with the above related parties:

A) Profit & Loss account transactions during the year: ~ (Rs Lakhs)
_ Particulars T 20202t | 201920
_______I_] Interest Paid e _ i - ] .
JSW (.:MR Cricket Pvt. Ltd i 1,385.04 22575 |
& orporate !nlmatlm.lun, Services Pvt Ltd B §48.96 3263 |
Dhruvi Securities Pvt. Ltd _ _ ) 24.85 4] 45
GMR Infratech Pvt. Ltd . ) 937.82 -
I<.L1}_c_|_miia Refinery Pvt. Ltd B _ I R X -
GMR Infra Developers Ltd N - _II‘I[!% 1 327.52
GMR Aerostructure Services Ltd - ~ 2,023.67 134,25
(JMR Bannmbhmm Properties Pvt, Ltd. _ - ~ 153.56
‘Kirthi Timbers Pvt. Ltd - M et _ 231.87
| Kothavalsa InInwuHmm Pul Ltd ) R _ 658.43
M. Grandhi Kiran Kumar o g __R2.33
‘Mr. Bommidala Srinivas. - I N - | 5203
- Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao _ e i 44,13
1) Interest Income _ I o 6,284.47 |
Fabeity Properties Pvt. Ltd - b 42.41 48.55
| GMR Bannerghatta Properties Pvt. Ltd 1,52298 [ 797.17 |
GMR Holdings ( Mauritius) Ltd S 2191 - 426.38
GMR League Games Pvt. Lid o 26. ‘?4 j}i 02
| Grandhi Enterprises Pvl Lid e _‘*r_l'-i‘}!_u - | 455. 1‘3
Ilwluﬂhad Jabilli Properties Py, Lnl - 53.96 44 ?U -
GMR Holdings ( Overseas) Ltd o _ 61.13 50,40
]k(‘l{hd\_*_}_lﬂ_l[_]_l_t;nLl‘lilnL'-, Pt L td o - L= RH o 2 12032
GMR Property Developers Pyt Ltd - | 66.54 . a{]
Geokno India Pyt Ltd - o i - R 7(} ‘~‘."
GMR Huunua &L onsultancy L 1 P o - - i 1?4\ ] I
GMR s’iuuatlm.tum Services L t:l - 110. ?7'
| Rajam 1=nlup||ﬂm Pvl Ltd - | 40 f}l
| Wellare Trust for (JMR Group Fmp]m ces - ; n{] 02
GMR Enerey Lid - 1 = | 3231 |
G M[{ Freray Tre ulmL Ltd 1_ - e 22 25 I
GMR Gieneration Assets Lud - /j}- "--5?2\%:1 ;
o A0 . I




GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Regd Office : Third Floor, Old Mo 248/New No. 114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - GO0 014

CIN Mo U74500TN200TPTC102389

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

| ¥ [ Mallik: armnn oo

187 .85

_ Particulars | | 202021 1 201920
I Trademark & License Fee uu.m:(l o ) N
GMR un] at Solar Power Limited o I e I I.U ﬁf}
GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited ] 0.27 U 10
GMR Power Infra Limited - = 0.01 ﬂ 01
GMR Bumk]klmml Energy Private L Lmuul el 0.01 {J_,f}l
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower [‘nmh, L I1'I'l|tt..(| ) - 001 0.01
GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power ¢ (mnuutmn L nmh,d _ 0.01 (LO1
GMR Consulting Services Lumtul o = 0.01 0.01
GMR Londa Hydmpnwu Private L amited ) - 0.01 0.01
GMR Indo-Nepal Energy Links | Limited e 0.01 0.01
E‘MR Indo-Nepal Power Corridors antul o _ 0.01 0.01
GMR Highways Limited s ; 0.01 0.01
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways L imited ) 0.02 651
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam ]-\]mmmuya Limited 0.02 100.65
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private [ muiul o 0.01 0.0l
GMR Bannergahtta Properties Pvt !H_mnt{i:i___ n .01 (.01
GMR Infrastructure Limited B f 0.01 - 0.01 -
| GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Lumlul = 0.0 0.01
GMR Encergy Limited o 0.01 0.0l 5
{JMR Rajahmundry Energy L mutul S LAY i oot |
' GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited _ 001 001
GMR SEZ & Port Holding Pvt Lln‘utul o : 0.01 0.01
GMR Warora Energy L imited _ 0.01 0.01
GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited — 0.01 0.01
Kakinada SEZ Limited T 0.01 0.01
Kakinada RLIIHLI}" & PLEIHL"ILHIILH]H Pvt Limited . - 0.01 (.01 )
GMR Airport Developers Lt!'l‘.IIILL] B ) 95. H'? 99.65
GMR Ambala (hamhhmh L'Q[}]L‘xh"n‘nl}“-. Pvt Limited ) 0. [IIl_ ~0.01
GMR Aviation Private Limited - - - 0.01 0.01
GMR Mining 3.. Energy Pvt L imited . . 0.01 (.01
| GMR Maharashtra Encrgy Limited ) 0.01 0.01
GMR Cu‘tud{mn Assets | 1111|1ul B _— - 0.01 0.01
GMR Adrports 1. imited - N 105.33 14644 |
{_[MR Encrgy Trading Limited - — 44.05 37.20
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways L1m|1ul o 5 - 23.72 e .
GMR Kakinada Encrgy Private i 1|11L_1Li___ N I - _
(;[}ii_l__{_f_muu (m]mmlmn Limited ) - ~ 9.80 3
GMR Coastal Energy L imited - ~0.01
{ri'_b_“iR__(n,nLn :'\HHL[H 1. lmliul I - 0.01
SJIK Powergen Limited 0.01
_____ l_ll) Service Fee Income | emm—oae
ISW GMR Cricket Pyt Limited 5.000.00
V) Cousent Fee paid
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Royapetlah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

B} Other transactions during the year

T —— S

Particulars

1) Investments in Equity shares

202021

{ Rs. Lakhs)

201920

“(_uMI{ Infrastructure L |m|tul

22,221.73

{;MR B:IHI'IL[Lh:lH 1 ]"m]muu PIHJIL L|m1tul

4, 1{]1 4 i

100, {]l{}

GMR le L.ﬂf_dtﬁ PHNIL l_lmlui

100.00

GMR Holdings ( Overseas) Limited

2565.52

in Divestment in Equity Shares

"{;MR I11[1:1~.Im¢.lmu Litmnited

29,588.60 |

111) Rultmptmn of Preference Sh-ucs

___(_:MR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited 1,896.00
[V) Divestment of Partnership Firm - _
GMR Business & Consultancy LLP - 97.493.29
V) Loans availed _ B
Dhruvi Securitics Private Limited 4,600.00 "?'1 (029, T{:
 GMR Aerostructure Services Lurutul 55,048.50 20,000, I[JL]I
Corporate Infrastructure Services Private : Limited 2"5 710,00 __ 398.00
GMR Infratech Private Limited B 35,200.00 - B
Kakm:u!u da Refinery | PLlrm.humL s Private Limited ~ 500.00 -
[’\H'thi Timbers Private leltul - B 133.00
JSW GMR Cricket F’rwnt{., Limited 5,000.00° 10,000.00
QME Infra [)L\-’Llﬂ'[j{,l‘i L m‘ntu.l _ B ) - 34,929, {]_I;.'!_ )
GMR Infra Services Limited - iil},i-m (0
]wllmwlen Inhm cntures l‘uvau, I umlui - ~ 46,087.27
Mr. Bommidala qnnwan - - 250, {}Ii] _
| Mr. {Jmmlhl Kiran Kum.u - I 25“.[}@___ |
"I.} o u ins r l])"ll[l N | N ]
- Kirthi” T mxhuw Private L ||:1|1u.| i . 2,438.07 14.93
Dhruvi Securities Private l umlui B | 4,629.76 | 21.000.00 |
(JMI{ f"l.L.lH‘-.llll.thIlL Services Limited - ~73.550.00
Corporale Inlrastructure Huwu.a Private Limited 15,789.31 7. {]U

(JMI{ Infra Dev clopers 1 imited

GMR lnimlu\,h Private Limited

ISW GMR Cricket Pyt Lid

GMR _BEEII_I'_ILI shatta Propertics [‘nmil. Limited
GMR Infra Serviees 1. mited

Mr. G Mallikarjuna Kao

I\qstlhmt!u v entures Private 1. imited

20,929.00
27,500.00
5,000.00

5 {JI{]U (i

10.078.91

10.240,00
1.800.00

57.500.27



GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old Mo.248/New No, 114,

Royapetlah High Road, Royapetlah, Chennai -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

I. A Particulars
| Mr. Bommidala Srinivas

Mr. Grandhi Kiran. Kunma -

V)  Loans & Advances Gi'.::é__ti__

2020-21

20 iti?r{i '

.a,‘iSﬂ_Uﬂ

hlhuiy E-"’mpulm. Private L |m1md

| GMR League (‘amm Private [ imited

GMR Property Developers Private leltt.,d
 Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited
Hyderabad Jabilli I'-'mpf.m::a Private Lumlu]
Kothavalsa Infraventures Private antui

{1(1._.58“ IH

06,222,69 |

GIL b[L IV

L0 72500
121124 | 3717772
6.00 805.50
300 70000
6,301.67 | 8.421.50
484.50 772.00

VII) I__.u‘ms & Adi*-:mccs rcgaﬂrnmm I‘ELL‘i'.‘L‘l‘I

GM!{_llnhhnp { ]VI;IUJIIII.IH} L!I‘l‘l]tl.,f_.l )

~ GMR Holdings ( Overseas) Limited
GMR League Games Private Limited
(_-mndln Enterprises Private Limited

Ilydu abad Jabilli Properties Private Limited
Kothavalsa Infraventures Private Limited
I\uth‘walm [n[hWLnIum Private L imited
~Fabeity Pmimhm Privale Llll'llti..(l

~ Geokno India Private Limited

GIL SIL JV
GMR A r"'.umilumm, ?LLV]LLH L |{|. - -
GMR _if?-u*_-lm.'-% & ﬂ]'lHll][JI‘IL}* L [ P

GMR Encrgy | 1m|lul

{JMR Lnu"v 11 ading Limited

(:VH{ Family Fund Trust

GMR Generation Asscts Limited

GMR Holdings { Mauritius) Lid - SBLC w'c
Kondampeta Properties Private Limited
Purak Infrastructure Services Private Limited

LLP Divestment a/c

79.487.96

1271172

34,291.00

Kothavalsa Infraventures Private L|111__L_!5,r;l LLP Divestment a'c - 41.908.57
! India Private Limited . - 508
- | 9500
GMR f&umh ucture Suwu,s Limited _eml o EEEEe L‘J{]
(__rMR Business & meu]lmu,y LLP - | 14,870, ”?
GMR Energy Limited i 390. Uﬂ
' GMR Energy Imdmg Limited - - 800. 00
GMR Generation Assets Limited - 33.938.00
L_GMI{ Holdings ( Mauritius) Lng‘ntuj R 1,073.19
GMR Holdings ( Overseas) Limited B ot Loy B‘Jl 63 |
Vijaynivas Real Estates Private Limited I 3.19
Welfare Trust for GMR Group Employees z 2?3.23

10,906.00

6388
1,124.00

10.349,99
105.00

LEF S{J

6,300, 28

401, ‘if}

ok, H‘J‘ H"i
5 1(1{} []"‘.I

~T0,853.04
14,699, 00

|5{} 00

30150 |

I’~J' 416.00

21.595.28

390.00
i, f]"[J
4, t:Il][]' '[](]'
13.038.00
1.903.84

.00




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office  Third Floor, Old Mo 248/New Mo.114,
Royapeltah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - GO0 014

CIM Mo, U74800THN2007PTC102388

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

B ~ Particulars 202021 | 201920 |
Rd_]dl'l] E nlupusu Fuhm Limited - . _] 72595 |
"v'uay|1|}f5}§__f_iulﬂ_1:§@:1_l+:5 Private L umtu.l N - | 3405, ﬂ i

 Welfare Trust for GMR Group. Fmplnyn,u - - 41,5692 ?"’T L
WLH’:HL Trust for GMR Infra Employees i - 0. 08

VIII} Mobilisation Advances chmd - e
Kakinada SEZ Private Limited = - 5.000.00
IX)  Security Deposits Repaid o i N .
ISW GMR Cricket Private Limited - 6,500.00 | 5,000.00 |
(') Outstanding balances as on balance sheet date { Rs. Lakhs)
. Particulars o  March 31, March 31,
i - B B 2021 12020
= I) Loans availed Closing balance
. GMR Generation Assets Limited o ~240.00 240,00
~ JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited | [ 10,000.00 | 10,000.00

- GMR Am:auuutmu bquL\. Limited B 2,098.50 20,0000.00
Corporate ltlimbtnmturL Services lellul S 8,565.50 64481
GMR Inhatu,h Private Limited - 7,700.00 -
Kakinada Rf.,il_ﬂ::_._,_l}-' Private Limited S 500.00 7
Kirthi Timbers Private Limited - 243807 |
Dhruvi Securities Private antul [ = AL T
GMR Infra Developers leltui - - - 29 ‘-)75" U{J

II} Loans & Advances given closing balance - | F_ —

. ubutg P roperties Private Limited 424.50 42350
GIL SIL JV - ) - 144200 | 1,142.00
GMR Bannmﬁm I"mpunu ]"\I I nmtul - 1461000 |

_ {_-MR Holdings ( Overseas) L imited e 1,827.75 1,891.63
GMR Property Developers Private Limited 703.00 70000

~ Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited o 2,70490 | 5,753.22
Hyderabad Jabilli Properties Private L 1n11tul ~750.00 37050
Kothavalsa In [r'}m cntures F‘mm[a, Limited 24,650,000 25.309.05

Kutlmmlw Infraventures an[u Limited - LLP Divestmenta/e | - 27.200.57
(-JNIB_I'\_{T_IH‘»![ULILJIL Services Limited, . 2 R86.72
GMR Holdings (| Muumum Limited - ]‘3'? 11.72
GMR League Games Private Limited - L1800
\
|11 Security Deposits Outstanding (pavable) .
| JSW GMR Cricket Private Timited




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Reqgd Office Third Floor, Qld Mo, 248/MNew No.114,
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - GO0 014

CIN Mo U74900TH2007FTC102389

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, March 31,
L - . | 2021 2020
) V) ~ Interest reccivable Closing balance - o
e  GMR Property Developers Private Limited 74.19 8537
LB tlhullr Properties Private lmutul 90.29 4831
~ Hyderabad Jabilli I‘mp_uu, Private Limited 97.89 4447
GIL SIL v - B0L73 - R0O.73
GMR Bannerghatta Pll.‘.||'.lL|‘TlC‘w Private Limited 1__2_‘_1'_1_'?_4_____ 793.18
_I_\_ulln_m_fl_lLall‘_l_i___lan_,__m_ylL\ Private Limited 376.28 1,378.20
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 841.69 457.71
{_:MR Holdings ( DELI‘HL-_._I_‘-:}__LI]'HHL:I 113.10 ~54.62
- _l_i__-MR Holdings ( Mauritius) L imited - 1.204.43
GMR Infratech Pl’l‘nllL Limited - B __!ili_!_
I  GMR League Games Private Limited e 20748 |
A Interest Pavable Closing balance ) o ]
Cur}mmlu Infrastructure Services Private Limited 751.29 41.12
) Eﬁ&pmﬂhuuuru qLIWLLH Limited 1,942.47 ___l_"’ﬂ ‘%"’
GMR Infratech Private L imited 3. ﬁ‘J
Kakinada Refinery Private Limited 4. 46
Dhruvi %mem Private Limited - L2
GMR lnim ['Jwa_._@ppuﬂ Limited - ?‘1}4 76
Knt!u [1mhux Private Limited - 341.26
Vi) Other Payables ) g
~ GMR Bundelkhand Encrgy Private Lumtcd i - 403
L "fl_l_}_pmsent fee fee payable R - -
Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao . ~ 248.07 29532
\’III] Trade Receivables — Closing balance e
GMR mlpm' Developers Limited —— B 106 41 AR
GMR Airports Limited 116. ‘}1 | 56.49
GMR Ambala € handigarh Expressways. Pyt l!d . {}1 - 0.1
GMR Aviation ]’*-.I Ltd - . {]I 02
CIMI{ Bmhm :lh lempmxu (n.nr.hnmn I 1L| [}__-:H L 0.01
_ f:M]{ Hmnh I[uil Hydropower Pyt Litd - 0.01 | (.01
i_ (JMR Hmmudmm Propertics Pvt Lid - 0.01 | 001
L GM R lium!ulklmnd Energy Pyt Lid i 0.03 (.03
L GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Pyt Lid 0.01 (.01

' GMR C u_ujx[nl Energy Lid
C GMR Consulting Services Pt Lad
CGMR Energy Lid




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Regd.Office -Third Floor, Old Mo 248/MNew Mo, 114,
Rayapettah High Road, Royapetlah, Chennai - GO0 (14

CIN Mo UT4800TN2007PTC 102389

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, March 31,
S 021 | 2020
~ GMR Energy Trading Ltd 48.90 1805
~ GMR Gujarat Solar Power Pvt Ltd _ 47.21 35.00
~ GMR Generation Assets Ltd B : 42.91 0.01
~ GMR nghways Ltd B B i ~0.01 {1’-”'-].... ST
~ GMR Genco Assets Ltd B - . 0.01
~ GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Pvt Ltd 0.01 001
GMR Indo Nepal Energy Links Ltd B __ o.01 | _iﬂl
| GMR Indo Nepal Power Corridors Ltd - R
| GMR Kakinada Energy Pvt Ltd a - 0.01
GMR Infrastructure Ltd B B ~ 0.01 - _fi,{!I
GMR Krishnagiri SIR Ltd . 0.01 | (0]
GMR Londa Hydropower Pvt Ltd o — 0.01 0.01
GMR Maharashtra Energy Pvt Ltd ] 0.04 0.03
GMR Mining &Energy Pvt Ltd B _ 0.02 0.01
 GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd - ] 43.59 17.68
GMR Power Corporation Ltd - = 42 83
GMR power Infra Ltd - 0.01 0.01
GMR Rajahmundry Energy Ltd N 84.10 84.00
 GMR Rajam Solar Power Pvt Ltd ~ 0.31 0.11
GMR SEZ & Port Holding Pvt Ltd o 0.01 0.01
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expr;as.swayg Ltd - 30.50 1{}.5_1'_3_
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Ltd a 32.45 | 3241_
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Pvt Ltd - 0.01 (.02
' GMR Warora Energy Lti_:l_ B 1,284.55 1.284.54
SIK Powergen Ltd _ = - 0.02
Ideaspace Solutions Pvt Ltd - - 0.17
Kakinada Reﬂnew & Petrochemicals Pvt Ltd ' . 0.01 0.01
Kakinada SEZ Pvt Ltcl o ' 0.01 0.01
Kirthi Timbers Put. ) 80.34 R
~ GMR Heritage Manage'm'eht ) 018 | .
~ JSW GMR Cricket Pvt. Ltd - - 6,435.00 | 587500
D} Transactions and outstanding balances i the nature ol reimbursement of expenses incurred

by one company on behalfof another have not been considered above.




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Reqd.Office ;Third Floor, Old No 248/Mew No.114,
Royapeltah High Road, Royapetiah, Chennai - 600 014
CIM Mo UT4900THZ007PTC 102368

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(E) Interest in Significant subsidiaries and joint ventures (Direct Investments):

Name of the Entity Relationship | Ownership Date of Country of
B | Interest | Incorporation | Incorporation
GMR Infrastructure Lid Subsidiary 51.38% | 10" May' 1996 India
Grandhi Enterprises Pvt. Ltd]  Subsidiary | 100.00% 7 April® 1993 CIndia
Kakinada Refinery & Subsidiary | 99.9995% | 6™ Sept’ 2005 India
Petrochemicals Pvt. Lid o D L :
GMR Solar Encrgy Pvt. Ltd | Subsidiary | 100.00% 25" Feb'2016 ~ India
ISW GMR Cricket Pvt. Ltd | Joint Venture|  17.08% 19" Feb"2008 India
| Fabeity Properties Pyt. Ltd | Subsidiary | 99.99% | 8" Feb'2008 India
Kondampeta Propertics Subsidiary 100.00% 8" Feb' 2008 India
Pvt. Ltd S : o 2= _ "
Cadence Enterprises Pvt. Ltd  Subsidiary | 100.00% ¥ Jan"2008 India
GMR Infratech Pvt, Ltd Subsidiary | 100.00% 2% June’2008 | India
GMR Bannerghatta Subsidiary 100.00%, 7™ June’ 2005 India
Properties Py L - | - ]
Purak Infrastructure Subsidiary 100.00% | 16" Sept’2011 India
ServicesPvt. Ltd | : B
GMR Property Developers Subsidiary 100.00% 234 Jan'2019 India
Pyt . % S (R ) H—
| GMR Real Estate Pvt. Ltd | Subsidiary 100.00% | 22" Jan’2019 | India
GMR League Games Pvt. | Subsidiary | 51.00% i India
Ltd ' B _ March’2008 |
GMR Holdings { Overseas) | Subsidiary 100.00% 6" Aug 2008 Mauritius
L : . : =
Hyderabad Jabilli P]'L'I]’.‘ICJ'[i:L"S: Subsidiary 100.00% | 29" Feb 2008 India
Pvt. Ltd S i e N S
Vijaynivas Real Estate Pyt Subsidiary 099.99% 8" Nov 2007 India
bd f =l S P
" Kothavalsa Infraventures | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 21 Nov 2014 India
L Pyt Lid o . i -
AN Hlealtheare R I S0.00% | P Oet 2081 | [l
| |
|

restination Pwt, Lid oenture
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Company is a Group Holding Company and is registered as C1C with Reserve Bank of India
and its subsidiaries operate in infrastructure sector, During the current year and in the past years
the Company has incurred losses on account of finance charges. The borrowings were invested
in group companies which are long term in nature: these strategic investments in Group
Companies have potential for capital appreciation. The management expects (o generate positive
cash flows, In the coming few years substantial portion of the existing borrowings are maturing
for repayment and the company initiated steps to improve the liquidity position, The Company s
key subsidiaries have been taking strategic initiatives such as monetizing the assets whereby the
borrowings will reduce and taking steps to unlock value which will provide opportunity for the
Company to deleverage by partially divesting its strategic investments like current year with all
these elforts the liquidity position of the company will improve significantly

_The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment 1.¢ Investment Activities, The risk and

returns of the Company are predominantly determined by its principal activity and the
Company’s activitics fall within a single business and geographical segment,

36. Risk Management Framework

The Company is a Core lnvestment Company ( C1C) and its operations are limited to Group
Companies being a C1C. The risks therefore relate to investments made in its subsidiaries and
other investments. The operations of each of the subsidiaries, the risks faced by them and the nsk
mitigation tools followed by them to manage these risks are reviewed periodically by the Audit
Committees and the Boards of the respective Subsidiaries and other Investments.

The Company always regard that managing the risks that affect its business as a lundamental
activity, as they influence performance, reputation and future success. Effective risk management
involves taking an integrated and balanced approach to risk and reward, and assists in achieving
objectives of mitigating potential loss or damage and optimising financial growth opportunitics.
Risk management framewaork of the Company is aimed at aligning capital to investment strategy,
to protect Company's linancial strength reputation and to ensure support to various myestment
activities while enhancing shareholder value. The company has a well- established risk reporting
and monitoring framework. This provides the level and direction of the risks, which are arrived
At based on the two level risk thresholds for the identified Key Risk Indicators and arc aligned to
the overall company’s risk appetite framework approved by the board, The company also
developed such risk reporting and monitoring mechanism. The Company identifics and monitors
risks periodically. This process enables the company 1o reassess the top crtical risks m a
changing environment that need to be focused on.

37.1 Risk Management Governance.

Risk management is the responsibility of the Board of Dircctors, which approves risk policy
and delepation matrix. The Board is supported by various managenment commitiees as part
ol the Risk Governance framework. The company operates within overall limits set by the
Beard nd Committees to whom powers are delegated by the Board,




GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Reqgd. Office (Third Floor, Old No.248/Mew Na, 114,
Royapetiah High Read, Royapetiah, Chennai - GOG 014
CIN Mo, U74900THNZ007PTC102389

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Board of Directors of the Company has developed and monitoring the Company’s sk
management policies. The risk management policies are established to ensure timely
identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and
mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk
awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to cvalvate the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board in carrying out its oversight
responsibilities as they relate to the company’s fimancial and other reporting practices,
internal control, and compliance with laws, regulations. and cthics. From the risk
management perspective, it review the adequacy of Company’s risk management policies,
process and report the matter to the Board ol Directors.

37.2 Liguidity and Fund Management

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will encounter difficulty m meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the company might be
unable to meet its payments obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the
timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could
oceur when funding needed to illiquid asset positions is not available to the company on
acceptable terms. The Company has developed internal control processes and contingency
plans for managing liquidity risk. The company’s management is responsible for liquidity,
funding as well as settlement management. Management monitors the company’s new
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis ol expected cash flows,

The Table summarizes the maturity profile of company’s financial Liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. Lakhs

l On Less than Jtol2 I tos =5 years Total
| Demand | 3 months Months _ years | B
‘Asat31 March’2021 - 5 | o N
Borrowimgs | - 38.625.08 30,699.67 | 2.05.806.87 - 1335131.62
Trade Payables | 3,631.57 . - - [ - 362157
Other  financial - 0,500.00 | - 28.203.44 - | 34.703.44
Liabilities I H aliee
Total | 363157 45,125.08 | 30,699.67 | 2.94,010.31 - 3,73,466.63
As at 31 March®2020 | 1 B,
| Borrowings - | 68,70538 | 1.06.388.00 ' 22352541 |- 3.98.618.79 |
Trade ]‘ﬂyuh]u.‘; 3,404,328 ! - | - | - - .‘:«_—1_‘J~I.3H |
‘ (nher hoancial 05000000 | - P 24891696 557002 | 36.996.58 l
liabilities _ ! | | | |
| Total (349428 | 7520538 | 1.06,388.00 | 2,48.442.37 |
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37.3 Market Risk Management:

Market risk may he defined as the possibility of loss to a Company caused by changes in the market
variables such as interest rates. credit spreads, equity prices, ete. The market risk of the Company 15
governed by “Risk Management Policy™ & “Investment Policy”™ which are approved by the Board.
These policies ensure that transactions in debt and capital markets are conducted in accordance with
acceptable business practices and are as per the extant regulatory guidelines.

37.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates
on that portion of loans and borrowings effected. With all other variables held constant, the

Company’s profit before tax ( PBT) is aflected through the impact on loating rate borrowings, as
tollows.,

—n — = th — = —— T

Increasc/decrease in basis points Effect on PBT — Rs. Lakhs

31 March®’ 2021 %

INR : |25 bp inerease — Deerease in profit " =

|INR | 25bpincrease - Decrease in profit S
31" March® 2020 * - - e = -
INR - | 25 bp increase — Decrease mprofit | - ;

| INR 25 bp increase — Decrease in profit - = i |

£ Agat 31 March 2021, and 31 March 2020, the company does not have any floating rate borrowings

37.5 Credit risk and impairment assessment

Impairment risk of investment refers o the deterioration in value of investments in subsidiares/
group companies through operational and credit risks. The Company being a CIC company 1s
exposure to credit risk and impairment risk ol investments and loans to counter parties. Counter
party exposures are reviewed periadically by the management for eredit risk / impairment risk and
are approved by the Management.

As per Indian Accounting standard Ind AS 109 Non-banking financial institutions are required 1o
move from a standardised and regulatory approach to Expected Credit Loss( ECL)Y model for
recognizing an imparrment allowance on their Hnancials assets. The Company records allowance
for expected credit losses for all Toans, other debt (nancial assets not held at FVTPL, wogether with
loan commitments naneial guarantee contracts, Lquity mstruments are nol subject to impanment
under Ind AS 109, The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expeeted Lo arise over lile
asset | the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL). unless there hasheen | do
credit risk sinee nrigination, in which case. the allowanee is based on th

st ficant ing
'1,1?“111_“”["” f s
i, cxpe

4
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Joss { 12MECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
defiult events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caleulated on cither an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments,

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
strument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. by considering the
change in the risk of default oceurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3,
as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the company recognises an allowance based on
12mECLs.Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and loan has been
reclassificd from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilitics where the credit risk has
improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loan considered credit-impaired. The company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

37.6 Computation of ECL:

The Company calculated ECL's to measure the expected credit shorthalls, discounted at an
approximation 1o the EIR, A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that expected to be received.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as lollows:
a) Probability of Default

Probability of Default { PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrower will default
on their obligations in the future. It is an unbiased estimate on the likelihood of the loan not
being repaid by the borrower within a particular time. The possibility of Default is computed
based on Company’s assessment of the credit history of the horrower/investment. The
qecounts/investments which are more than 90 DPD or have a significant downgrade are
considered as default.

Probability of Default ( both 12m and LTECL) 18 computed based on assessment considering
the Company’s past experience and from the inputs/benchmarks from the market.

by Exposure at Delault
The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure al 4 future default dare (in case of
Stage | and Stage 2). taking into account expevted changes in the exposure alter the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest. whether scheduled by contract or
otherwise, expected drawdown on committed facilities. and acerued interest rom missed
pavments, Tiocase of stage 3 loans Exposure at | yeliult {EAD ) represents e pu-ure when the

defult vecured,

V2| Crannal- 600017/ 2o
TAY
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¢) Loss given default:
The Loss Given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. 1t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the lenders would expect to receive, including from the realization ol any collateral. It
is usually expressed as a percentage ol the Exposure at Delault EAD). The Company
computes Loss Given Default based on the historical recovery experience.

The Company has computed ECL on Loans, Trade and other receivables using the
Simplified Method. This approach uses historical credit loss experience for each revenue
stream of the company to estimate Lifetime Expected Credit Loss and compute a provision
matrix. The data shows that we have not sulfered any significant losses from trade
receivables and Loans in past. The company doesn t expect any additional ECL on the
standard assets as on 31,03,2021.

However, as per C1C master circular DNBR PD.003/03.10.119/2016-17, company carries
impairment allowance provisions at 0.40 % on standard Joans and advances and trade and
other receivables also.

(i) Breakup of ECL.

Particulars Amount Qutstanding- | ECL % ECL
o Rs. Lakhs

As at March 31, 2021 - o I
 Loans including accrued interest | 49,55732 198.23 0.40% |
“Trade and other receivables | 1196285 | 4785 | 040%

) Total 61,520.17 | 246.08
“As at March 31, 2020 o - )
Loans including acerued interest O8.71449 | 27486 | 040%
Trade and other receivables 8, 105.50 3242 | 040%
Total _  76,820.20 30728 | )

Bank balances of the Company are with highly rated banks. Henee the Company docsn™t
cxpect any ECL on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances,

(i) Movement in loss allowance Rs.l.akhs

l

| Particulars ‘ As at March 31, 2021 : As at March 31, 2020 ‘
Opening balanee | 307.28 | 9145 |

‘ Additions during the vear : l 115,53

|. Reversed during the vear | ((18.20h) ﬂf_jtr > .

| Closing balance ] 24608 [Sfediees\ 307,28
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38. Fair Value
The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities appearing in the standalone financial

statements is reasonable approximation of fair values. Such instruments carried at fair value are
disclosed below:

31 March’ 2021 — Rs. Lakhs

Particulars FVT FVT other Amortized | Total | Total fair
statement | comprehensive Cost Carrying value
| ofP&L |  income | value
l"umncnl
As\l‘ts ] I — S T —— _— — -
Cav-.h and L ash - - [, 038,72 [.038.72 103872
_Equivalents ——— S : - S
Bank Balance - - 73,17 73.17 73.17
other than Cash
and Cash
Equivalents EoRE. —— - _
Receivables - - 13,509.32 13,509.32 13,500.32
(i) Trade
receivables
(ii) Other
receivables
Lnans ] E b o | 15 47,112.15 47,112, 15
Investments in 100.00 100,00 100,00
Mutual Funds - i
& Funds
[nvestments in ' 1 5,54,827.31 | 5,54,827.31 |5,54,827.31
Subsidiaries & - -
Vs n o | I B o
Other Ilrmnciﬂl 4,021.28 4{]7] 28 4.021.28
| assets B F . 2 i I e =
Total o ['.n 21, {’18] ‘J"'n | 6,20,681.95 16,20,681.95

Financial
Liabilities

Trade Payables | - 5 36aL57 | 36357 | 363157
Other Payables | - C 139793 | 139795 | 1,397.93
Debt Securities - - 2,51.666.09 | 2,51,666.00 |2 51 ,H006.0Y
Borrowings . - 3436400 34.364.00 34,364.00

(other than debt
securities) )
Other financial | - - C82,407.04 82.407.04 1 B2407.04
linbilities ’ ' '

Total

7836 ﬁ17 1314ﬁnn1 Iz 3,466.63 |
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31 March’ 20 — Rs. Lakhs

Royapetiah High Road, Royapettah. Chennai - 600 014

7987591
3.830.98

value

16407

4.538.88

8.837.79 |

Debt Securities

Borrowings
(other than

| debt securities)
| Other financial
| liabilities
|

Total

2,00,181.17

15311439

L 80919.81

Particulars FVT FVT other Amortized Total
statement | comprehe Cost Carrying
of P&L nsive value

(T income y
Financial Asscts | _ -
Cash and Cash - - 16,67 | 64067
Equivalents I
Bank  Balance - - 4 538 88 4,538.88
other than Cash

and Cash

Equivalents . A
Receivables - - R,837.79 8.837.79
(i)Trade

receivables

(ii)Other

receivables o ]
Loans | - | 7987591 | 7987591
Investments in | 3.814.98 25.00 3,830.98
Mutual Funds &

Funds

Investments in § : 5,87.002.40 | 5.87.002.40
Subsidiaries &
s | S
Other financial - 4.467.78 4 467,78
b | )
Total 381498 | 6,84,912.53 | 6,88,727.41
Financial

Liabilitics | P
Trade Payables | - - 349428 | 3,494.28
| (ther Payables - = 1,400.00 - 1,400.00

2.00,181.17

1153,114.39

80,019.81

4,39,109.65 | 4,39,109.65

5.87.002.40
446778 |

6,88,72741

_1,400.00
2,00,181.17

1,52,114.39

80.919.81
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39. Fair value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and
liabilities grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as deseribed below:-

Quantitative disclosure fair value measurement hicrarchy for asscts and labilities as at 31
March 20217 Rs.Lakhs

| Financial assets Total | Fair value measurement using
measured at fair Quoted prices Significant Significant
value in active ohservable unohservable
| markets ~ Inputs inputs
= b L HhREL L _(Level2) | (Level3)
Investment in | 5,54,827.3 - - 5.54,827.31

subsidiaries and
Joint Venture ele., o . o B _
Investment in [ 00,00 - - 100,00
Venture Funds

Quantitative disclosure fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31

March 2020” _ _ o o Rs.Lakhs
Financial assets Total L ~ Fair value measurement using ]
measured at fair Quoted prices Significant Significant

value in active observable unobservable
_ markets | Inputs |  inputs
) | (Levell) (Level2) ( Level3)
Investment in 5,87.002.40 - - 5,87,002.40
subsidiaries and

Joint Venture ete., B ) B _ B

Investment in 381495 - - 3.814.98

Mutual Fund | - L o

Investment in 25.00 - - 25.00
Venture Funds 3 _ . N

1 Short-term financial assets and liabilitics are stated at carrying value which is approximately
eyqual to their fair value,

b. Management uses its best judgement in estimating the values of its financial mstruments.
However. there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for
substantially all financial instruments. the fair value estimates presented above are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale
fransactions as of respective dates. As such. fair value of financial mstruments suhsequent
1o the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

¢ Fair value of mutual funds is determined based an the net asset value of the Tunds.

A There have been no teansters between Level 1 Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31
March'2021.
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40. Capital management

For the purpose ol the Company’s capital management, capital includes issucd equity capital,
share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company.
The primary objective of the Company™s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
cconomic conditions and requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend, payment to sharcholders, return capital
to share holders or issue new shares,

The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity
plus total debt.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Rs. Lakhs

[- - ~ Particulars ' _ 31 31
) - _ B : | March’2021 | March’2020
Debt Securities and Borrowings (including current 3.25,970.09 3,92.662.45
maturities) o _ | ) _
Total Debts (A) - B i 3,25,970.09 | 3.92,662.45
| Share Capital e | 9,112.50 7,683.93
Other Equity | 2,19932.67 | 2.20,583.04
Total Equity (B) o S _ | 2,29,045.18 2,28,266.98
Total equity and total debt (C=A+B). | 55501527 | 62092042
Gearing Ratio (%) (A/C) | s873% 63.24% |

41. The Company directly and indirectly hold 62.61% share capital of listed subsidiary GMR
Infrastructure Lid (GIL). As a group holding company the company has provided comlort to its
lenders, and the lenders of GIL other subsidiaries by furnishing undertaking to continue to hold
at least 51% capital of the GIL

42, Investment in other C1Cs: - The company has not made any capital contribution direetly or

indirectly in any C1C,
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43, Business Ratios: -

| Particulars K ~ Current Year ~ Previous year
Returnon Equity (RoE) | NA oNA

Retumn on Asscts (RoA) NaA ] N =

| Net Profit per employee ,  NA ‘ . NA _ 1

# The company incurred losses during the reporting periods, thus these ratios are not applicable.

44, (Loss)/Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the ( loss)/profit for the year attributable to cquity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holder (
after adjusting for dividend on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number
of Equity Shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares into Equity Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS Computations:

(Shares in numbers and amount in Rs Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs. per Share) 10 10

Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning 7.08,39,376 626,74,948
of the year

Add:- Shares issued during the year 1,42.85.7106 141,64,428

Less:- Shares cancelled during the year - -

Total number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the 9,11,25,092 768,39,376

period £ year

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding at 8,52,54.250 | 7,30,19,313

the end of the period / year

Net Profit (loss) after tax for the purpose of EPS (29,221.80) | (31,277.62) |
| EPS - Basic & Diluted (Rs.) (34.28) (42.83)

45. Deferred Tax asset is not considered as a matter of prudence.
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46. Other Information:
a.) Remuneration to Auditors

(Rs In Lakhs)

13) Lx]mmhmm n Forergn Currency

] Particulars B - 2020-21 | 2019-20
Audit fees (for the year) (.50 (.50
Fees for the consolidated financials (for the year) 3.50 3.50
Fees for the consolidated financials (for the previous year) - 1.00
Other certification fees 0.15 i Mot
Audit Expenses - 3.02
Total - | 1045 14.57

(Rs. In Lakhs)

’ Particulars - | 202021 | 2019-20
Pmiuqmmi and Consultancy C lhubu, - gt = 1__1_3._._'![!' Nil
| - Total 213.20 Nil

47. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006.

5 Particulars 31 March’ 31 March’
_ - _ _ 20 2020
The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining Nil Nil.
unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of each accounting year ) _
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - ~ Nil Nil
Interest due on above ~_Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Nil Nil
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year. _ ) - ] _ - B
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specilied
under the MSMED Act. 2006.

The amount of Interest acerued and remaining unr.uud at the end Nil Nil
of each accounting year. E -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as

above are actually paid to the small enterprise lor the purpose ol

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section ol |

MSMED Act 2006. B - ) -
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48. Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm 1o
current year's classification.

As per our report of even date
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of GMR Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”} which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and
on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures except for the
effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates
and joint ventures, as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive
loss), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) As stated in note 8b(13)(i}) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Group has
an investment amounting to INR 1,272.32 crore in GMR Energy Limited ('GEL'}, a joint venture
company and outstanding loan amounting to INR 745.12 crore (including accrued interest),
recoverable (net of impairment) from GEL and its subsidiaries and joint ventures as at 31 March
2021. Further, the Holding Company has an investment in GMR Generation Assets Limited (‘GGAL’),
a subsidiary of the Holding Company. GEL has further invested in GMR Vemagiri Power Generation
Limited (‘GVPGL’), and GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private Limited {'"GBHPL'), both
subsidiaries of GEL and in GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (‘GKEL’), joint venture of GEL. GGAL has
further invested in GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (‘GREL’), an associate company of GGAL.

As mentioned in note 8b(13)(iii), GVPGL and GREL have ceased operations due to continued
unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and other factors mentioned in the said note, and
have been incurring significant losses, including cash losses with consequential erosion of their
respective net worth. Further, GREL had entered into a resolution plan with its lenders to
restructure its debt obligations during the year ended 31 March 2019. The Group has given certain
corporate guarantees for the loans including Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares {‘CRPS’)
outstanding in GREL amounting to INR 2,056.59 crores.

The carrying value of the investment of the Group in GEL, to the extent of amount invested in
GVPGL, and the Group’s obligations towards the corporate guarantees given for GREL are
significantly dependent on the achievement of key assumptions considered in the valuation

#
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performed by the external expert particularly with respect to availability of natural gas, future tariff
of power generated and realization of claims for losses incurred in earlier periods from the
customer as detailed in the aforementioned note. The Group has provided for its investment in full
in GREL and the management is confident that no further obligation would arise for the guarantees
provided to the lenders against the servicing of sustainable and unsustainable debts.

As mentioned in note 8b(13)(vi), the management has accounted the investment in GKEL based on
the valuation performed by an external expert using the discounted future cash flows method
which is significantly dependent on the achievement of certain assumptions considered in
aforementioned valuation such as settlement of disputes with customers and timely realization of
receivables, expansion and optimal utilization of existing capacity, rescheduling/refinancing of
existing loans at lower rates amongst other key assumptions and the uncertainty and the final
outcome of the litigations with the capital creditors as regards claims against GKEL.

Further, as mentioned in note 8b(13){iv), GBHPL has stopped the construction of the 300 MW
hydro-based power plant on Alaknanda river, Uttarakhand, since 7 May 2014 on the directions of
the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ('the Supreme Court'). The carrying value of the investmentsin
GBHPL is significantly dependent on obtaining requisite approvals from the Supreme court,
environmental clearances, availability of funding support for development and construction of the
aforesaid power plant and achievement of the other key assumptions made in the valuation
assessment done by an external expert.

Accordingly, owing to the aforementioned uncertainties, we are unable to comment upon
adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the loans, non-current
investment, and further provisions, if any, required to be made for the said obligations, and the
consequential impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021

The above matter pertaining to investment in GVGPL and GKEL has been reported as a qualification
in the audit reports dated 18 June 2021 and 29 May 2021 issued by other firms of chartered
accountants on the standalone financial statements of GVGPL and GEL respectively. The matters
described above for GREL and GBHPL have been covered as an emphasis of matter in the audit
report dated 19 April 2021 and 26 May 2021 issued by another firm of chartered accountants on
the standalone financial statements of GREL and GBHPL respectively. Further, considering the
erosion of net worth and net liability position of GKEL, GVPGL and GREL, the respective auditors of
GKEL, GVPGL and GREL have also given a separate section on material uncertainty related to going
concern in the audit reports on the respective standalone financial statements of aforesaid
companies for the year ended 31 March 2021.

b) We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

a)

b)

We draw attention to Note 54 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which
describes the uncertainties due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and management’s
evaluation of the impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at the reporting
date. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The Group has incurred loss before tax amounting to INR 4,347.33 crores for the year ended 31
March 2021. Further, as disclosed in Notes 19, 20 and 23 of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, the Group has financial liabilities of INR 13,665 crores to be settled within one
year from 31 March 2021. While the above factors indicated a need to assess the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, as mentioned in Note 1.1, the Group has taken into consideration the
following mitigating factors in its assessment for going concern basis of accounting -

i) Additional funds to be obtained through various funding alternatives.
ii) Funds to be received from disposal of Kakinada SEZ and Krishnagiri
iii) Recovery of receivables from group companies

Management has prepared future cash flow forecasts taking into cognizance the above
developments and performed sensitivity analysis of the key assumptions used therein to assess
whether the Group would be able operate as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months
from the date of financial statements and concluded that the going concern basis of accounting
used for preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements is appropriate with no
material uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The above matter has also been reported as a Key Audit Matter in the audit report dated 18 june
2021 issued by another firm of Chartered Accountants on the standalone and consolidated financial
statements of GiL for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We draw attention to Note 36{a) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which
describes the uncertainty related to the outcome of a tax assessment from Maldives Inland
Revenue Authority (‘MIRA’) on business profit tax. As per the statement issued by MIRA dated 31
December 2020, GMR Male International Airport Private Limited (‘GMIAL’} has to settle business
profit tax amounted to USD 0.72 crore and fines on business profit tax amounted to USD 0.62 crore.
As per the letter dated 22 January 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance Male, Republic of
Maldives, “the amount of tax assessed by the MIRA relating to the final arbitration award is only
USD 0.59 crore and this amount should be paid by whom the payment was settled to GMIAL in the
event of any tax payable by GMIAL”. Further the letter also confirms that GMIAL is not liable to pay
for the taxes assessed by MIRA on the arbitration sum and the Government of Maldives have
initiated communication with MIRA to settle the taxes and fines payable on the arbitration award.
Accordingly, the ultimate outcome of the business tax assessment sent by the MIRA cannot be
determined and hence, the effect on the financial statements is uncertain. Accordingly, the Group
has not made any provision in these consolidated financial statements. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter. 4
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The above matter has also been reported as an emphasis of matter in the audit report dated 05
March 2021 issued by another firm of chartered accountants on the standalone financial
statements of GMIAL for the year ended 31 December 2020.

d) We draw attention to note 48(ii) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in relation
to the recoverability of sale consideration receivable as at 31 March 2021 amounting to INR 741.50
crores pursuant to the sale of equity stake and inter-corporate deposits given to Kakinada SEZ
Limited {‘KSEZ’) which is dependent on the achievement of the milestones as detailed in the
aforementioned note. Such, achievement of milestones is significantly dependent on future
development in the Kakinada SEZ and basis independent assessment by property consultancy
agency, management is confident of achieving such milestones and is of the view that no
adjustment to the aforesaid balance is required to be made in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit
of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

We have no other key audit matters to report other than those described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion and Emphasis of Matter sections in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read these reports if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter with those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income / loss, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates and joint ventures in accordanceW|th

[ Nosg, N\

= W“Y@faghava
W.Twagar Kl
nawaoow / .




B. Purushottam & Co.

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included
in the Group, its associates and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group,
including its associates and joint ventures, and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of its associates and joint ventures to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

F——
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a) The financial statements and other financial information of the Holding Company and 11
subsidiaries, with total assets of INR 7,075.91 crores, total revenues (including other income) of INR
384.33 crores, total net loss after tax of INR 269.31 crores, total comprehensive loss of INR 243.24
crores and net cash outflows of INR 37.71 crores (before adjustments for consolidation) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 have been audited by us

b) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of 111 subsidiaries, 1
joint operation, 57 joint ventures and 5 associates with total assets of INR 55,960.03 crores, total
revenues (including other income) of INR 7,291.20 crores, total net loss after tax of INR 3,675.00
crores, total comprehensive loss of INR 2,900.55 crores and net cash inflows of INR 4,337.26 crores
(before adjustments for consolidation) for the year then ended. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, joint operation, associates and joint ventures,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, joint operation, associates and joint ventures, are based solely on the
reports of the other auditors
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¢) Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the other auditors

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, we report to the extent applicable that:

a)

c)

d)

e)

f)

we have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements

in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors, except for the effects/possible
effects of the matters described in paragraph 3 of the Basis for Qualified Opinion section with
respect to the Consolidated Financial Statements

the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Consolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidate Financial
Statements

except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act

the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the Emphasis of Matter
paragraphs, and the Qualified Opinion paragraph in ‘Annexure |’ to this report, in our opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group and of its associates and joint
ventures

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint
venture companies covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies, its
associate companies and joint venture companies covered under the Act, are disqualified as
on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

the qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualification paragraph

as required by section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, based on our audit and on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other
financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, we report that 18
subsidiary companies and 7 joint venture companies covered under the Act paid remuneration
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laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, since it is not a public company as defined under section 2{71) of the Act

i) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and joint venture companies covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I’; and

j)  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:

i.  except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates, and joint
ventures as at 31 March 2021, as detailed in Note 8a, 8b, 41, 44, 45, 46, 47 and 48 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements,
as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts, as detailed in note 2.2(u) to the
consolidated financial statements;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (‘Fund’) by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March
2021. Further, on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates, and
joint ventures, we report that, there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the subsidiary
companies, associate companies, and joint venture companies, to the extent required,
during the year ended 31 March 2021

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 002808S

B s, Judams

B S Purshotham
Partner
Membership No. 26785

UDIN: 21026785AAAAHR2914

Place: Chennai
Date: 29-11-2021
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Annexure I: Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section {3) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of GMR Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Group and of its associates and joint ventures, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that
date

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies and joint venture companies, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the ‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and joint ventures
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. e,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and
joint venture companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on internal financial controls over financial reporting of the subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, which are companies covered under the Act, the following material weakness have
been identified in the operating effectiveness of a Subsidiary Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2021:

The internal control system towards estimating the carrying value of investments in certain associates
and joint ventures as more fully explained in note 8b(13)(i) to the consolidated financial statements
were not operating effectively due to uncertainties in the judgments and assumptions made by the
Company in such estimations, which could result in the Group not providing for adjustment, if any,
that may be required to the carrying values of investments and further provisions, if any, required to
be made for the obligations on behalf of those entities and its consequential impact on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. :
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The report on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of a joint venture
company, GMR Energy Limited, is also qualified with respect to the above matter, issued by another
auditor vide audit report dated 08 June 2021.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Holding Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Group have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the {CAl, and except for the
effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weakness have affected
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and we have issued a
modified opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Matter

a) The financial statements and other financial information of the Holding Company and 11 subsidiaries,
with total assets of INR 7,075.91 crores, total revenues (including other income) of INR 384.33 crores,
total net loss after tax of INR 269.31 crores, total comprehensive loss of INR 243.24 crores and net
cash outflows of INR 37.71 crores (before adjustments for consolidation) for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by us

b) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of 111 subsidiaries, 1 joint
operation, 57 joint ventures and 5 associates with total assets of INR 55,960.03 crores, total revenues
(including other income) of INR 7,291.20 crores, total net loss after tax of INR 3,675.00 crores, total
comprehensive loss of INR 2,900.55 crores and net cash inflows of INR 4,337.26 crores (before
adjustments for consolidation) for the year then ended. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, joint operation, associates and joint ventures, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint
operation, associates and joint ventures, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0028085
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B S Purshotham
Partner
Membership No. 26785

UDIN: 21026785AAAAHR2914

Place: Chennai
Date: 29—11-2021_




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014

CIN:U74900TN2007PTC102389

Consolidated balance sheet as atMarch 31,2021
March31,2021] March31,2020
Particulars Notes
Rs.in Crore
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 9,481.95 9,841.17
Right of use asset 4 107.91 106.19
Capital work-in-progress 3 6,615.65 3,809.02
Investment property 5 534.51 3,491.28
Goodwill on consolidation 6 3,526.80 3,459.04
Other intangible assets 7 2,672.48 2,763.67
Intangible assets under development 6.27 245
Investments accounted for using equity method 8a,8b 6,587.85 721399
Financial assets
[nvestments 8c 458.36 183.78
Trade receivables 9 162.29 125.67
Loans 10 190281 967.28
Other financial assets 11 3,049.39 3,091.28
Non-current tax assets (net) 229.51 318.67
Deferred tax assets (net) 37 821.83 663.37
Other non-current assets 12 3,455.52 242133
39,613.13 38,458.19
Current assets
Inventories 13 21594 23191
Financial assets
Investments 14 2,741.00 2,998.50
Trade receivables 9 1,262.06 1,481.21
Cash and cash equivalents 15 4,392.64 288471
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 2,120.64 1,641.10
Loans 10 732.10 667.54
Other financial assets 11 2,478.08 1,608.59
Other current assets 12 45131 784.57
14,393.77 12,298.13
Assets classified as held for sale 36 173.98 61.73
14,567.75 12,359.86
Total assets 54,180.88 50,818.05
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 91.13 76.84
Other equity 17 (2,965.67) {3,507.42)
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company (2,874.54) (3:430.58)
Non-controlling interests 2,385.38 1,803.48
Total equity (489.16) (1,627.10)
Liabilities :
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 34,385.87 30,091.53
Lease liabilities 42 110.59 105.24
Other financial liabilities 20 1,618.33 1,101.99
Provisions 21 . 119.85 o 15493
Deferred tax liabilities {net} 37 117.74 | - 22553
Other non-current liabilities 22 2,115.32 2,004,52
38,467.70 33,683.74
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 23 2,174.34 2,77880
Trade payables 19 2,491.48 2,277.55
Lease liabilities 42 1215 10.13
Other current financial liabilities 20 8,987.09 10,866.35
Provisions 21 905.84 971.44
Other current liabilities 22 1,566.88 1,74382
Current tax liabilities (net) 42.25 4182
16,180.03 18,689.91
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 36 2231 71.50
16,202.34 18,761.41
Total liabilities 54,670.04 - 52,445.15
Total equity and liabilities 54,180.88 50,818.05
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

For B. Purushottam & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 002808S

b b Jlecdnt Ao
8.S. Purshotham
Partner FAY " No: 0
Membership number: 026785 § &y v@y@fﬂgﬁav&

Place: Chennai
Date: 29th November'2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is the consoldiated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Enterprises Private Limited
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

March 31,2021]

March 31, 2020

Particulars Notes Rs.in Crore

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations:

Revenue from contracts with customers 24 5,273.73 7,600.73

Other operating income 25 886.02 895.41

Finance income 26 167.89 163.49
Other income 27 701.31 951.72
Total income 7,028.95 9,611.35
Expenses
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors 484.87 2,037.19
Cost of material consumed 28 755.94 434.85
Purchase of traded goods 29 954.37 830.45
(Increase)/ decrease in stock in trade 30 16.55 (15.62)
Sub-contracting expenses 287.66 297.36
Employee benefit expenses 31 759.14 833.54
Other expenses 32 1,948.59 1,624.53
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 1,005.65 1,065.20
Finance costs 34 3,936.57 4,266.71
Total expenses 10,149.34 11,374.21
Loss before share of loss of associate and joint ventures, exceptional items and tax from
continuing operations (3,120.39) (1,762.86)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures {net) (346.37) (275.51)
Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (3,466.76) (2,038.37)
Exceptional items

Loss on impairment of investments in associates/joint ventures (net) (880.57) (680.91)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (4,347.33) (2,719.28)
Tax expenses of continuing operations

Current tax 37 35.87 156.76

Adjustments of tax relating to earlier periods 37 13.52 (398)

Deferred tax (301.45) (236.44)
Loss after tax from continuing operations {4,095.27) (2,635.62)
Discontinued operations
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations before tax expenses 36 (0.02) (3.70)
Tax expense of discontinued operations 37 - -
(Loss)/profit after tax from discontinued operations (0.02) (3.70)
Loss for the year (A) (4,095.29) (2,639.32)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 120.84 (170.10)
Income tax effect - -

120.84 (170.10)

Net movement on cash flow hedges 11698 225.16
Income tax 25.97 72.31
Total 91.01 152.85
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 211.85 (17.25)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains (losses) on post employment defined benefit plans 3.22 (6.53)

Income tax effect 0.64 (0.96)
Total 2.58 (5.57)
Net (loss)/gain on FVTOCI equity Securities (0.71) (27.21)
Income tax - -
Total (0.71) {27.21)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 1.87 (32.78)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 213.72 (50.03)
Loss for the year (4,095.29) {2,639.32)
Attributable to

a) Equity holders of the parent (2,410.63) (2,009.10)

b) Non controlling interests (1,684.66) (630.22)




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd.Office :Third Floor, Old No.248/New No.114
Royapettah High Road, Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

March 31,2021]  March 31,2020

Particulars Notes

Rs.in Crore

Other comprehensive income for the year 213.72 {50.03)
Attributable to

a) Equity holders of the parent 103.12 (94.70)

b) Non controlling interests 110.60 44.67
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (3,881.57) (2,689.35)
Attributable to

a) Equity holders of the parent (2,307.51) (2,103.80)

b) Non controlling interests (1,574.06) (585.55)

Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from continuing operations
Basic and diluted, computed on the basis of profit from continuing operations attributable to equity 35 (282.76) (274.64)
holders of the parent (per equity share of Re.10 each)
Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from discontinued operations
Basic and diluted, computed on the basis of profit from discontinued operations attributable to 35 (0.00) (0.51)
equity holders of the parent (per equity share of Re.10 each)

Earnings per equity share (Rs.) from continuing and discontinued operations

Basic and diluted, computed on the basis of profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (per 35 (282.76) (275.15)
equity share of Re.10 each)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consoldiated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For B. Purushottam & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants GMR Enterprises Private Limited
Firm Registration No : 002808S
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

March 31,2021

March 31, 2620

Rs. in crore Rs. in crore
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from continuing operations before tax expenses (4,347.33) (2,635.63)
(Loss)/ profit from discontinued operations before tax expenses (0.02) (3.70)
Loss before tax expenses (4,347.35) (2,639.33)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, investment property and amortization of intangible assets 1,005.65 1,065.20
Income from government grant (5.27) (5.28)
Adjustments to the carrying value of investments/ gain on fair value of investment 28.44 0.04
Provisions no longer required, written back (58.59) (338.38)
Loss on impairment of assets in subsidiaries / joint venture's and associates (net) 880.57 680.91
Unrealised exchange (gains) / losses 111.05 (117.73)
Property, plant and equipment written off / (profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (60.86) 50.64
Provision / write off of doubtful advances and frade receivables 501.26 34.64
(Reversal) /Provision for upfront loss on long term construction cost (24.28) (95.05)
Interest expenses on financial Hability carried at amortised cost 80.58 93.42
Deferred income on financial liabilities carried at amortized cost (112.81) (107.76)
Net gain on sale or fair valuation of investments (146.29) (68.55)
Finance costs 3,855.98 4,266.71
Finance income (377.06) (450.12)
Gain on fair valuation of derivative instrument - (0.99)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures (net) 346.37 275.51
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,677.37 2,643.87
Movements in working capital :
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables and financial/other liabilities and provisions (180.05) 438.35
(Decrease) increase in non-current/current financial and other assets (1,895.58) (1,481.82)
Cash generated from operations (398.26) 1,600.40
Direct taxes paid (net) 47.94 (183.18)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (350.32) 1,417.22
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchasc of property, plant and equipment, ix}ves!ment property, intangible assets and cost (1,130.06) (3,093.33)
incurred towards such assets under construction / development (net)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment’s and intangible assets 128.43 26.32
Security deposit given for equipment lease (401.20) -
Payments for (acquistion) / proceeds from sale of stake in subsidiaries / JV's (30.38) (234.08)
Loans (given to) / repaid by related parties (784.30) (925.72)
Loans repaid by / (given to) employees/others 2.83 (36.06)
(Payments for purchase)/proceeds from sale of investments 595.92 (800.65)
Consideration received /(paid) on disposal /acquisition of joint ventures/associates/subsidiaries 5,027.66 3,791.98
Movement in investments in bank deposits (net) (having original maturity of more than three months) (352.65) (650.68)
Dividend received from associates and joint ventures 303.81 123.37
Finance income received 352.70 419.86
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 3,712.76 (1,378.99)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares 300.00 424.93
Proceeds from borrowings 8,539.61 10,426.89
Repayment of borrowings (6,249.53) (4,721.56)
Repayment of lease liability principal (11.62) (6.53)
Repayment of lease liability interest (10.90) (10.51)
Finance costs paid (4,481.36) (4,203.59)
Dividend paid - (50.34)
Dividend distribution taxes paid - (27.26)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) (1,913.80) 1,832.05
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,448.64 1,870.28
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the period 2,943.55 1,070.98
Effect of cash and cash equivalents on account of stake disposal of entities during the period -
Effect of exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency 0.91 2.29
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period 4,393.10 2,943.55

U




GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
(Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore)

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 770.64 620.88
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 3,619.89 2,261.70
Cheques / drafts on hand 0.19 -
Cash on hand 1.94 2.13
Cash at bank and short term deposits attributable to entities held for sale 0.44 58.84
Less: Bank overdraft - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period 4,393.10 2,943.55
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consoldiated statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date
For B. Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 002808S
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Partner
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Date: 29th November'2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Enterprises Private Limited
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Chairman

Venkata Nageswa
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Director 2.
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Bodapati Bhaskar

Chief Executive Officer
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Vishal Kumar Sinha
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 29th November'2021

Yogindu Khajuria
Company Secretary
M.No. F6232
Place: New Delhi
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (GEPL’ or ‘the Company’) is a private limited company domiciled and incorporated
in India under the Indian Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is Third loor,#114, Rovapettah
High Road, Royapettah, Chennai 600014, India. The Company was incorporated on June 05, 2007 as an Investing
Company and got registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as Core Investment Company (C1C) and is categorised
as Non-Deposit taking and Systemically Important CIC (CIC-ND-3I).

The Company and its subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and jointly controlled operations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as ‘the Group’) are mainly engaged in development, maintenance and operation of airports, generation of
power, coal mining and exploration activities, development of highways, development, maintenance and operation of
special economic zones, and construction business including Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)

contracting activities.

Airport sector
Certain entities of the Group are engaged in development, maintenance and operation of airport infrastructure such
as green ficld international airports at Hyderabad and Goa and modernisation, maintenance and operaton of

international airports at Delhi and Cebu on build, own, operate and transfer basis.

Power sector

Certain entities of the Group are involved in the generation of power. These are separate Special Purpose Vehicles
(‘SPV”) which have entered into Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) with the clectricity distribution companies of
the respective state governments / other government authorities (cither on the basis of Memorandum of
Understanding or through a bid process) or short-term power supply agreements to generate and scll power directly
to consumers as a merchant plant. Certain entities of the Group are involved in the coal mining and exploration

activities and the Group is also involved in energy and coal trading activities through its subsidiaries.

Development of Highways
Certain entities of the Group are engaged in development of highways on build, operate and transfer model on annuity
or toll basis. These are SPVs which have entered into concessionaire agreements with National Highways Auathority

of India (NFAD) or the respective state governments for carrying out these projects.

Construction business
Certain entities of the Group are in the business of construction including as an EPC contractor. These entities are

engaged in handling of EPC solution in the infrastructure sector.

Others
Fintities of the Group which cover all residual activities of the Group that include special economic zones, operations

of hotels, investment activities and management / technical consultancy.

Other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statement comptises of notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021. The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors

and authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on June 18, 2021,
1.1 Going concern

The Group has incurred losses primatily on account of losses in the energy and highway sector as detailed in notes 8,
46(7) and 46(if) with a consequent impact on net worth, delay in debt and interest servicing and lower credit ratings
for some of its borrowings. Management is taking various initiatives including monetization of assets, sale of stake m
certain assets, raising finances from financial institutions and serategic investors, refinancing of existing debt and other

strategic initiatives to address the repayment of borrowings and debt.

TIurther, the Group has received certain favorable orders on various ongoing matters in energy, highway and DICC
which involve significant value of claims. Management is optimistic of such favorable orders and believes that such

claims will further improve it’s cash flows and profitability. The details of such claims have been enumerated below:

Cengtna e
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a)  GCORR has received award of Rs. 341.00 crore plus interest (in case of delay in payment) against
Government of Tamil Nadu ((GOTN?) which is challenged by GOTN in Madras High Court.

b)  GHVEPL has received award for arbitration for compensation for Change in Law on account of bifurcation
of state of Andhra Pradesh and change in policics. While Change in Law is upheld, amount of compensation
is to be calculated by a Sole Arbitrator. GHVEPL has raised a claim of Rs 1,676.00 crore plus interest upto
March 31, 2020. However, NHAI has challenged the Award before Divisional Bench of Delhi High Court
after single Judge of Delhi High Court upheld the award in favor of GHVEPL.

¢) In case of DIFCC, there are various claims under various heads which has been either agreed by DFCCIL or
Group has got the award through Dispute Adjudication Board (DAB). Total amount of claim is
approximately Rs. 321.00 crore which will be received progressively based on the work to be carried out.

d)  Group have also raised a claim of Rs. 378.00 crore on DIFCCIL under Change in Law on account of Mining
Ban in the state of UP. Though DAB has given award in Group’s favor but DFCCIL has not accepted and
8 & ] I

arbitration is invoked which is under process.
¢) Certain other claims in Energy sector as detailed in note 8b(13)(iif), 8b(13)(v), 8b(13)(vi) and 47().

Considering the above factors, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis

which contemplates realisation of current asscts and settlement of current liabilities in an orderly manner.
Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements
are listed below. Such accounting policics have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these

consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets

and liabilites (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupee (Rs’) which is the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Group operates.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarics as at

March 31, 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group

controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

P Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

P Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

B The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

B> The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

B> Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

P The Group’s voting rights and potential voting righcs

B The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative o the size and disperston of the holdings of the other

voting rights holders.
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The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
0 one or mote of the three clements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control

over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses

of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities, used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as
that of the company, i.c., vear ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different
from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of
the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information
of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so. In case of entities, where it is impracticable to do so, they are
consolidated using the most recent financial statements available, which has a lag of three months, adjusted for the
effects of significant transactions or events occurring between the date of those financial statements and consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation procedure:

(1) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and

liabilitics recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of cach subsidiary.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or Josses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an

impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.

(d) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are atwributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the finandial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilitics, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are climinated in full on consolidation

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

B Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
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Derecognises the carrving amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficitin profit or loss
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B Reclassities the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profir or loss or retamned
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.
Summary of significant accounting policies:

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group clects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assamed are recognised at their acquisition
date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying
cconomic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination

are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are

recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Emplovee Benefits respectively.

B Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

| 4 Re-acquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the

related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, cconomic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the

acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the common control are accounted
at pooling of interest method. The difference between any consideration given and the aggregate historical carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded in shareholders” equity.

Goodwill on consolidation as on the date of transition represents the excess of cost of acquisition at cach point of
time of making the investment in the subsidiary over the Group’s share in the net worth of a subsidiary. For this
purpose, the Group’s share of net worth s determined on the basis of the latest financial statements, prior to the
acquisition, after making necessary adjustments for material events between the date of such financial statements and
the date of respective acquisition. Capital rescrve on consolidation represents excess of the Group’s share 1n the net
worth of a subsidiary over the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the subsidiary.
Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised, however, it is tested for impairment annually. In the event of

cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is written off fully.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contro} of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties

sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary

to determine control over the subsidiaries.




d.

GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The results, assets and liabilities of joint venture and associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using cquity method of accounting after making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in application

of accounting policies, wherever applicable. An investment in associate or joint venture is initially recognised at cost

and adjusted thereafter ro recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture or associate. On acquisition of investment in a joint venture or associate, any excess of cost of investment
over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the joint venture, is recognised as goodwill and is included in the
carrying value of the investment in the joint venture and associate. The excess of fair value of assets and liabilities over
the investment is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve. The unrealised profits/losses on transactions with

joint ventures are eliminated by reducing the carrving amount of investment.

The carrying amount of investment in joint ventures and associates is reduced to recognise impairment, if any, when
© & > v,

there is objective evidence of impairment.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture. [f the associate or joint venture subscquently reports profits, the entity resumes

recognising its sharc of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of an associate or a joint venture, an associate
or a joint venture, for consolidation purposes, prepares additional financial information as of the same date as the
financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of an associate or a
joint venture, unless it is impracticable to do so. In case of entities, where it is impracticable to do so, they are
consolidated using the most recent financial statements available, with a lag of three months, adjusted for the effects
of significant transactions or events occur between the date of those financial statements and consolidated financial
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statements. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measurcs and
fasl >

recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or

joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest in joint operations

In respect of its interests in joint operations, the Group recognises its share in assets, liabilities, income and expenses
line-by-line in the standalone financial statements of the entity which is party to such joint arrangement which then
becomes part of the consolidated financial statements of the Group when the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries are combined for consolidation. Interests in joint operations are included in the segments to which
they relate.

The financial statements of the joint operations are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When the
end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a joint operations, a joint operations for
consolidation purposes, prepares additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of
the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of a joint operations, unless it is impracticable
to do so. In case of entities, where it is impracticable to do so, they are consolidated using the most recent financial
statements available, with a lag of three months, adjusted for the effects of significant transactions or events occurring
between the date of those financial statements and consolidated financial statements. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it 1s:
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Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Lixpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Tiability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

1t 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the sertlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Advance rax paid is classified as non-current assets.

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Group extends up to the realisation of receivables (including retention

monies) within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective line of business.
Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation
techniques.

Fiair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the assct or transfer the liability takes place cither:

a)  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) 1In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the Jowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable
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Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

Tor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred berween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of jts
revenuc arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is

also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue s recognised.

Significant financing component

Generally, the Group receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115,
the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component
if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised service to the customer and
when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less.

The Group also receives long-term advances from customers for rendering services. The transaction price for such
contracts are discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing component.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist of
unbilled revenue). If the Group performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are
recognized as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is duc) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is carlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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Energy sector

In casc of power generating and trading companies, revenue from energy units sold as per the terms of the PPA and
Letter Of Intent (T.OD) (collectively hereinafter referred o as ‘the PPAS) is recognised on an accrual basis and
includes unbilled revenue accrued up to the end of the accounting year.

Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under “other assets” as unbilled revenue and billings 1n excess

of revenue carned have been disclosed under “orher liabiliries” as unearned revenue.

Claims for delayed payment charees and any other claims, in which the Group companies are entitled to under the
B g o . >

PPAs, are recognized on reasonable certainty to expect ultimate collection.

Revenue from energy units sold on a merchant basis is recognised in accordance with billings made to customers
based on the units of energy delivered and the rate agreed with the customers. Revenue/ charges from unscheduled
interchange for the deviation in generation with respect to scheduled generation are recognized/ charged at rates
notified by CERC from time to time, as revenue from sale of energy and adjusted with revenue from sale of energy.

Further, revenue is recognized /adjusted towards truing up in tetms of the applicable CERC regulations.

Revenue from clectrical energy transmission charges is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the

provisions of the transmission service agreements.

Revenue from sale of coal is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership passes to the purchaser in accordance
with the terms of sale, including delivery of the product, the selling price 1s fixed or determinable, and collectability is
reasonably assured. Revenue eamned in the pre-production stage and related operating costs have been recorded against

the carrying value of mining and exploration and development properties.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue from energy trading are recognised as per the agreement with the customer. In case of the energy trading
agreements, where the Group is entitled only for a fixed margin and the associated risk and rewards are with the third

parties, revenue is recognised only to the extent of assured margin.
Highways Sector

In case of entities involved in construction and maintenance of Roads, revenue are recognised in line with the
Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements. Toll revenue is recognised on an accrual basis which
1

coincides with the collection of toll from the users of highways.
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors:

Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaires / grantors as a percentage of revenues, pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the relevant agreement for development, construction, operation and maintenance of the respective
highways has been disclosed as revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors in the consolidated statement

of profit and loss.
Airport Sector

In case of airport infrastructure companies, acronautical and non-aeronautical revenue is recognised on an accrual
basis and is net of service tax / goods and service tax, applicable discounts and collection charges, when services are
rendered and it is possible that an cconomic benefit will be received which can be quantified reliably. Revenue from
acronautical operations include user development fees, fuel farm, passenger service charges, landing and parking
charges of aircraft, operation and maintenance of passenger boarding and other allied services. Revenue from non-
aeronautical operations include granting rights to use land and space primarily for catering to the needs of passengers,
air traffic services, air transport services and Maintenance, Repair and Overbaul facility (MROQ) of aircrafts and allied

services.

Land and Space- rentals pertains to granting right 1o usc land and space primarily for catering to the need of passengers,
air traffic services and air transport services.
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In case of cargo handling revenue, revenue from outbound cargo is recognised at the time of acceptance of cargo with
respect to non-airline customers and at the time of departure of aircraft with respect to airline customers and revenue
from inbound cargo is recognised at the time of arrival of aircraft in case of airline customers and at the point of
delivery of cargo in case of non-airline customers. Interest on delayed receipts from customers is recognised on

HCCCPTHHCC.

Revenue from commercial property development rights granted to concessionaires is recognised on accrual basis, as

per the terms of the agreement entered into with the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods at the duty free outlets operated by the Group is recognised at the tme of delivery of
goods to customers which coincides with transfer of risks and rewards to its customers. Sales are stated net of returns

and discounts.

Revenue from hospitality services comprises of income by way of hotel room rent, sale of food, beverages and allied
services relating to the hotel and is recognised net of taxes and discounts as and when the services are provided and

products are sold.
Revenue from MRO contracts is recognised as and when services are rendered.

In case of companies covered under service concession agreements, revenue are recognised in line with the Appendix

C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements.
Revenuc share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors: -

Revenuc share paid / payable to concessionaire / grantors as a percentage of revenues, pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the relevant agreement for development, construction, operation and maintenance of the respective
airports has been disclosed as revenue share paid/ payable to concessionaire grantors’ in the statement of profitand

loss.
For Construction business entities

Construction revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the construction activity at
the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear
1o the estimated total contract costs. Where the outcome of the construction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised to the extent of the construction costs incurred if it is probable that they will be recoverable. When the
outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost of work performed on the
contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method i.e. over the period of time.
Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work petformed to-date, to the total estimated contract costs.
The estimated outcome of a contract is considered reliable when all the following conditions are satisfied:

i. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

ii, It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the Group,

iii. The stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably,

iv. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be measured reliably

Provision is made for all losses incurred to the balance sheet date, Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they are capable of being
reliably measured. Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen,
irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. IFor contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of
contract costs incurred to-date and recognised profits (or recognised losses, as the case may be), the surplus is shown

as the amount due to customers.

Amount received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as a liability towards advance
received. Amounts billed for work performed but vet to be paid by the customers are disclosed in the Balance Sheet

as trade receivables.
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Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable except the interest income reccived from customers for delayed pavments which are accounted on the basis

of reasonable certainty / realisation.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate thar exactly discounts the estimated
futurc cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial ability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
rerms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other operating income / other income in the consolidated

statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of operations of the entity in which such revenue is recognised.
Others

i. Income from management / technical services is recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of
services rendered.

ii. Insurance claim is recognised on acceptance of the claims by the insurance company.

iii. Revenue from charter services is recognised based on services provided as per the rerms of the contracts with the

CUStomers.

Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under ‘other financial assets” as unbilled revenue and billings

in excess of revenue has been disclosed under ‘other habilities” as unearned revenue.
Service Concession Arrangements

The Group constructs or upgrades infrastrucrure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service
and operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements

may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based
on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the operator receives a right
(i.e. a concessionaire) to charge users of the public service. The financial mode! is used when the operator has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets from or at the direction of the grantor for the
construction service. When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are
combined to account separately for each component. 1f the operator performs more than one service (e
construction, upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement, consideration recejved
or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the service delivered, when the amount are not

scparately identifiable.

The intangible asset is amortised over the shorter of the estimated period of future economic benefits which the

intangible assets are expected to generate or the concession period, from the date they are available for use.

An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits arc

expected from its futare use or disposal.

The Group recognises a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial assct from or at the direction of the grantor. In case of annuity based carriageways, the Group recognises
financial assct.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense jtem, itis recognised as income on a systematic
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basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant
relates 1o an assct, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.
When the Group receives grants of non-monctary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts

and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the undetlying

asset l.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related
insttutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the Joan and the proceeds received.

The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.
Taxes on income
Current income tax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax, The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the yeat. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax s calculated using the tax rates and tax laws that have

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or Joss (cither in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions raken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the
taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability model. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent

that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax asscts are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused rax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income

tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or Joss 1s recognised outside profic or loss (cither in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax labilities and the deferred raxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alrernative Tax ((NAT?) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is

likely to give future cconomic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.
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Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deterred tax asset in the batance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably
and it js probable that the furure economic benefit associated with the asset will be reahized.
In the vear in which the Group recognises MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of

profit and loss shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Group reviews the “NLAT credit entitlement” asset at cach

reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal rax during
the specified period.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification,

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for
immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its
sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Group treats sale of the asset to be highly
probable when:

a)  The appropriate Jevel of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,

b)  Anactive programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated,

¢) The assetis being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

d) The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification, and

e)  Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn,

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrving amount and the fair value less costs o

sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

Property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribution to owners are not
depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifics as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of,
or is classified as held for sale, and:

1) Represents a separate major line of business or geographical arca of operations,
1) Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area

of operatons
Or

1) Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Frechold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at
the balance sheet date and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part

has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of

the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining assct is depreciated over
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the life of the principal asset. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection s

performed, its cost s recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition

criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or

foss as and when incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assct, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asscts are
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting

period in which they are incurred.

On Transition to Ind AS, the Group has availed the optional exemption on “Long rerm Foreign currency Monetary
items” and has accordingly continued with the policy to adjust the exchange differences arising on translation/
settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset recognised
in the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2016 (as per previous GAAP) to the cost of the tangible asset
and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset. In accordance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCAY) circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of tangible fixed assets are total
differences, arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable assct,
for the period. In other words, the Group does not differentiate berween exchange difterences arsing from foreign
currency borrowings o the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange

differences.
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Energy sector

In case of domestic entities, the depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis
using the rates arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives prescribed
under Schedule 11 of the Act except on case of plant and machinery in case of some gas based power plants and power
generating units dedicated for generation of power under CERC tariff regulations where the useful life of the asset is
considered as 25 years as prescribed by CERC being the regulatory authority in the energy sector, as against 40 years
as per Schedule 11 of the Act.

Airport sector

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the useful lives prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets class i.e. Internal Approach Roads, Electric
Panels and Transformers/Sub—station, the Group, based on a technical evaluation, believes that the useful life of
such property, plant and equipment is different from the usetul life specified in Schedule I to Companies Act 2013.

The Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the asset’s uscful life; or over the
shorter of the asset’s uscful life and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain

ownership at the end of lease term.

On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (“AERA”) has issued a consulmation paper viz,
05/2014-15 in the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in Economic Regulaton of Major Airports
wherein it, inter-alia, mentioned that the Authority proposes to lay down, to the extent required, the depreciation rates
for airport assets, taking into account the provisions of the useful life of assets given in Schedule 1T of the Companies
Act, 2013, that have not been clearly mentioned in the Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013 or may have a useful
life justifiably different than that indicated in the Companies Act, 2013 in the specific context to the airport sector.
Pursuant to above, the Authority had issued order no. 35/2017-18 on January 12, 2018 which was further amended
on April 09, 2018, in the matter of Determination of Useful life of Airport Assets, which is effective from Apnl 01,
2018.

Accordingly, the management was of the view that useful lives considered by the Group for most of the assets except
passenger related Turniture and Fixtures were in line with the useful life proposed by AERA inits order dated January
12, 2018, which was further amended on April 09, 2018.
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In order to align the useful life of passenger related Furniture and Fixtures as per AERA order, the Group has revised
the useful life during the financial year 2018-19.

Other entities

For domestic entities other than aforesaid entities, the depreciation on the Property plant and equipment is calculated
on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at, based on useful Jives estimated by the management, which coincides

with the lives prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013,

The management has estimated the useful life of assets individually costing Rs. 5,000 ot less to be less than one year,

which is lower than those indicated in Schedule 11.

The residual values, uscful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each

financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount

of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term. Where there is
reasonable certainty that the Group shall obtain ownership of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are
depreciated based on the useful life prescribed under Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful

life adopted by the Group for similar assets.

An jtem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is

included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful life of Property, plant and equipment, other than disclosed above:

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the esimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category of asset Estimated useful life
Plant and equipment 4 — 15 years

Buildings 7 — 30 vears

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 3-10 vears

Vehicles and Aircrafts 5 — 25 years
Computers 3-6 vears

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the primary period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower,

on straight line basis.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by the technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and equipment over estimated useful Jives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Investment pI‘OpCI‘Iy

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less their
residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets
where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method
is reviewed at each financial vear end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits embodied
in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial vear end
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and the effect of any change in the estimates of usetul life / residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Irechold
land and properties under construction are not depreciated.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently

withdrawn from use and no future cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal.

The difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss

in the period of derecognition.
Investment property under construction

Investment propetty under construction represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried
at cost. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/construction costs, borrowing costs and other

direct expenditure.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired scparately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible asscts acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite.
Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss unless such

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another assct.

Amortization of mining properties is based on using unit-of-production method from the date of commencement of
commercial production of the respective area of interest over the lesscr of the life of the mine or the terms of the coal

contracts of work or mining business license.
Technical know-how is amortised over five years from the date of issuance of certificate from a competent authority.

Tntaneible assets representing upfront fees and other payments made to concessionaires of the respective airports
o tel >
pursuant to the terms and conditions of concession agreements are amortized on a straight line method over the initial

and extended periods of concession agreements, as applicable.

Carriageways related to toll based road projects are amortized based on proportion of actual revenue received during
the accounting year to the total projected revenue till the end of the concession period in terms of MCA notification
dated April 17, 2012 and in terms of the amendments to the Schedule I of the Act vide MCA notification dated
March 31, 2014 pursuant to the exemption provided as per D22 (i) of Ind AS 101,

The total projected revenue for the entire useful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year for expected changes
in traffic and adjusted to reflect any changes in the estimate which will lead to actual collection at the end of uscful
life.

Intangible assets representing power plant concessionaire rights, carriageways and airport concessionaire rights are
amortized over the concession period, ranging from 23 to 40 years, 17.5 to 25 years and 25 to 60 years respectively,
as the cconomic benefits from the underlying assets would be available to the Group over such period as per the

respective concessionaire agreements.

Sofrware is amortised based on the useful life of six years on a straight line basis as estmated by the management.
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Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its remaining useful life.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when

the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets under development:

Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under
development and are carried at cost. Cost comprises of purchase cost, related acquisition expenses, development /

construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
including interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired
on finance lease. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowi ng COStS.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that nccessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset untl
such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in

the period in which they occur.
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, cven if that right is

not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

Group as a lessee

Till previous vear, assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line

basis except where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflatiopary costs.

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asser at end of lease term, lessee’s option to

extend/purchase etc.

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The
right-of-use assct is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease

(if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-
of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At lease commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate is readily available or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included n the

measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable
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payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payvments
made and increased for interest. Tt is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed pavments. When the lease lability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in
the right-of-use asset. The Group has clected to account for short-term Jeases using the practical expedients. Instead
of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease Jiability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor:

Leases are classified as finance Jeases when substantally all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income s allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the

carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

B Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

B Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

B> Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

B Contract work in progress: contract wotk in progress comprising construction costs and other directly attributable

overheads is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventories is determined on a weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs incurred that relate to future activities on the contract are recognised as “Contract work in progress”.

Contract work in progress comprising construction costs and other directly attributable overheads is valued at lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Assessment of net realisable value is made in each subsequent period and when the circumstances that previously
caused inventories to be written-down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net
realisable value because of changed cconomic circumstances, the write-down, if any, in the past petiod is reversed to
that extent of the original amount written-down so that the resultant carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the
revised net realisable value.

Impairment of non-financial assets, investments in joint ventures and associates
As at the end of cach accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment properties,

intangible asscts and investments in associates and joint ventures determine whether there is any indication that those
asscts have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for impairment so as to

determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment
each vear.
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Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable

amount is determined:
(1) in case of an individual asser, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

(i) in case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identfied, independent cash flows), at the higher
of the cash generating umt’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is
determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the respective company suitably adjusted for risks
specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that arc largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit
is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this purpose, the impairment loss
recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
o such cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrving amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit on

a pro-rata basis.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unity in prior vears. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit and loss.
u. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated

statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the

passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for oncrous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the

assets associated with that contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present

obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

10
g

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence

in the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions and ,g‘g{mngcm liability are reviewed at cach balance sheet.
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Decommissioning liability:

Decommissioning costs arc provided at the present value of expected costs to scetle the obligation using estimated
cash flows and arc recognised as part of the cost of the particular assct. The cash flows arc discounted at a current
pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed
as incurred and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future
costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or
in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

v. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution
scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet reporting date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. 1f the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example,
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as shore-term emplovee
benefir. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward bevond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.

The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the consolidated balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method
using actuarial valuation to be carried out at each balance sheet date

1n case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit
b bl o
plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the cffect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit Hability), arc recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the carlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

b. The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs
Netinterest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and

loss:

a. Service costs comptising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income.

g) Vijayaraghava
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contract embodying
the related financial instruments. All financial asscts, financial liabilides and financial guarantee contracts are initially
measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial habilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference
shares given to associates and joint ventures, the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair

value is accounted as an equity investment.
Investment in equity instruments issued by associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less impairment.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

I'inancial assets are subscquently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these asscts in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets, excluding investments in joint ventures and associates

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model, which involves use of
provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 — Financial
instruments.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss aliowance equal to
twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit Josses is

recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantdy increased since initial recognition.

Vijayaraghava
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asscts and an associated lability for amounts it

may have to pay.

If the Group rerains substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial assct in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the date

of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

FFor trade and other reccivables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrving amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial Habilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classitied according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An cquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds reccived, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial Jiabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing
bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the cffective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximatc
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

I'inancial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of

the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Put Option Liability

The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies to
non-controlling interests are accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may only be settled other than by
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial assct for a fixed number of shares in the subsidiary. The
financial liability for such put option is accounted for under IND AS 109.

The amount that may become payable under the option on exercise is initially recognised at fair value under other
financial liabilities with a corresponding charge directly to equity. All subsequent changes in the carrying amount of
the financial lability are recognised in the profit or loss attributable to the parent. The entity recognises both the non-
controlling interest and the financial liability under the NCI put. It continues to measure non-controlling interests at
proportionate share of net assets.

If the put option is exercised, the entity accounts for an increase in its ownership intesest. At the same time, the entity
derecognises the financial Hability and recogpises an offsetting credit in the same component of equity reduced on
initial recognition. In the event that the option expires unexercised, the liability is derecognised with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Iinancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Derivative financial insttuments

The Group uses detivative financial instruments, such as call spread oprions, interest rate swap cte. forward currency
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initally recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives

are carried as financial assets when the fair valuc is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in consolidated OCI and later reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of bedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

a)  Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment;

b) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign curtency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment;

& & )

¢) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation inchuides the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge rato
and how the entity will assess the cffectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged irem’s fair value or cash fows atriburable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and arc asscssed on an
ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described below:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in consolidated OC in the cash flow
oe reserve, while any incffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profitand loss.

 No: 58,
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Amounts recognised as consolidated OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expensc is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

Tf the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the
hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in consolidated OCI remains separately in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Convertible preference shares/ debentures

Convertible preference shares / debentures are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of

the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares / debentures, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability

measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since
conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for conversion right. Transaction costs are deducted from cquity, net of

associated income tax. The carrving amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs arc apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares /
debentures based on the allocation of proceeds to the hability and equity components when the instruments ate initially

recognised.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash

mnnagcmcnt.

aa. Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity bolders of the respective Companies when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discredon of such Company. Final dividends on
shares arce recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the sharcholders and interim dividends are recorded as a

liability on the date of declaration by the respective Company’s Board of Directors.

bb. Foreign currencies

Ex

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifics for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates

of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the

exception of the following:

| & Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment ina
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the scparate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the forcign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the

>

foreign operation and the reporting entity (c.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from

cquity to profit or toss on disposal of the net investment.

P Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s ner
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time,

the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
B Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCIL

P Iixchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the
financial statements before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period in respect of which the Group
has clected to recognise such exchange differences in equity or as part of cost of assets as allowed under Ind AS 101-
“First ime adoption of Indian Accounting Standard” are recognised directly in equity or added/ deducted 1o/ from
the cost of assets as the case may be. Such exchange differences recognised in equity or as part of cost of assets 1s

recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis.
Group companies:

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to translate income
and expensc items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange
differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of OCT relating to that particular forcign operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

and loss.

Exceptional items

An item of income or expense which due to its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an
understanding of the performance of the Group is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

Corporate social responsibility (‘CSR’) expenditure

The Group charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share

Basic carings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.
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GMR ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Notes:

1. Buildings (including roads) with gross carrying amount of Rs. 6,133.56 crore (March 31, 2020: Rs. 5,908.54
crore), ranways, taxiways, aprons, bridges, culverts, bunders ctc. are on leaschold land.

2. Foreign exchange differences in gross carrying amount:

a. Toreign exchange gain of Rs. 0.01 crore (March 31, 2020: gain of Rs. 0.02 crore) on account of translating the
financial statement items of foreign entities using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

b. The MCA, Government of India (Gol’) vide its Notification No GSR 225 (E) dated March 31, 2009 prescribed
certain changes to AS - 11 on “The Effects of Changes in Foreygn Exchange Rates’. The Group has, pursuant
to adoption of such prescribed changes to the said Srandard, exercised the option of recognizing the exchange
differences arising in reporting of foreign currency monctary items at rates different from those at which they
were recorded earlier, in the original cost of such depreciable assets in so far such exchange differences arose
on foreign currency monetary items relating to the acquisition of depreciable assets. Exchange differences are
capitalized as per paragraph D13AA of Tnd AS 101 ‘First tme adoption’ availing the oprional exemption that
allows first time adopter to continue capitalization of exchange differences in respect of long term foreign
currency monetary items recognized in the consolidated financial statement for the period ending immediately
beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period as per the previous GAAP.

Foreign exchange loss of Rs. 10.74 crore in respect of exchange differences arising on foreign currency
monetary items relating to the acquisition of depreciable assets have been adjusted against property, plant and
equipment in the year ended March 31, 2020.

The sunset date f